Risk Factors Comparison 2024-07-30 to 2023-07-27 Form: 10-K

Legend: New Text Remeved-Fext-Unchanged Text Moved Text Section

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below, as well
as the other information in this Annual Report, including our financial statements and the related notes and the section of this
Annual Report titled “ Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, ” before
deciding whether to invest in our common stock. The occurrence of any of the events or developments described below could
harm our business, financial condition, results of operations and growth prospects. In such an event, the market price of our
common stock could decline and you may lose all or part of your investment. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently
known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business operations. Risks Related to Our Company,
Early Stage of Clinical Development and Financial Condition We need to obtain substantial additional funding to complete the
development and any commercialization of ALO01 and ALZNOO2. If we are unable to raise this capital when needed, we may
be forced to delay, reduce or eliminate our research and development programs and other operations. We expect our expenses to
increase substantially during the next few years. The development of biotechnology product candidates is capital intensive. As
we conduct non- clinical research and clinical development of our product candidates, we will need substantial additional funds
to maintain and expand our capabilities in a variety of areas including discovery and non- clinical research, clinical development,
regulatory affairs, product development, product quality assurance, and pharmacovigilance. In addition, if we obtain marketing
approval for any of our product candidates, we expect to incur significant commercialization expenses for marketing, sales,
manufacturing and distribution. Some of those commercialization investments may be made at- risk in advance of receiving an
approval. As of April 30, 2623-2024 , we had $ 376, 000 5-——+-miHien-in cash and cash equivalents . In May 2024, subsequent to
the end of our fiscal year, we entered into a transaction with an investor that, if the investor bides by its commitments,
should produce a temporarily significant dollar amount of financing, subject to our ability to achieve certain milestones .
Based on our current operating plan, we believe that this witheut-additionat-funding ;our-existing-eash-and-eashequivalents-will
be enable us to fund our operations for appreximately-six-the next twelve months. In particular, we need additional funds to
allow us to fund Phase II clinical trials for AL001 in Alzheimer’ s, BD, MDD and PTSD and to complete the on- going phase
Phase [ / ITA clinical trial for ALZNOO2 to treat mild to moderate dementia of the Alzheimer’ s type. However, changing
circumstances or inaccurate estimates by us may cause us to use capital significantly faster than we currently anticipate, and we
may need to spend more money than currently expected because of circumstances beyond our control. For example, our ongoing
clinical trial for ALZN0O2 or our planned clinical trials for ALOO1 may encounter technical, enrollment or other issues that
could cause our development costs to increase more than we expect. We will not have sufficient funds to complete any of these
planned or ongoing clinical trials or the clinical development of either ALO01 or ALZN002 through regulatory approval. We
will need to raise substantial additional capital to complete the development and commercialization of each of those product
candidates, which additional capital, if available on reasonable terms if at all, may be raised through the sale of our common
stock or other securities or through the entering into of alternative strategic transactions, or cause our stockholders to incur
substantial dilution. Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including: * the initiation, progress, timing,
costs and results of our planned clinical trials for our product candidates; * the number and scope of indications we decide to
pursue for product development; ¢ the cost, timing and outcome of regulatory review of any NDA or BLA we may submit for
our product candidates; ¢ the costs and timing of manufacturing for our product candidates, if approved; ¢ the costs of preparing,
filing and prosecuting patent applications, maintaining and enforcing our intellectual property rights and defending intellectual
property- related claims; ¢ our efforts to enhance operational systems and our ability to attract, hire and retain qualified
personnel, including personnel to support the development of our product candidates;  the costs associated with being a public
company; * our ability to enter into partnerships or otherwise monetize our pipeline through strategic transactions on a timely
basis, on terms that are favorable to us, or at all; * the terms and timing of establishing and maintaining collaborations, licenses
and other similar arrangements; - 23- « the extent to which we acquire or in- license other product candidates and technologies;
and —22— the cost associated with commercializing our product candidates, if any are approved for commercial sale. Our
commercial revenues, if any, will be derived from sales of products that we do not expect to be commercially available for sale
for at least the next several years, if ever. Accordingly, we will need to obtain substantial additional funding in connection with
our continuing operations. Adequate additional financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. In addition,
we may seek additional capital due to favorable market conditions or strategic considerations even if we believe we have
sufficient funds for our current or future operating plans. If we are unable to raise capital when needed or on attractive terms, we
would be forced to delay, reduce or eliminate our research and development programs or other operations. Our independent
registered public accounting firm has expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Our auditors
have-independent registered public accounting firm has issued a going concern opinion on our financial statements for the
year ended April 30, 2623-2024 , expressing substantial doubt that we can continue as an ongoing business due to insufficient
capital for us to fund our operations. Our financial statements do not include any adjustments that may result from the outcome
of this uncertainty. If we are unable to successfully raise additional capital, we will need to create and implement alternate
operational plans to continue as a going concern, and investors or other financing sources may be unwilling to provide additional
funding to us on commercially reasonable terms or at all. We are at an early stage of clinical development and currently have no
source of near- term revenue and may never become profitable. We are a clinical- stage biopharmaceutical company. We have
recently initiated clinical trials for our ALOO1 and ALZNO002 programs. To date, we have not initiated or completed a pivotal



clinical trial, obtained marketing approval for any product candidates, manufactured a commercial scale product or arranged for
a third party to do so on our behalf, or conducted sales and marketing activities necessary for successful product
commercialization. Our ability to generate revenue depends heavily on, among other developments: * demonstration to the
satisfaction of the FDA and comparable regulatory bodies that ALOO1 and ALZNO002 are safe and effective in future clinical
trials; « our ability to seek and obtain regulatory approvals, including with respect to the indications we are seeking; ¢ if
approved by the FDA, successful manufacture and commercialization of AL001 and ALZN002; and * market acceptance of
ALO01 and ALZN002. We only have two product candidates, AL001 and ALZN002, which will require extensive clinical
evaluation, regulatory review and approval, significant marketing efforts and substantial investment before either or both of
them, and any respective successors, will provide us with any revenue. As a result, if we do not successfully develop, achieve
regulatory approval for and commercialize ALO01 or ALZN002, we will be unable to generate any revenue for many years, if at
all. We do not anticipate that we will generate revenue for a few years, at the earliest, or that we will achieve profitability for at
least several years after generating material revenue, if at all. If we are unable to generate revenue, we will not become
profitable, and we may be unable to continue our operations. We have a limited operating history on which to judge our business
prospects and management. We were incorporated in February 2016 and commenced operations shortly thereafter. We have a
limited operating history upon which to base an evaluation of our business and prospects. Operating results for future periods are
subject to numerous uncertainties and we cannot assure you that we will achieve or sustain profitability. Our prospects must be
considered in light of the risks encountered by companies in the early stage of development, particularly companies in new and
rapidly evolving markets. Future operating results will depend upon many factors, including our success in attracting and
retaining motivated and qualified personnel, our ability to establish short term credit lines or obtain financing from other
sources, our ability to develop and market new products or control costs, and general economic conditions. We cannot assure
you that we will successfully address any of these contingencies.- 23-24 - Risks Related to Our Product Candidates We have
both operational and financial milestones that must be met to maintain the licensing rights to our current technology and
intellectual property from the Licensor Untversity-of South-FloridaResearehFoundation-. There are certain license fees and
milestone payments required to be paid by us to the Licensor, pursuant to the terms of license agreements we have entered into
with the Licensor. The license agreements for ALZN002 require us to pay royalty payments of 4 % on net sales of products
developed from the licensed technology for ALZN002 while the license agreements for ALOO1 require that we pay combined
royalty payments of 4. 5 % on net sales of products developed from the licensed technology for AL001. We have already paid
an initial license fee of $ 200, 000 for ALZN002 and an initial license fee of $ 200, 000 for ALOO1. As an additional licensing
fee for the license of ALZNO002, the Licensor received 3-24 , 012 664,-809-shares of our common stock. As an additional
licensing fee for the license of the AL00O1 technologies, the Licensor received 2-14 , 853 227,-923-shares of our common stock.
Minimum royalties for AL0O01 License Agreements are $ 40, 000 on the first anniversary of the first commercial sale, $ 80, 000
on the second anniversary first commercial sale and $ 100, 000 on the third anniversary of the first commercial sale and every
year thereafter, for the life of the ALO01 License Agreements. Minimum royalties for ALZN002 are $ 20, 000 on the first
anniversary of the first commercial sale, $ 40, 000 on the second anniversary first commercial sale and $ 50, 000 on the third
anniversary of the first commercial sale and every year thereafter, for the life of the ALZN002 License Agreement. Minimum
royalties for November ALOO1 License Agreements are $ 40, 000 on the first anniversary of the first commercial sale, $ 80, 000
on the second anniversary first commercial sale and $ 100, 000 on the third anniversary of the first commercial sale and every
year thereafter, for the life of the November AL001 License Agreements . Additionally, we are required to pay milestone
payments on the due dates to the Licensor for the license of the AL001 technologies and for the ALZN002 technology, as
follows: Original AL0O1 Licenses: Payment Due Date Event $ 50, 000 * Completed September 2019 Pre- IND meeting $ 65,
000 * Completed June 2021 IND application filing $ 190, 000 * Completed December 2021 Upon first dosing of patient in a
clinical trial $ 500, 000 * Completed March 2022 Upon Completion of first clinical trial $ 1, 250, 000 March 2025 24-menths

fromeompletionof the-first Phase-H-elintealtrial-Upon first patient treated in a Phase 111 chmcal trial $ 10, 000, 000 8 years
from the effectlve date of the agreement Upon FDA NDA approval * Mllestone met and completed We—have—met—t-he—pfe——lNB

to meet a mllestone payment by the specified date the Licensor may terminate the respectlve hcense agreement If the Llcensor
were to terminate either license agreement for whatever reason, it would materially and adversely affect our business, financial
position and future prospects and you would likely lose the entirety of your investment in us. ALZN002 License: Payment Due
Date Event-$ 50, 000 * Completed January 2022 HperniND-apphieationfiting-5 50, 000 September2023-Upon first dosing of
patient in first Phase I clinical trial $ 500, 000 Upon 24-menthsfrem-completion of first Phase +elinteattrial- Uponecompletion
effirst Phase HH-IIB clinical trial $ 1, 000, 000 2-menthsfremeompletion-of the first Phase H-elinteal-trtal-Upon first patient

treated in a Phase III clinical trial § 10 000, 000 Fyears-from-the-effeetive-date-of the-agreement-Upon FDA-BEA-approvatfirst
commercial sale Additional ALOO1 Licenses: Payment Due Date Event $ 2, 000, 000 March 2026 36-moenthsfrem-eompletion

of the-first Phase H-elinteal-trial-Upon first patient treated in a Phase 11 clinical trial $ 16, 000, 000 August 1, 2029 First
commercial sale These Jute-AL001 License Agreements have an indefinite term that continue until the later of the date no
licensed patent under the applicable agreement remains a pending application or enforceable patent, the end date of any period
of market exclusivity granted by a governmental regulatory body, or the date on which the licensee’ s obligations to pay
royalties expire under the applicable license agreement.- 24-25 - If we fail to comply with our obligations in the agreements
under which we license intellectual property and other rights from third parties or otherwise experience disruptions to our
business relationships with the Licensor, we could lose license rights that are important to our business. We are a party to these
license agreements with the Licensor and expect to enter into additional license agreements in the future. The existing license
agreements impose, and we expect that future license agreements will impose, various diligence, milestone payment, royalty and
other obligations on us. If we fail to comply with our obligations under these agreements, or we are subject to a bankruptcy, we



may be required to make certain payments to the Licensor, we may lose the exclusivity of our license, or the Licensor may have
the right to terminate the license, in which event we would not be able to develop or market products covered by the license. The
Licensor or any future licensor may take any of these actions, including terminating a license agreement. Additionally, the
milestone and other payments associated with these licenses will make it less profitable for us to develop our product
candidates. If the Licensor were to terminate a license agreement for whatever reason, it would materially and adversely affect
our business, financial position and future prospects and you would likely lose the entirety of your investment in us. In some
cases, patent prosecution of our licensed technology is controlled solely by the Licensor. If the Licensor fails to obtain and
maintain patent or other protection for the proprietary intellectual property we license, we could lose our rights to the
intellectual property or our exclusivity with respect to those rights, and our competitors could market competing products using
the intellectual property. Licensing of intellectual property is of critical importance to our business and involves complex legal,
business and scientific issues. Disputes may arise regarding intellectual property subject to a licensing agreement, including but
not limited to: « the scope of rights granted under the license agreement and other interpretation- related issues; ¢ the extent to
which our technology and processes infringe on intellectual property of the Licensor that is not subject to the licensing
agreement; ¢ the sublicensing of patent and other rights;  our diligence obligations under each of the license agreements and
what activities satisfy those diligence obligations; ¢ the ownership of inventions and know- how resulting from the joint creation
or use of intellectual property by our licensors and us and our collaborators; and  the priority of invention of patented
technology. If disputes over intellectual property and other rights that we have licensed prevent or impair our ability to maintain
our current licensing arrangements on acceptable terms, we may be unable to successfully develop and commercialize the
affected product candidates. We are substantially dependent on the success of our product candidates, which may not receive
regulatory approval or be successfully commercialized. In the future, we plan to submit ALOO1 and ALZNO0O02 and, potentially,
other product candidates for regulatory approval. Currently, however, neither ALO01 nor ALZN002 has been submitted for
regulatory approval, which would be required before we seek to initiate commercial distribution. To date, we have invested
nearly all of our resources in establishing our company , acquiring and-the-aequisitton-of-the intellectual property of our product
candidates, ALOOI and ALZN002 and conducting certain preclinical studies and clinical trials . Our near- term prospects,
including our ability to finance our company and to enter into strategic collaborations and, ultimately, to generate revenue, are
directly dependent upon the successful development, FDA approval and commercialization of AL001 or ALZNO002. The
development and commercial success of our product will depend on a number of factors, including, without limitation, the
following: * our timely initiation and successful completion of preclinical studies and clinical trials for AL001 or ALZN002; »
our demonstration to the satisfaction of the FDA and comparable regulatory bodies of the safety and efficacy of AL001 or
ALZNO002, as well as to obtain regulatory and marketing approval for AL001 or ALZNO002 in the United States, Europe, the
United Kingdom and elsewhere; ¢ our continued compliance with all clinical and regulatory requirements applicable to AL001
and ALZNO002; « our maintenance of an acceptable safety profile of ALOO1 and ALZNO002 following regulatory approval;
competition with other treatments; - 26- ¢ our creation, maintenance and protection of our intellectual property portfolio,
including patents and trade secrets, and regulatory exclusivity for AL001 and ALZN002; —25-- the effectiveness of our and our
eventual partners’ marketing, sales and distribution strategy and operations; ¢ the ability of our third- party manufacturers to
manufacture supplies of our product and product candidates and to develop, validate and maintain commercially viable
manufacturing processes; ¢ our ability to launch commercial sales of AL001 or ALZN002 following regulatory approval,
whether alone or in collaboration with others; and ¢ the acceptance of ALO01 and ALZNO002 by physicians, health care payers,
patients and the medical community. Many of these factors are beyond our control, and we cannot assure you that we will ever
be able to generate sufficient revenue, or any revenue at all, from the sale of ALO01 or ALZNO002. Our failure in any of the
above factors, or in successfully commercializing ALO01 or ALZNOO2 on a timely basis, could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition, and the value of your investment could substantially decline. AL001
and ALZNO002 may not achieve market acceptance, which would significantly limit our ability to generate revenue. Even if we
develop AL001 or ALZNO002 and gain regulatory approvals for either or both candidates, unless physicians and patients accept
our product candidates, we may not be able to sell them, whether directly or indirectly, and generate significant revenues. We
cannot assure you that AL001, ALZNOO2 or any other potential product candidates we may eventually develop will achieve
market acceptance and revenue if and when they obtain the requisite regulatory approvals. Market acceptance of any product
candidate depends on a number of factors, including but not limited to:  the indication and warnings approved by regulatory
authorities in the product label; « continued demonstration to the FDA of safety and efficacy in commercial use; * physicians’
willingness to prescribe the product; « reimbursement from third- party payers such as government health care systems and
insurance companies; * the price of the product; * the nature of any post- approval risk management plans mandated by
regulatory authorities; * competition; and * the effectiveness of marketing and distribution support. Any failure by AL001 or
ALZNO002 to achieve market acceptance or commercial success could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition. Problems in the manufacturing process, failure to comply with manufacturing regulations or
unexpected increases in manufacturing costs could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. We are
responsible for the manufacture and supply of AL001 and ALZNO0O02 independently of each other. The manufacturing of AL001
and ALZNO002 necessitates compliance with applicable regulatory requirements of the FDA and the European Union, as well as
with international cGMP and other international regulatory requirements. As of the date of this Annual Report, we do not have
our own manufacturing facilities. We have contracted with a third- party manufacturer for the clinical supply of AL001 using
GMP manufacturing for our planned AL0O1 clinical trials and plan to contract with established third parties for the long- term
commercial production of AL001 and ALZNO002. The responsibility to obtain market authorization for ALO01 and ALZN002
remains with us. As such, even if we could potentially have a claim against one or more third parties, we are legally liable for
any noncompliance related to ALO01 and ALZNO002 and we expect to retain legal responsibility for any future product



candidates as well. Additionally, we may have limited control over the associated manufacturing costs and potential unexpected
increases in those costs over time. If costs increase, we may choose to pass on such costs to our customers, which could reduce
our ability to compete by increasing the prices of our products (which we expect to be priced at a significant premium over
competing generic products). See “ Risks Related to Our Business and Industry — We expect to face substantial competition,
with other entities possibly discovering, developing or commercializing products before, or more successfully than, we do. ” If
we cannot pass on all such costs to our customers, then our profitability would be adversely affected.- 26-27 - If we are unable
to manufacture, or contract to manufacture, ALO01 and ALZNO002 in accordance with regulatory specifications, or if there are
disruptions in the manufacturing process due to damage, loss or failure to meet regulatory requirements (including passing
inspections) of manufacturing facilities, we may not be able to meet the demand for our products or supply sufficient product for
use in clinical trials, and this may harm our ability to commercialize ALO01 and ALZN002 on a timely or cost- competitive
basis, or preclude us from doing so at all, which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Before
we or any future commercial partners can begin commercial manufacture of AL001 and ALZNOO2 or any other product
candidate that we may develop in the future, we must obtain FDA regulatory approval for the product, which requires a
successful FDA inspection of our manufacturing facilities (or those we contract with) and the development of quality systems,
among other requirements. Even if we successfully pass an FDA Pre- Approval Inspection of any manufacturing facilities we
may establish or contract with, our pharmaceutical facilities would be subject to unannounced inspection by the FDA and
foreign regulatory authorities to ensure ongoing manufacturing compliance, even after product approval. Due to the complexity
of the processes that we anticipate will eventually be used to manufacture AL0O01 and ALZN002, we may be unable to pass
federal, state or international regulatory inspections in a cost- effective manner, whether initially or at any time thereafter. If we
are unable to comply with manufacturing regulations, we may be subject to fines, unanticipated compliance expenses, recall or
seizure of any approved products, or legal actions such as injunctions or criminal or civil prosecution. These possible sanctions
could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. See also ““ Risks Related to
Development and Regulatory Approval of Our Product. ” The regulatory approval process is uncertain, requires us to utilize
significant financial, physical and human resources, and may prevent us or our future commercial partners from obtaining
approvals for the commercialization of some or all of our product candidates. Serious adverse events or other safety risks could
require us to abandon development and preclude, delay or limit approval of AL001 or ALZN002, or limit the scope of any
approved label or market acceptance. If AL0O01, ALZNO002 or any other product candidate that we may develop in the future,
prior to or after any approval for commercial sale, causes serious or unexpected side effects, or become associated with other
safety risks such as misuse, abuse or diversion, a number of potentially significant negative consequences could result,
including, without limitation, that: * regulatory authorities may interrupt, delay or halt clinical trials;  regulatory authorities may
deny regulatory approval of ALO01 or ALZNO02; « regulatory authorities may require certain labeling statements, such as
warnings or contraindications or limitations on the indications for use, or impose restrictions on distribution in the form of
REMS in connection with approval, if any; ¢ regulatory authorities may withdraw their approval, require more onerous labeling
statements or impose a more restrictive REMS of any product that is approved; « we may be required to change the way the
product is administered or conduct additional clinical trials; * any relationships that we may be able to form in the future with
any commercial partners may suffer; « we could be sued and held liable for harm caused to patients; and * our reputation may
suffer. We may voluntarily suspend or terminate our clinical trials if at any time we believe that they present an unacceptable
risk to participants or if preliminary data demonstrate that either AL001 or ALZNO002 is unlikely to receive regulatory approval
or is unlikely to be successfully commercialized. In addition, regulatory agencies, an Ethics Committee or Institutional Review
Board (an “ IRB ”), or data safety monitoring boards may at any time recommend the temporary or permanent discontinuation
of our clinical trials or request that we cease using investigators in the clinical trials if they believe that the clinical trials are not
being conducted in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements, or that they present an unacceptable safety risk to
participants. If we elect or are forced to suspend or terminate a clinical trial of AL0O01, ALZNO002 or any other product candidate
that we may in the future develop, the commercial prospects for that product will be harmed and our ability to generate product
revenue from that product may be delayed or eliminated. Furthermore, any of these events could prevent us or our partners from
achieving or maintaining market acceptance of the affected product and could substantially increase the costs of
commercializing ALOO1 or ALZN002 and materially impair our ability to generate revenue from the commercialization of
ALO001 or ALZNO002 either by us or by any future commercial partners with which we may develop a relationship, which and
could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.- 2728 - If we fail
to obtain and sustain an adequate level of reimbursement for our products by third- party payers, sales and profitability will be
adversely affected. The course of medical treatment for human patients is, and will continue to be, expensive. We expect that
most patients and their families will not be capable of paying for our potential products themselves. Accordingly, it is unlikely
that there will be a commercially viable market for ALO01 or ALZNO0O02, if approved, without reimbursement and coverage
from third- party payers. Obtaining reimbursement approval and coverage from third- party payers is a time consuming and
expensive process, and we cannot be certain that reimbursement will be approved and coverage obtained for our current product
candidates or any other product candidate we may develop. Additionally, even if there is some form of reimbursement and
coverage from third- party payers, if the level of third- party reimbursement is insufficient from the patient’ s perspective or
coverage is limited, our revenue and gross margins will be materially and adversely affected. A current trend in the U. S. health
care industry, as well as in other countries around the world, is toward cost containment. Large public and private payers,
managed care organizations, group purchasing organizations and similar organizations are exerting increasing influence on
decisions regarding the use of, and reimbursement levels for, particular treatments. Third- party payers, such as government
programs, including Medicare in the United States, and private health care insurers, carefully review and have increasingly been
challenging the coverage of, and prices charged for, medical products and services. Many third- party payers limit coverage of



or reimbursement for newly- approved health care products. Reimbursement rates and coverage from private health insurance
companies vary depending on the company, the insurance plan and other factors. Cost- control initiatives could decrease the
price we or our partners establish for products, which could result in lower product revenue and profitability. Reimbursement
systems in international markets vary significantly by country and by region, and reimbursement approvals must be obtained on
a country- by- country basis. Our eventual partners may elect to reduce the price of our products in order to increase the
likelihood of obtaining reimbursement approvals. In many countries, products cannot be commercially launched until
reimbursement is approved and the negotiation process in some countries can exceed 12 months. In addition, pricing and
reimbursement decisions in certain countries can be affected by decisions taken in other countries, which can lead to mandatory
price reductions and / or additional reimbursement restrictions across a number of other countries, which may adversely affect
our sales and profitability. If countries set prices that are not sufficient to allow us or our partners to generate a profit, our
partners may refuse to launch the product in such countries or withdraw the product from the market, which would adversely
affect our sales and profitability and could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition. Risks Related to Development and Regulatory Approval of Our Drug Candidates The regulatory approval process is
uncertain, requires us to utilize significant resources, and may prevent us or our future commercial partners from obtaining
approvals for the commercialization of AL0O01 or ALZNO002. The research, testing, manufacturing, labeling, approval, sale,
marketing and testing of ALO01 and ALZNO002 are and will be subject to extensive regulation by regulatory authorities in the
United States, Europe and elsewhere, and regulatory requirements applicable to our product differ from country to country.
Neither we nor any commercial partner will be permitted to market any of our current or future product candidates in the United
States until we receive approval from the FDA of either a NDA or BLA for AL001 and ALZNO002, respectively. Obtaining
approval of an NDA or a BLA is an uncertain process that requires us to utilize significant resources. Furthermore, regulatory
authorities possess broad discretion regarding processing time and usually request additional information and raise questions
which have to be answered. There is considerable uncertainty regarding the times at which products may be approved and we
have no control over the FDA review process. In addition, failure to comply with FDA and other applicable U. S. and foreign
regulatory requirements may subject us to administrative or judicially imposed sanctions, including: warning letters, civil and
criminal penalties, injunctions, withdrawal of approved products from the market, product seizure or detention, product recalls,
total or partial suspension of production, and refusal to approve pending applications or supplements to approved applications.
Even if we fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations, the FDA may still determine that our clinical data are
insufficient for final approval of an NDA or BLA. The process required by the FDA and most foreign regulatory authorities
before human health care pharmaceuticals may be marketed generally involves nonclinical laboratory and, in some cases,
animal tests; submission of an IND, which must become effective before clinical trials may begin; adequate and well- controlled
human clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the proposed drug for its intended use or uses; pre- approval
inspection of manufacturing facilities and clinical trial sites; and FDA approval of an NDA or BLA, which must occur before a
drug can be marketed or sold. Regulatory approval of an NDA or BLA, or any supplement thereof, is not guaranteed, and the
approval process requires us to utilize significant resources, could take several years, and is subject to the substantial discretion
of the FDA. Despite the time and expense exerted, failure can occur at any stage, and we could encounter problems that cause
us to abandon or have to repeat or perform additional studies. If our product or any of our future product candidates fails to
demonstrate safety and efficacy in our studies, or for any other reason does not gain regulatory approval, our business and results
of operations will be materially and adversely harmed.- 28-29 - In addition, separate regulatory approvals are required in order to
market any product in many jurisdictions, including the United States, the United Kingdom, European Economic Area, which
consists of the 27 Member States (known as the “ EU Member States ™) of the European Union plus Norway, Iceland and
Liechtenstein, and others. Approval procedures vary among countries and can involve additional studies and testing, and the
time required to obtain approval may differ from that required to obtain FDA approval. Studies conducted in one country may
not be accepted by regulatory authorities in other countries. Approval by the FDA does not ensure approval by regulatory
authorities in other countries, and approval by one or more foreign regulatory authorities does not ensure approval by regulatory
authorities in other foreign countries or by the FDA. However, a failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in one country
may have a negative effect on the regulatory process in others. The foreign regulatory approval process may include all of the
risks associated with obtaining FDA approval. We may be unable to file for regulatory approvals or do so on a timely basis and,
even if we are able to, we may not receive necessary approvals to commercialize our products in any market. Any of these
results could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. There is a high rate of
failure for drug candidates proceeding through clinical trials. Generally speaking, there is a high rate of failure for drug
candidates proceeding through clinical trials. We may suffer significant setbacks in our clinical trials similar to the experience of
a number of other companies in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries, even after receiving promising results in
earlier trials. Further, even if we view the results of a clinical trial to be positive, the FDA or other regulatory authorities may
disagree with our interpretation of the data. For instance, any such differing interpretation could cause the FDA to require
additional trials. In the event that: (i) we obtain negative or inconclusive results from the AL0O01 or ALZN002 from a clinical
trial; (ii) the FDA places a clinical hold on our clinical trials due to potential chemistry, manufacturing and controls issues or
other hurdles; or (iii) the FDA does not approve our NDA for ALOO1 or our BLA for ALZN002, then: « we may not be able to
generate sufficient revenue or obtain financing to continue our operations;  our ability to execute our current business plan will
be materially impaired; ¢ our reputation in the industry and in the investment community would likely be significantly damaged;
and ¢ the price of our common stock would likely decrease significantly. Any of these results could materially and adversely
affect our business, results of operations or financial condition. Most Nearly-every-attempt-attempts at drug approval for
Alzheimer’ s has-have failed. Despite billions of dollars invested by the NIH and the biopharmaceutical industry in research
programs to develop novel therapeutics for Alzheimer’ s, the FDA has only approved twe-three new drugs for Alzheimer’ s



since 2003; in June 2021, aducanumab (Biogen, Inc) received approval from the FDA for the treatment of Alzheimer’ s using
the accelerated approval pathway and-; in July 2023, Leqembi (Eisai) received full approval by the FDA for treatment of
Alzheimer’ s disease-; and in July 2024, Kisunla (Eli Lilly) received full approval by the FDA for treatment of Alzheimer’
s . Since 2003, many new types and classes of drugs have been developed and tested in Alzheimer’ s, including monoclonal
antibodies, gamma secretase modulators and inhibitors, - site amyloid precursor protein cleaving enzyme inhibitors, receptor
for advanced glycation end- products inhibitors, nicotinic partial agonists and allosteric modulators, serotonin subtype receptor
antagonists, and others. Except for Biogen’ s and-, Eisai > s and Eli Lilly ’ s approvals, referred to above, virtually all of these
scientific programs have failed in clinical testing. Clinical trials for ALO01 or ALZNOO2 can be expensive, time consuming,
uncertain and susceptible to change, delay or termination. Clinical trials are expensive, time consuming and difficult to design
and implement. The result of a clinical trial may be undesirable and can result in a clinical trial cancellation or the need for re-
evaluation and supplementation. Even if the results of our clinical trials are favorable, the clinical trials for ALOO1 or ALZNO002
are expected to continue for a few years and may even take significantly longer to complete. In addition, we, the FDA, an IRB,
or other regulatory authority, whether in the United States, European Union or elsewhere, may suspend, delay or terminate our
clinical trials at any time, for various reasons, including, without limitation: « lack of effectiveness of AL001 or ALZN002
during clinical trials; * discovery of serious or unexpected toxicities or side effects experienced by trial participants or other
safety issues; * slower than expected rates of subject recruitment and enrollment rates in clinical trials; - 30- ¢ difficulty in
retaining subjects who have initiated a clinical trial but may have withdrawn due to adverse side effects from the therapy,
insufficient efficacy, fatigue with the clinical trial process or for any other reason; —29-- delays or inability in manufacturing or
obtaining sufficient quantities of materials for use in clinical trials due to manufacturing or regulatory constraints; * inadequacy
of or changes in our manufacturing process or product formulation;  delays in obtaining regulatory authorization to commence a
trial, including experiencing “ clinical holds ” or delays requiring suspension or termination of a trial by a regulatory agency,
such as the FDA, before or after a trial is commenced; * changes in applicable regulatory policies and regulations; * delays or
failure in reaching agreement on acceptable terms in clinical trial contracts or protocols with prospective clinical trial sites; ¢
delay or failure to supply product for use in clinical trials which conforms to regulatory specification; * unfavorable results from
ongoing preclinical studies and clinical trials; « failure of any eentraetreseatreh-organizations(~CROs Z)-that we may partner
with in the future, or other third- party contractors, to comply with all contractual requirements or to perform their services in a
timely or acceptable manner; ¢ failure by us, our employees, any CROs or their employees to comply with all applicable FDA or
other regulatory requirements relating to the conduct of clinical trials; * scheduling conflicts with participating clinicians and
clinical institutions; « failure to design appropriate clinical trial protocols; or ¢ regulatory concerns with pharmaceutical products
generally and the potential for abuse. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition. See the risk factor “ There is a high rate of failure for drug candidates
proceeding through clinical trials ” above. If our products do not receive breakthrough therapy designation, it could potentially
increase the FDA’ s review time and adversely impact our development timeline. Even if the FDA grants breakthrough therapy
designation, it does not guarantee faster product development or FDA review and does not necessarily increase the likelihood of
the product candidates receiving approval from the FDA. Breakthrough therapy designation is reserved for drug or biologic
products that are intended to treat serious conditions and for which preliminary clinical evidence indicates that the candidate
may demonstrate a substantial improvement on one or more clinically significant endpoints over currently available therapies.
The benefits of receiving the designation include additional guidance from FDA throughout the development process, assistance
with designing clinical trials, and coordination with FDA senior managers and experienced review staff. We plan to seek
breakthrough therapy designation for both ALOO1 and ALZN002. However, we have neither received breakthrough therapy
designation nor have we qualified for expedited development, and no assurance can be given that we will. Even if we qualify
for breakthrough therapy designation or expedited development, it may not actually lead to faster development or expedited
regulatory review and approval or necessarily increase the likelihood that we will receive FDA approval. Even if we believe that
our products are strong candidates for breakthrough therapy designation, it is possible that the FDA may determine that our
preliminary clinical evidence is insufficient to justify breakthrough therapy designation. Without this designation, we would not
be able to benefit from the increased FDA guidance and assistance throughout the development process, and it is possible that
our development timeline could be extended. The breakthrough therapy designation, while at times advantageous for the
development process for the reasons identified above, may nevertheless have little or no positive impact on our development
process. There is no guarantee that, even with the FDA’ s assistance through the breakthrough therapy designation, that the
development process will be accelerated, the FDA will review or approve our submissions in a timely manner, or that our
product candidates will ultimately receive approval from the FDA. In summary, we cannot guarantee that our product
candidates will receive breakthrough therapy designations and, even if one does, we cannot guarantee that such designations will
have any bearing on the FDA’ s review or approval of our product candidates.- 36-31 - Even if we receive regulatory approval
for any of our future product candidates, we will be subject to ongoing FDA and other regulatory body obligations and
continued regulatory review, which may result in significant additional expense. Additionally, our product candidates, if
approved, will be subject to labeling and manufacturing requirements and could be subject to other restrictions. Failure to
comply with these regulatory requirements or the occurrence of unanticipated problems with our products could result in
significant penalties. Any regulatory approvals that we or any of our collaborators receive for AL001, ALZNO02 or any future
product candidate may be subject to conditions of approval or limitations on the approved indicated uses for which the product
may be marketed or may contain requirements for potentially costly surveillance to monitor the safety and efficacy of the
product candidate. In addition, AL001, ALZNO02 and any of our future product candidates, if approved by the FDA or other
regulatory bodies, will be subject to extensive and ongoing regulatory requirements regarding the manufacturing processes,
labeling, packaging, distribution, adverse event reporting, storage, advertising, promotion and recordkeeping. These



requirements will include submissions of safety and other post- marketing information and reports, registration, as well as
continued compliance with cGMP, Good Laboratory Practice and Good Clinical Practice, the three types of audits related to the
progressive stages needed to bring a pharmaceutical product to market, for any studies that we conduct post- approval. Later
discovery of previously unknown problems with a product, including adverse events of unanticipated severity or frequency, or
with our third- party manufacturers or manufacturing processes, or failure to comply with regulatory requirements, may result in,
among other things: ¢ restrictions on the marketing or manufacturing of the product, withdrawal of the product from the market,
or voluntary or mandatory product recalls; * fines, warning letters or holds on target studies; * refusal by the FDA or other
applicable regulatory body to approve pending applications or supplements to approved applications filed by us or our strategic
collaborators, or suspension or revocation of product license approvals; ¢ product seizure or detention, or refusal to permit the
import or export of products; and ¢ injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminal penalties. The policies of the FDA and other
regulatory bodies may change, and additional government regulations may be promulgated that could prevent, limit or delay
regulatory approval of AL001 or ALZN002. We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extent of government regulation that
may arise from future legislation or administrative action, either in the United States or elsewhere. If we are slow or unable to
adapt to changes in existing requirements or the adoption of new requirements or policies, or if we are not able to maintain
regulatory compliance, we may lose any marketing approval that we may have obtained, and we may not achieve or sustain
profitability, which would materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. AL0OO1 or
ALZNO002 and any of our future product candidates, if approved, may cause or contribute to adverse medical events that we are
required to report to the FDA and regulatory authorities in other countries and, if we fail to do so, we could be subject to
sanctions that would materially harm our business. If we are successful in commercializing ALO01, ALZN002 or any of our
future product candidates, regulations promulgated by the FDA and by the regulatory authorities in other countries require that
we report certain information about adverse medical events if those products may have caused or contributed to those adverse
events. The timing of our obligation to report would be triggered by the date we become aware of the adverse event as well as
the nature of the event. We may fail to report adverse events we become aware of within the prescribed timeframe. We may
also fail to appreciate that we have become aware of a reportable adverse event, especially if it is not reported to us as an
adverse event or if it is an adverse event that is unexpected or removed in time from the use of our products. If we fail to comply
with our reporting obligations, the FDA and regulatory authorities in other countries could take action including criminal
prosecution, the imposition of civil monetary penalties, seizure of our products, or delay in approval or clearance of future
products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Legislative or
regulatory reforms with respect to products may make it more difficult and costly for us to obtain regulatory clearance or
approval of AL001, ALZNO002 or any of our future product candidates and to produce, market, and distribute our products after
clearance or approval is obtained. From time to time, legislation is drafted and introduced in the U. S. Congress and lawmaking
bodies in other countries that could significantly change the statutory provisions governing the testing, regulatory clearance or
approval, manufacture, and marketing of regulated products. In addition, FDA regulations and guidance are often revised or
reinterpreted by the FDA in ways that may significantly affect our business and our products. Similar changes in regulations can
occur in other countries. Any new regulations or revisions or reinterpretations of existing regulations in the United States or in
other countries may impose additional costs or lengthen review times of AL001, ALZNO0O02 and any of our future product
candidates. We cannot determine what effect changes in regulations, statutes, legal interpretation or policies, when and if
promulgated, enacted or adopted may have on our business in the future. Such changes could, among other things, require: - 32-
« requests for additional endpoints or studies; —34— changes to manufacturing methods; * recall, replacement, or discontinuance
of certain products; and « additional record keeping. Each of these would likely entail substantial time and cost and could have a
material adverse effect on our ability to obtain regulatory approval for our product candidates. In addition, delays in receipt of or
failure to receive regulatory clearances or approvals for any future products could materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition. Our ability to market ALO01, ALZN002 and any future product candidates in the
United States, if approved, will be limited to use for the treatment of the indications for which they are approved, and if we
want to expand the indications for which we may market AL001, ALZN002 and any future product candidates, we will need to
obtain additional FDA approvals, which may not be granted. We plan to seek full FDA approval in the United States for AL001
and ALZN002 to treat neurodegeneratlve dlseases and psychlatrlc dlsorders lncludlng Alzheimer’ s —n-additionr, we-have
e—ND1 ; nt-of BD, MDD and PTSD. If AL0O1 or
ALZN002 is approved the FI DA will restrict our ablllty to market or advertise it for the treatment of indications other than the
one for which it is approved, which would limit its use. If we decide to attempt to develop, promote and commercialize new
treatment indications and protocols for AL001, ALZN002 and potentially other product candidates in the future, we could not
predict when, or if, we would ever receive the approvals required to do so. We would be required to conduct additional studies
to support such applications for additional use, which would consume additional resources and may produce results that do not
result in FDA approvals. If we do not obtain additional FDA approvals, our ability to expand our business in the United States
would be adversely affected, which could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition. The anticipated development of a REMS for ALOO1 or ALZNO002 could cause delays in the approval process and
would add additional layers of regulatory requirements that could impact our ability to commercialize ALO01 and ALZN002 in
the United States and reduce their market potential. As a condition of approval of an NDA or a BLA, the FDA may require a
REMS to ensure that the benefits of the drug outweigh the potential risks. REMS elements can include medication guides,
communication plans for health care professionals, and elements to assure safe use (“ ETASU ”). ETASU’ s can include, but are
not limited to, special training or certification for prescribing or dispensing, dispensing only under certain circumstances, special
monitoring, and the use of patient registries. Moreover, product approval may require substantial post- approval testing and
surveillance to monitor the drug’ s safety or efficacy. We may be required to adopt a REMS for AL001 or ALZNO002 to ensure




that the benefits outweigh the risks of abuse, misuse, diversion and other potential safety concerns. Even if the risk of abuse,
misuse or diversion are not as high as for some other products, there can be no assurance that the FDA will approve a
manageable REMS for AL001 or ALZN002, which could create material and significant limits on our ability to successfully
commercialize AL0O01 and ALZNO02 in the U. S. Delays in the REMS approval process could result in delays in the NDA or
BLA approval process, respectively. In addition, as part of the REMS, the FDA could require significant restrictions, such as
restrictions on the prescription, distribution and patient use of the product, which could significantly impact our ability to
effectively commercialize ALO0O1 or ALZN002, and dramatically reduce their market potential thereby adversely impacting our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Even if initial REMS are not highly restrictive, if, after launch, AL001,
ALZNO002 and other drug candidates were to become subject to significant abuse / non- medical use or diversion from licit
channels, this could lead to negative regulatory consequences, including a more restrictive REMS, which could materially and
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. If we are found in violation of “ fraud and abuse ”
laws, we may be subject to criminal and civil penalties and / or be suspended or excluded from participation in government- run
health care programs, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. If we are
successful in obtaining marketing approval for our products in the United States and elsewhere, we will be subject to various
health care “ fraud and abuse ” laws, including anti- kickback laws, false claims laws and other laws intended to reduce fraud
and abuse in government- run health care programs, which could materially and adversely affect us, particularly upon successful
commercialization of our products in the United States. For example, the federal Anti- Kickback Statute makes it illegal for any
person, including a prescription drug manufacturer (or a party acting on its behalf), to knowingly and willfully solicit, receive,
offer or pay any remuneration that is intended to induce the referral of business, including the purchase, order or prescription of
a particular drug for which payment may be made under a U. S. health care program such as Medicare or Medicaid. Under U. S.
federal government regulations, some arrangements, known as safe harbors, are deemed not to violate the Anti- Kickback
Statute. Compliance with every element of a safe harbor regulation is required for the arrangement to be protected. However,
arrangements that do not comply with a safe harbor are not per se illegal. Instead, they will be analyzed on a case- by- case
basis. Although we intend to seek to structure our business arrangements in compliance with all applicable requirements, these
laws are broadly written, and it is often difficult to determine precisely how the law will be applied in specific circumstances.
Accordingly, it is possible that our practices may be challenged under the Anti- Kickback Statute and similar laws in other
jurisdictions.- 32-33 - Further, false claims laws prohibit anyone from knowingly and willfully presenting or causing to be
presented for payment to third- party payers, including government payers, reimbursement claims for drugs or services that are
false or fraudulent, claims for items or services that were not provided as claimed, or claims for medically unnecessary items or
services. Cases have been brought under false claims laws alleging that off- label promotion of pharmaceutical products or the
payment of kickbacks by pharmaceutical providers has resulted in the submission of false claims to governmental health care
programs. Under laws such as the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 in the United States, we are
prohibited from knowingly and willfully executing a scheme to defraud any health care benefit program, including private
payers, or knowingly and willfully falsifying, concealing or covering up a material fact or making any materially false, fictitious
or fraudulent statement in connection with the delivery of or payment for health care benefits, items or services. Violations of
fraud and abuse laws may be punishable by criminal and / or civil sanctions, including fines and / or exclusion or suspension
from government- run health care programs such as Medicare and Medicaid and debarment from contracting with the U. S. and
other governments. In addition, in the United States, individuals have the ability to bring actions on behalf of the government
and potentially share in the recovery under the federal False Claims Act as well as under state false claims laws. Many states in
the United States have adopted fraud and abuse laws similar to their federal counterparts, including laws similar to the Anti-
Kickback Statute, some of which apply to the referral of patients for health care services reimbursed by any source, not just
governmental payers. In addition, California and some other states in the United States have passed laws that require
pharmaceutical companies to comply with the April 2003 Office of Inspector General Compliance Program Guidance for
Pharmaceutical Manufacturers and / or the Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America Code on Interactions with
Health Care Professionals. In addition, several states impose other marketing restrictions or require pharmaceutical companies to
make marketing or price disclosures to the state. There are ambiguities as to what is required to comply with these state
requirements and if we fail to comply with an applicable state law requirement, we could be subject to penalties. We have yet to
receive definitive guidance on the application of fraud and abuse laws to our business. Law enforcement authorities are
increasingly focused on enforcing these laws, and it is possible that some of our future practices may be challenged under these
laws. While we believe we will be able to structure our business arrangements to comply with these laws, it is possible that the
government could in the future allege violations of, or convict us of violating, these laws. If we are found in violation of one of
these laws, we could be required to pay a penalty and could be suspended or excluded from participation in certain government-
run health care programs, and our business, results of operations and financial condition may be materially and adversely
affected. RisksRelated-to-OurBusiness-andHndustey-If we fail to attract and keep senior management and key scientific
personnel, we may be unable to successfully develop AL001, ALZNO002 or any future product candidates, conduct our in-
licensing and development efforts or commercialize AL001, ALZNOO2 or any of our future product candidates. Our future
growth and success depend in part on our continued ability to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified management and
scientific personnel. We are highly dependent upon our senior management, particularly Stephan Jackman, our Chief Executive
Officer, David J. Katzoff, our Chief Financial Officer, Kenneth S. Cragun, our Senior Vice President of Finance and Henry
Nisser, our Executive Vice President and General Counsel. The loss of services of any of these individuals could delay or
prevent the successful development of our current or future product pipeline, completion of our planned development efforts or
the commercialization of ALO01 or ALZNO002. It is possible that current or former employees of ours could put forward claims
for an alleged right to our patents and demand compensation therefor. If one or more of the key personnel were to leave us and



engage in competing operations, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely
affected. We expect to face substantial competition, with other entities possibly discovering, developing or commercializing
products before, or more successfully than, we do. The development, FDA approval and commercialization of new therapy and
vaccine products is highly competitive. We will face competition with respect to AL001, ALZNO002 and any other product
candidates that we may seek to develop or commercialize in the future, from major pharmaceutical companies, specialty
pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies worldwide. In addition to existing therapeutic treatments for the
indications we are targeting with AL001 and ALZNO002, we also face potential competition from other drug candidates in
development by other companies. Our potential competitors include, without limitation, large health care companies, such as
Biogen Inc., Eisai Co., Ltd., Takeda Pharmaceuticals, Bristol Myers Squibb, Pfizer Inc., Merck & Co., Inc., Sanofi S. A., Eli
Lilly and Company, Bayer AG, Novartis AG, Johnson and Johnson and Boehringer Ingelheim GmbH. We also know of several
smaller early- stage companies that are developing products for use in our segment of the market. Some of the potential
competitive compounds referred to above are being developed by large, well- financed and established pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies or have been partnered with such companies, which may give them development, regulatory and
marketing advantages over our products.- 33-34 - Our commercial opportunity could be reduced or eliminated if our competitors
develop and commercialize products that are safer, more effective, have fewer or less severe side effects, are more convenient or
are less expensive than any products that we may develop. Our competitors also may obtain FDA or other regulatory approval
for their products more rapidly than we may obtain approval for ours, which could result in our competitors establishing a
strong market position before we are able to enter the market. In addition, our ability to compete may be affected in many cases
by insurers or other third- party payers seeking to encourage the use of generic products. If ALO01 or ALZNO002 achieves
marketing approval, we expect that it will be priced at a significant premium over competing generic products. Some of the
companies against which we are competing or against which we may compete in the future have significantly greater financial,
physical and human resources and expertise in research and development, manufacturing, preclinical testing, conducting clinical
trials, obtaining regulatory approvals and marketing approved products than we do. Mergers and acquisitions in the
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries may result in even more resources being concentrated among a smaller number of
our competitors. Smaller and other early- stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through
collaborative arrangements with large and established companies. These third parties compete with us in recruiting and retaining
qualified scientific and management personnel, establishing clinical trial sites and patient registration for clinical trials, as well
as in acquiring technologies complementary to, or necessary for, our programs. If we are unable to compete successfully, we
may be unable to grow and sustain our revenue, which could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition. Changes in funding for the FDA and other government agencies could hinder their ability to hire and
retain key leadership and other personnel, or otherwise prevent our product candidates from being developed or commercialized
in a timely manner, which could negatively impact our business. We rely on the FDA to assist with the development of our
product candidates. The ability of the FDA to review and approve new drug products can be affected by a variety of factors
outside of our control, including government budget and funding levels, ability to hire and retain key personnel and accept the
payment of user fees, and statutory, regulatory, and policy changes. Average review times at the agency have fluctuated in
recent years as a result. In addition, government funding of other government agencies that fund research and development
activities is subject to the political process, which is inherently fluid and unpredictable. Disruptions at the FDA and other
agencies may also slow the time necessary for our product candidates to be reviewed and / or potentially approved by necessary
government agencies, which would adversely affect our business. For example, over the last several years, including for 35 days
beginning on December 22, 2018, the U. S. government has shut down several times and certain regulatory agencies, such as the
FDA, have had to furlough critical FDA employees and stop critical activities. If a prolonged government shutdown occurs, it
could significantly impact the ability of the FDA to timely review and process our regulatory submissions, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business. If the timing of FDA’ s review and approval of new products is delayed, the estimated
timing of our drug development program may be delayed which would materially increase costs of drug development and harm
our operations or business. Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property We may be forced to litigate to enforce or defend our
intellectual property rights, or the intellectual property rights of our licensors. We may be forced to litigate to enforce or defend
our intellectual property rights against infringement and unauthorized use by competitors. In so doing, we may place our
intellectual property at risk of being invalidated, held unenforceable, or narrowed in scope. Further, an adverse result in any
litigation or defense proceedings may place pending applications at risk of non- issuance. In addition, if any licensor fails to
enforce or defend its intellectual property rights, this may adversely affect our ability to develop and commercialize AL001 or
ALZNO002 as well as our ability to prevent competitors from making, using, and selling competing products. Any such litigation
could be very costly and could distract our management from focusing on operating our business. The existence or outcome of
any such litigation could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, because of the
substantial amount of discovery required in connection with intellectual property litigation, there is a risk that some of our
confidential and proprietary information could be compromised by disclosure during this type of litigation. In addition, there
could be public announcements of the results of hearings, motions or other interim proceedings or developments. If securities
analysts or investors perceive these results to be negative, it could have a material adverse effect on the price of our common
stock.- 34-35 - We may be unable to adequately prevent disclosure of trade secrets and other proprietary information. We rely on
trade secrets to protect our proprietary know- how and technological advances, especially where we do not believe patent
protection is appropriate or obtainable. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect. We rely in part on confidentiality
agreements with our employees, consultants, outside scientific collaborators, sponsored researchers and other advisors to protect
our trade secrets and other proprietary information. These agreements may not effectively prevent disclosure of confidential
information and may not provide an adequate remedy in the event of unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. In



addition, others may independently discover our trade secrets and proprietary information. Costly and time- consuming
litigation could be necessary to enforce and determine the scope of our proprietary rights. Failure to obtain or maintain trade
secret protection or failure to adequately protect our intellectual property could enable competitors to develop generic products
or use our proprietary information to develop other products that compete with our products or cause additional, material
adverse effects upon our business, results of operations and financial condition. The transfer of technology and knowledge to
contract manufacturers pursuant to the production of our products also creates a risk of uncontrolled distribution and copying of
concepts, methods and processes relating to our products. Such uncontrolled distribution and copying could have a material
adverse effect on the value of our products if used for the production of competing drugs or otherwise used commercially
without our obtaining financial compensation. We may become subject to third parties’ claims alleging infringement of patents
and proprietary rights or seeking to invalidate our patents or proprietary rights, which would be costly, time- consuming and, if
successfully asserted against us, delay or prevent the development and commercialization of AL001 or ALZN002. There has
been substantial litigation and other proceedings regarding patent and other intellectual property rights in the pharmaceutical
industry, as well as patent challenge proceedings, including interference and administrative law proceedings before the USPTO
and the European Patent Office (“ EPO ™), and oppositions and other comparable proceedings in other jurisdictions. Recently,
under U. S. patent reform laws, new procedures including inter partes review and post grant review have been implemented. As
stated below, the novel implementation of such laws presents uncertainty regarding the outcome of challenges to our patents in
the future. We cannot assure you that ALO01, ALZNO002 or any of our future product candidates will not infringe existing or
future patents. We may be unaware of patents that have already been issued that a third party might assert are infringed by
ALO001, ALZNOO2 or one of our future product candidates. Because patent applications can take many years to issue and may be
confidential for 18 months or more after filing, there may be applications now pending of which we are unaware of and which
may later result in issued patents that we may infringe by commercializing AL001, ALZN002 or any of our future product
candidates. In addition, third parties may obtain patents in the future and claim that use of our technologies infringes upon these
patents. Moreover, we may face claims from non- practicing entities (commonly referred to as patent trolls), which have no
relevant product revenue and against whom our own patent portfolio may thus have no deterrent effect. We may be subject to
third- party claims in the future against us or our collaborators that would cause us to incur substantial expenses and, if
successful against us, could cause us to pay substantial damages, including treble damages and attorney’ s fees if we are found
to be willfully infringing a third party’ s patents. If a patent infringement suit were brought against us or our collaborators, we or
our collaborators could be forced to stop or delay research, development, manufacturing or sales of AL001 or ALZN002. As a
result of patent infringement claims, or in order to avoid potential claims, we or our collaborators may choose to seek, or be
required to seek, a license from the third party and would most likely be required to pay license fees or royalties or both. These
licenses may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. Even if we or our collaborators were able to obtain a license, the
rights may be nonexclusive, which would give our competitors access to the same intellectual property. Ultimately, we could be
prevented from commercializing a product, or forced to redesign it, or to cease some aspect of our business operations if, as a
result of actual or threatened patent infringement claims, we or our collaborators are unable to enter into licenses on acceptable
terms. Even if we are successful in defending such claims, infringement and other intellectual property litigation can be
expensive and time- consuming to litigate and divert management’ s attention from our core business. Any of these events could
harm our business significantly. In addition to infringement claims against us, if third parties have prepared and filed patent
applications in the U. S. that also claim technology to which we have rights, we may have to participate in interference
proceedings in the USPTO to determine the priority of invention. Third parties may also attempt to initiate reexamination, post
grant review or inter partes review of our patents in the USPTO. We may also become involved in similar opposition
proceedings in the EPO or comparable offices in other jurisdictions regarding our intellectual property rights with respect to our
products and technology. Any of these claims could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition. If our efforts to protect the proprietary nature of the intellectual property related to AL001, ALZNOO2 or any
of our potential future product candidates are not adequate, we may not be able to compete effectively in our market. We expect
to rely upon a combination of patents, trade secret protection as well as confidentiality and license agreements to protect the
intellectual property related to our product and our current product candidates and our development programs. - 36-
Composition- of- matter patents on an active pharmaceutical ingredient are generally considered to be the strongest form of
intellectual property protection for pharmaceutical products, as such patents provide protection without regard to any particular
method of use or manufacture. We cannot be certain that the claims in any patent application that we may submit covering
composition- of- matter of AL001, ALZNO002 and any potential future product candidates will be considered patentable by the
USPTO and courts in the U. S., or by the patent offices and courts in foreign countries. Method- of- use patents protect the use
of a product for the specified method. This type of patent does not prevent a competitor from making and marketing a product
that is identical to our product for an indication that is outside the scope of the patented method. =35=The strength of patents
involves complex legal and scientific questions and can be uncertain. The patent applications that we may in the future own or
license may fail to result in issued patents in the United States or in other foreign countries. Even if the patents do-are
successfully tssue-issued , third parties may challenge the validity, enforceability or scope thereof, which may result in such
patents being narrowed, invalidated or held unenforceable. Furthermore, even if they are unchallenged, any of our future patents
and patent applications may not adequately protect our intellectual property or prevent others from designing around our claims.
If the breadth or strength of protection provided by the patent applications we may own, license or pursue with respect to
AL001, ALZNO002 or any future product candidates is threatened, it could threaten our ability to commercialize ALOOI,
ALZNO002 or any future product candidates. Further, if we encounter delays in our development efforts, the period of time
during which we could market AL001, ALZNO002 or any future product candidates under patent protection would be reduced.
Since patent applications in the U. S. and most other countries are confidential for a period of time after filing, we cannot be



certain that we were the first to file any patent application related to AL001, ALZNO002 or any future product candidates. Even
where laws provide protection, costly and time- consuming litigation could be necessary to enforce and determine the scope of
our proprietary rights, and the outcome of such litigation would be uncertain. Moreover, any actions we may bring to enforce
our intellectual property against our competitors could provoke them to bring counterclaims against us, and some of our
competitors have substantially greater intellectual property portfolios than we have. We will also rely on trade secret protection
and confidentiality agreements to protect proprietary know- how that is not patentable, processes for which patents are difficult
to enforce and any other elements of our product development processes that involve proprietary know- how, information or
technology that is not covered by patents. Although we endeavor to execute confidentiality agreements with all of our
employees, consultants, advisors and any third parties who have access to our proprietary know- how, information or
technology, we cannot be certain that we have executed such agreements with all parties who may have helped to develop our
intellectual property or had access to our proprietary information, nor that our agreements will not be breached. We cannot
guarantee that our trade secrets and other confidential proprietary information will not be disclosed or that competitors will not
otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or independently develop substantially equivalent information and techniques. Further,
the laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent or in the same manner as the laws of the
United States or the European Union. As a result, we may encounter significant problems in protecting and defending our
intellectual property not only in the United States and the European Union, but elsewhere as well. If we are unable to prevent
material disclosure of the intellectual property related to our technologies to third parties, we will not be able to establish or
maintain a competitive advantage in our market, which could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition and any disclosure to or misappropriation by third parties of our confidential proprietary information
could enable competitors to quickly duplicate or surpass our technological achievements, thus eroding our competitive position
in our market. Changes in patent law could diminish the value of patents in general, thereby impairing our ability to protect
ALO00I and ALZNO002. As is the case with other biopharmaceutical companies, our success will be heavily dependent on
intellectual property, particularly patents. Obtaining and enforcing patents in the biopharmaceutical industry involves both
technological and legal complexity. Therefore, obtaining and enforcing biopharmaceutical patents is costly, time- consuming
and inherently uncertain. In addition, the U. S. has recently enacted and is currently implementing wide- ranging patent reform
legislation. The U. S. Supreme Court has ruled on several patent cases in recent years, either narrowing the scope of patent
protection available in certain circumstances or weakening the rights of patent owners in other situations. In addition to
increasing uncertainty with regard to our ability to obtain patents in the future, this combination of events has created uncertainty
with respect to the value of patents, once obtained. Depending on decisions by the U. S. Congress, the federal courts, and the
USPTO, the laws and regulations governing patents could change in ways that would weaken our ability to obtain patents and to
enforce patents that we might obtain in the future. Similarly, changes in EU patent law and elsewhere could negatively affect the
value of our patents registered outside of the U. S. Obtaining and maintaining our patent protection depends on compliance with
various procedural, document submission, fee payment and other requirements imposed by governmental patent agencies, and
our patent protection could be reduced or eliminated for non- compliance with any of these requirements. The USPTO and
various foreign governmental patent agencies require compliance with a number of procedural, documentary, fee payment and
other provisions during the patent process. There are situations in which noncompliance can result in abandonment or lapse of a
patent or patent application, resulting in partial or complete loss of patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. In such an event,
competitors might be able to enter the market earlier than would otherwise have been the case, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.- 36-37 - We may not be able to protect our
intellectual property rights throughout the world. Filing, prosecuting and defending patents on ALO01, ALZN002 and any future
product candidates throughout the world is prohibitively expensive. Competitors may use our technologies in jurisdictions
where we have not obtained patent protection to develop their own products and, further, may export otherwise infringing
products to territories where we have patent protection, but where enforcement is not as strong as that in the U. S. These
products may compete with our products in jurisdictions where we do not have any issued or licensed patents and our patent
claims or other intellectual property rights may not be effective or sufficient to prevent them from se-competing. Many
companies have encountered significant problems in protecting and defending intellectual property rights in foreign
jurisdictions. The legal systems of certain countries, particularly certain developing countries, do not favor the enforcement of
patents and other intellectual property protection, particularly those relating to biopharmaceuticals, which could make it difficult
for us to stop the infringement of our patents or marketing of competing products in violation of our proprietary rights generally.
Proceedings to enforce our patent rights in foreign jurisdictions could result in substantial cost and divert our efforts and
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liabilities and may be required to limit the commercialization of AL0O01 or ALZN002. We and our partners face potential
product liability exposure related to the testing of ALO01 or ALZNO0O02 in clinical trials. We will face exposure to claims by an
even greater number of persons if we begin to market and distribute our products commercially in the U. S. and elsewhere,
including those relating to misuse of ALOO1 or ALZNO002. Now, and in the future, an individual may bring a liability claim
against us alleging that AL0OO1 or ALZNO002 caused an injury. While we intend to take what we believe to be appropriate
precautions, we may be unable to avoid significant liability if any product liability lawsuit is brought against us. If we cannot
successfully defend ourselves against product liability claims, we will incur substantial liabilities. Even if we successfully
defend any such action, the costs associated with such defense could prove exorbitant. Regardless of merit or eventual outcome,
liability claims may result in: ¢ decreased demand for ALOO1 or ALZNO0O02 (if such product candidate had been approved and
gone to market); * injury to our reputation; * withdrawal of clinical trial participants; ¢ costs of related litigation;  substantial
monetary awards to patients and others; ¢ increased cost of liability insurance; =—37= loss of revenue; and ¢ our inability to
successfully commercialize our products. Further, in the future there may be a need to expand the scope of our insurance
coverage, which could result in significantly increased costs or the inability to obtain sufficient insurance coverage. Any of these
occurrences could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Risks Related to
Our Affiliates” Control and Relationships Insiders currently have substantial influence over us, which could limit your ability to
affect the outcome of key transactions, including a change of control. In the aggregate, beneficial ownership of the shares of our
common stock by our directors and executive officers and their respective affiliated parties represents approximately 49-60 . 5 %
of the outstanding shares of our common stock. As a result, these stockholders, if they act together, will be able to influence our
management and affairs and all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of
significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in
control of our company and might affect the market price of our common stock. - 38- Members of the Board of Directors and
executive officers of our company and AULT, contain some of the same individuals, which may present potential conflicts of
interest. Our-eompany-is-eontroted-by-Milton C. (Todd) Ault I1I, our Founder, and Vice Chairman Emeritus-and-eonsultant,
has significant influence over our Company , directly and indirectly through his controlling equity interest in Ault &
Company, Inc. (“ Ault & Co. ”), the parent of Ault Life Sciences, Inc. (““ ALSI ) and Ault Life Sciences Fund, LLC (“ ALSF
”). Mr. Ault is also the Executive Chairman and single largest stockholder (through his control of Ault Adpha; =P-& Co. ) of
AULT, a publicly —traded diversified holding company focused primarily on digital mining of Bitcoin and its metaverse
platferm;ettexplorationcrane services, defense / acrospace, industrial, automotive, medical / biopharma, eensumer-eleetrontes;
hotel operations and textiles. The Board of Directors (¢ Board ) and executive officers of our company and the board of
directors and executive officers of AULT contain some of the same individuals, all of whom devote a portion of their business
and professional time and efforts to the respective businesses of our company as well as AULT. In addition to Mr. Ault,
William B. Horne, the Chairman of the Board ef-eureompany-, is the Chief Executive Officer and a director of AULT, Henry
Nisser, our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and a director of our company, is the President, General Counsel and a
director of AULT and Kenneth S. Cragun, our Senior Vice President of Finance is the Chief Financial Officer of AULT. While
we believe that our business and technologies are distinguishable from those of AULT and that we do not compete in the
markets in which AULT compete, Mr. Ault and the other named individuals may have potential conflicts of interest with respect
to, among other things, potential corporate opportunities, business combinations, joint ventures and / or other business
opportunities that may become available to them, our company or AULT. Moreover, while Mr. Ault and the other named
individuals have agreed to devote a portion of their business and professional time and efforts to our company, potential
conflicts of interest also include the amount of time and effort devoted by each of them to the affairs of AULT. We may be
materially adversely affected if Mr. Ault and / or the other named individuals choose to place the interests of AULT before those
of our company. Each of Mr. Ault and the other named individuals has agreed that, to the extent such opportunities arise, he will
carefully consider a number of factors, including whether such opportunities were presented to him in his capacity as an officer
or director of our company, whether such opportunities are within our company’ s line of business or consistent with our
strategic objectives and whether our company will be able to undertake or benefit from such opportunities. In addition, our
Board efBireetors-has adopted a policy whereby any future transactions between us and any of our affiliates, officers, directors,
principal stockholders or any affiliates of the foregoing will be on terms no less favorable to our company than could reasonably
be obtained in “ arm’ s length ™ transactions with independent third parties, and any such transactions will also be approved by a
majority of our disinterested independent directors. Fhe-Each of Mr. Ault and the other named individuals ;ether-thanMz-
Aslt;owe fiduciary duties of good faith, care and loyalty to our company under Delaware law. However, the failure of our
management to resolve any conflicts of interest in favor of our company could materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation allow concentration of voting power,
which may, among other things, delay or frustrate the removal of incumbent directors or a takeover attempt, even if such events
may be beneficial to our stockholders. Provisions of our certificate of incorporation may delay or frustrate the removal of



incumbent directors and may prevent or delay a merger, tender offer or proxy contest involving our company that is not
approved by our Board efBireetors-, even if those events may be perceived to be in the best interests of our stockholders.
Further, we may designate and issue separate classes of preferred stock that may entitle their holder (s) to exercise significant
control over us. Consequently, anyone to whom or which these shares are or were issued could have sufficient voting power to
significantly influence if not control the outcome of all corporate matters submitted to the vote of our common stockholders.
Those matters could include the election of directors, changes in the size and composition of our Board, and mergers and other
business combinations involving us. In addition, through any such person’ s control of our Board and voting power, the affiliate
may be able to control certain decisions, including decisions regarding the qualification and appointment of officers, dividend
policy, access to capital (including borrowing from third- party lenders and the issuance of additional debt or equity securities),
and the acquisition or disposition of assets by us. In addition, the concentration of voting power in the hands of an affiliate could
have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of our company, even if the change in control could benefit our
stockholders and may adversely affect the future market price of our common stock should a trading market therefor develop. -
38—Risks Relating to Ownership of Our Common Stock We are not in compliance with the Nasdaq continued listing
requirements. [{ we are unable to comply with the continued listing requirements of The Nasdaq Capital Market, our
Common Stock could be delisted, which would adversely affect our Common Stock’ s market price and liquidity and
reduce our ability to raise capital. On September 26, 2023, we were notified by the staff of The Nasdaq Stock Market
LLC (“ Nasdaq ) that for the previous 30 consecutive trading days, the minimum Market Value of Listed Securities (*
MVLS ”) for our common stock was below the $ 35 million minimum MVLS requirement for continued listing on The
Nasdaq Capital Market under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550 (b) (2) (the “ MVLS Rule ”). In accordance with Listing Rule
5810 (c) 3) (C), we were provided 180 calendar days, or until March 25, 2024, to regain compliance with the MVLS
Rule.- 39- On March 26, 2024, we were notified by Nasdaq that we had not regained compliance with the MVLS Rule.
As a result, unless we requested an appeal of this determination, Nasdaq determined that our common stock would be
scheduled for delisting from The Nasdaq Capital Market and would be suspended at the opening of business on April 4,
2024 and a Form 25- NSE would be filed with the SEC. On April 2, 2024, we requested a hearing before a Hearings
Panel (the “ Panel ) to appeal the determination. The Panel heard our appeal at a hearing on May 9, 2024. On May 21,
2024, we received notice from the Panel that it granted our request to continue our listing on Nasdaq, subject to us
demonstrating compliance, on or before September 23, 2024, with Listing Rule 5550 (b) (1), which requires stockholder
equity of at least $ 2. 5 million (or an alternative listing standard), and satisfying all applicable requirements for
continued listing on Nasdaq. There can be no assurance as to our ability to demonstrate compliance on or before
September 23, 2024. In addition, on February 1, 2024, we received a notice in the form of a letter from Nasdaq stating
that we were not in compliance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550 (a) (2) because the bid price for our common stock had
closed below $ 1. 00 per share for the previous 30 consecutive business days. In accordance with Nasdaq Listing Rule
5810 (c) 3) (A), we have 180 calendar days, or until July 30, 2024, to regain compliance with the Nasdaq Listing Rule
5550 (a) (2). The deficiency letter states that to regain compliance, the bid price for our common stock must close at $ 1.
00 per share or more for a minimum of 10 consecutive business days (the “ Minimum Bid Price ”’) during the compliance
period ending July 30, 2024. In the event that we do not regain compliance with-within er-this 180- day period, we may be
eligible to seek an additional compliance period of 180 calendar days if we meet the eentintie-continued to-satisty-listing
requirement for market value of publicly held shares and all the-other initial listing standards for The Nasdaq Capital
Market eentinted-, with the exception of the Minimum Bid Price, and provide written notice to Nasdaq of our intent to
cure the deficiency during this second compliance period, by effecting a reverse stock split, if necessary. However, if it
appears to the Nasdaq staff that we will not be able to cure the deficiency, or if we are otherwise ineligible, Nasdaq will
provide us with notice that our common stock will be subject to delisting. At that time, we may appeal any such delisting
determination to a Nasdaq hearings panel. The deficiency letter has no immediate effect on the listing of our common
stock, and our common stock will continue to trade on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ ALZN. ”
Effective July 16, 2024, we effected a one- for- ten reverse stock split of our common stock, with the intent to achieve
compliance with the Minimum Bid Price reqtirements—- requirement. While we are exercising diligent efforts to maintain
the listing of our common stock on Nasdagq . there can be no assurance that we will be able to regain compliance with the
Minimum Bid Price or maintain compliance with the other Nasdaq listing standards. If our common stock is delisted, it
could be more difficult to buy or sell our common stock and to obtain accurate quotations, and the price of our common
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exchangeable-fer-etreommen-stoelk-. We do not know whether an active market will be sustained; as a result, it may be difficult
for you to sell your shares of our common stock. If an active market for our common stock is not sustained, it may be difficult
for you to sell your shares of common stock at an attractive price or at all. We cannot predict the prices at which our common
stock will trade. It is possible that in one or more future periods our results of operations and progression of our product pipeline
may not meet the expectations of public market analysts and investors and, as a result of these and other factors, the price of our
common stock may fall. The market price of our common stock is volatile, which could result in substantial losses for investors.
Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market. Since our initial public offering last year, our trading price has
fluctuated widely, depending on many factors that may have little to do with our operations or business prospects. During the
year ended April 30, 2023-2024 , our stock closed at prices between $0-6 . 425-76 per share and $ +115 . $9-95 per share, as
reported on Nasdaq. com. Stock markets, in general, have experienced, and continue to experience, significant price and volume
volatility, and the market price of our common stock may continue to be subject to similar market fluctuations unrelated to our
operating performance or prospects. This increased volatility, coupled with depressed economic conditions, could continue to
have a depressive effect on the market price of our common stock. The following factors, many of which are beyond our control,
may influence our stock price: * announcements of the failure to obtain regulatory approvals or receipt of a “ complete response
letter ” from the FDA; « announcements of restricted label indications or patient populations, or changes or delays in regulatory
review processes; * announcements of therapeutic innovations or new products by us or our competitors; ¢ adverse actions taken
by regulatory agencies with respect to our clinical trials, manufacturing supply chain or sales and marketing activities; * changes
or developments in laws or regulations applicable to our product candidates; - 40- « any failure of our testing and clinical trials;
product liability claims, other litigation or public concern about the safety of our product candidates or future products; « any
adverse changes to our relationship with licensors, manufacturers or suppliers; ¢ the loss of any of our key scientific or
management personnel; —39-- any major changes to our Board efBireetors-or management; ¢ the failure to obtain new
commercial partners; * announcements concerning our competitors or the pharmaceutical industry in general; * the failure to
achieve expected product sales and profitability; ¢ the failure to obtain reimbursements for our product candidates as part of any
healthcare insurance plan, or reductions in such reimbursements; ¢ actual or anticipated fluctuations in our cash position or
operating results; « manufacturing, supply or distribution shortages related to our current or future product candidates for our
development programs and commercialization; ¢ changes in financial estimates or recommendations by securities analysts; * the
termination of any of our existing license agreements; ¢ announcements relating to future licensing or development agreements;
* potential acquisitions; ¢ the trading volume of shares on The Nasdaq Capital Market; « sales of our shares by us, our executive
officers or directors or our shareholders; ¢ fluctuations in the U. S. equity markets; ¢ changes in accounting principles; * market
conditions in the healthcare sector; and ¢ general economic conditions in the United States and elsewhere. In recent years, each
of the stock market in general, and the market for pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies in particular, has experienced
significant price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to changes in the operating
performance of the companies whose stock is experiencing those price and volume fluctuations. Broad market and industry
factors may seriously affect the market price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance. Following
periods of such volatility in the market price of a company’ s securities, securities class action litigation has often been brought
against that company. Because of the potential volatility of our stock price, we may become the target of securities litigation in
the future. Securities litigation could result in substantial costs and divert management’ s attention and resources from our
business. If there are substantial sales of shares of our common stock, the price of our common stock could decline. The price of
our common stock could decline if there are substantial sales of our common stock, particularly sales by our directors, executive
officers and significant stockholders, or if there is a large number of shares of our common stock available for sale and the
market perceives that sales will occur. As of July 24-29 , 2623-2024 . we had 96-841 , 240 946;:424-shares of our common stock
outstanding. Shares held by directors, executive officers and other affiliates will be subject to volume limitations under Rule 144
under the Securities Act and various vesting agreements. We have registered shares of common stock that we have issued and
may issue under our employee equity incentive plans, which shares may be sold freely in the public market upon issuance. Sales
of our common stock by current stockholders may make it more difficult for us to sell equity or equity- related securities in the
future at a time and price that we deem reasonable or appropriate, and make it more difficult for other stockholders to sell shares
of our common stock. - 41- The market price of the shares of our common stock could decline as a result of the sale of a
substantial number of our shares of common stock in the public market or the perception in the market that the holders of a large
number of shares intend to sell their shares. We are unable to predict the effect that sales may have on the prevailing market
price of our common stock. —48--The concentration of our stock ownership will limit your ability to influence corporate matters,
including the ability to influence the outcome of director elections and other matters requiring stockholder approval. Our
executive officers, directors and the holders of more than 5 % of our outstanding common stock, in the aggregate, beneficially
own a significant percentage of our common stock. As a result, these stockholders, acting together, will have significant
influence over all matters that require approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors and approval of
significant corporate transactions. Corporate actions might be taken even if other stockholders oppose them. This concentration
of ownership might also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of our company that other stockholders
may view as beneficial. Our bylaws provide that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and the federal district courts of
the United States are the exclusive forums for substantially all disputes between us and our stockholders, which could limit our
stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers or employees. Our bylaws
provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the exclusive forum for any derivative action or proceeding
brought on our behalf; any action asserting a breach of fiduciary duty; any action asserting a claim against us arising under the
Delaware General Corporation Law, our certificate of incorporation or our bylaws; any action to interpret, apply, enforce or
determine the validity of our certificate of incorporation or our bylaws; and any action asserting a claim against us that is



governed by the internal affairs doctrine. This provision would not apply to suits brought to enforce a duty or liability created by
the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the U. S. federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction. Our bylaws further provide
that the federal district courts of the United States will be the exclusive forum for resolving any complaint asserting a cause of
action arising under the Securities Act. The enforceability of similar exclusive federal forum provisions in other companies’
organizational documents has been challenged in legal proceedings, and while the Delaware Supreme Court has ruled that this
type of exclusive federal forum provision is facially valid under Delaware law, there is uncertainty as to whether other courts
would enforce such provisions and that investors cannot waive compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and
regulations thereunder. These exclusive forum provisions may limit a stockholder’ s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum
that it finds favorable for disputes with us or our directors, officers or other employees, which may discourage such lawsuits
against us and our directors, officers and other employees. Alternatively, if a court were to find either exclusive forum provision
in our bylaws to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an action, we may incur further significant additional costs associated with
resolving such action in other jurisdictions, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations. General Risk Factors We must effectively manage the growth of our operations, or our
company will suffer. Our initiation of operations has resulted in significantly higher operating expenses. Expansion of our
operations, to include the development of AL001 and ALZNO002, may also cause a significant demand on our management,
finances and other resources. Our ability to manage the anticipated future growth, should it occur, will depend upon a significant
expansion of our accounting and other internal management systems and the implementation and subsequent improvement of a
variety of systems, procedures and controls. In addition, we intend to expand our scientific advisory board. There can be no
assurance that significant problems in these areas will not occur. Any failure to expand these areas and implement and improve
AL001 or ALZNO002 or our procedures and controls in an efficient manner at a pace consistent with our business could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. There can be no assurance that our attempts
to expand our marketing, sales, manufacturing and customer support efforts will be successful or will result in additional sales or
profitability in any future period. We may not be successful in our efforts to expand our pipeline of product candidates. One
element of our strategy is to expand our pipeline of pharmaceuticals based on our technology and advance these product
candidates through clinical development for the treatment of a variety of indications. Although our research and development
efforts to date have resulted in a number of development programs based on our technology, we may not ultimately be able to
develop product candidates that are safe and effective. Even if we are successful in continuing to expand our pipeline, the
potential product candidates that we identify may not be suitable for clinical development, including as a result of being shown
to have harmful side effects or other characteristics that indicate that they are unlikely to receive marketing approval and
achieve market acceptance. In addition, if we attempt to apply our technology to develop product candidates for indications
outside of Alzheimer’ s, we will need to evaluate the preclinical data and determine if additional data are needed to support the
new indications. If we do not successfully develop and commercialize product candidates based upon our technological
approach, we will not be able to obtain product revenue in future periods, which would make it unlikely that we would ever
achieve profitability.- 4+-42 - We may experience product recalls or inventory losses caused by unforeseen events, cold chain
interruption and testing difficulties. ALOO1 and ALZNO002, individually, will be manufactured and distributed, if ever, using
technically complex processes requiring specialized facilities, highly specific raw materials and other production constraints.
The complexity of these processes, as well as the strict company and government standards for the manufacture of our products,
will subject us to production risks. While product batches released for use in clinical trials or for commercialization undergo
sample testing, some defects may only be identified following product release. In addition, process deviations or unanticipated
effects of approved process changes may result in these intermediate products not complying with stability requirements or
specifications. Most of our products must be stored and transported at temperatures within a certain range, which is known as “
strict cold chain ” storage and transportation. If these environmental conditions deviate from the norm, our products’ remaining
shelf lives could be impaired or their quality could become adversely affected, making them no longer suitable for use. The
occurrence or suspected occurrence of production and distribution difficulties can lead to lost inventories, and in some cases
product recalls, with consequential reputational damage and the risk of product liability. The investigation and remediation of
any identified problems can cause production delays, substantial expense, lost sales and delays of new product launches, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Because we do not
intend to pay dividends on our common stock, you must rely on stock appreciation for any return on your investment. We
presently intend to retain any future earnings and do not expect to pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. As a result, you
must rely on stock appreciation and a liquid trading market for any return on your investment. If an active and liquid trading
market does not develop, you may be unable to sell your shares of common stock at or above the initial public offering price or
at the time you would like to sell. We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. If our
remediation of this material weakness is not effective, or if we experience additional material weaknesses in the future or
otherwise fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls in the future, we may not be able to accurately or timely report
our financial condition or results of operations, which may adversely affect investor confidence in us and, as a result, the value
of our common stock. We have limited accounting personnel to adequately execute our accounting processes and other
supervisory resources with which to address our internal control over financial reporting. In connection with the audit of our
financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 , we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis. The material weaknesses related to a lack of sufficient number of qualified personnel within our
accounting function to adequately segregate duties, to perform sufficient reviews and approval of manual journal entries posted
to the general ledger and to consistently execute review procedures over general ledger account reconciliations, financial



statement preparation and accounting for non- routine transactions and, we have not designed and implemented effective
Information Technology General Controls (“ ITGC ) related to access controls to payment and financial accounting systems.
We are implementing measures designed to improve our internal control over financial reporting to remediate this material
weakness, including the following: « We are formalizing our internal control documentation and strengthening supervisory
reviews by our management; « We are in the process of adding additional accounting personnel and segregating duties amongst
accounting personnel; and « We are in the process of strengthening ITGC access controls related to our payment and financial
accounting systems. We cannot assure you that the measures we have taken to date, and are continuing to implement, will be
sufficient to remediate the material weakness we have identified or avoid potential future material weaknesses. If the steps we
take do not correct the material weakness in a timely manner, we will be unable to conclude that we maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, there could continue to be a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
our financial statements would not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. - 43- As a public company, we are required to
maintain internal control over financial reporting and to report any material weaknesses in such internal controls. We must
perform system and process evaluation and testing of our internal controls over financial reporting to allow management to
report on the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley
Act. The Sarbanes- Oxley Act also requires that our management report on internal control over financial reporting be attested
to by our independent registered public accounting firm, to the extent we are no longer an “ emerging growth company, ” as
defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (JOBS Act). We do not expect our independent registered public
accounting firm to attest to our management report on internal control over financial reporting for so long as we are an emerging
growth company. —42—-We are in the process of enhancing our internal control over financial reporting required to comply with
this obligation, which process will be time consuming, costly and complicated. If we identify any additional material
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, if we are unable to comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a
timely manner, if we are unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective, or when required in the
future, if our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to express an opinion as to the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports and the
market price of our common stock could be adversely affected, and we could become subject to investigations by the Nasdaq
Stock Market, the SEC, or other regulatory authorities, which could require additional financial and management resources. We
may have trouble hiring additional qualified personnel. As we expand our development and commercial activities, we will need
to hire additional personnel and could experience difficulties attracting and retaining qualified employees. Competition for
qualified personnel in the biopharmaceutical field is intense due to the limited number of individuals who possess the skills and
experience required by that industry. We may not be able to attract and retain quality personnel on favorable terms, or at all. In
addition, to the extent we hire personnel from competitors, we may be subject to allegations that such personnel have been
improperly solicited or that they have divulged proprietary or other confidential information, or that their former employers own
their research output. Any of these difficulties could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition. Failure of our information technology systems could significantly disrupt the operation of our business. Our
ability to execute our business plan and to comply with regulatory requirements with respect to data control and data integrity
depends, in part, on the continued and uninterrupted performance of our information technology systems, or IT systems. These
systems are vulnerable to damage from a variety of sources, including telecommunications or network failures, malicious human
acts and natural disasters. Moreover, despite network security and back- up measures, some of our servers are potentially
vulnerable to physical or electronic break- ins, computer viruses and similar disruptive problems. Despite the precautionary
measures we have taken to prevent unanticipated problems that could affect our IT systems, there are no assurances that
electronic break- ins, computer viruses and similar disruptive problems, and / or sustained or repeated system failures or
problems arising during the upgrade of any of our IT systems that interrupt our ability to generate and maintain data will not
occur. The occurrence of any of the foregoing with respect to our IT systems could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations or financial condition. We are subject to various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary
course of our business. We are subject to various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of our business. Any
such litigation could be very costly and could distract our management from focusing on operating our business. The existence
of any such litigation could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Results of actual and potential
litigation are inherently uncertain. An unfavorable result in a legal proceeding could adversely affect our reputation, financial
condition and operating results. We will be subject to the U. S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other anti- corruption laws, as
well as export control laws, customs laws, sanctions laws and other laws governing our anticipated operations. If we fail to
comply with these laws, we could be subject to civil or criminal penalties, other remedial measures, and legal expenses, which
could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Our operations, if initiated, will be subject to
certain anti- corruption laws, including the U. S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“ FCPA ”), and other anti- corruption laws that
apply in countries where we do business. The FCPA and other anti- corruption laws generally prohibit us and our employees and
intermediaries from bribing, being bribed or making other prohibited payments to government officials or other persons to
obtain or retain business or gain some other business advantage. We and any future commercial partners may operate in a
number of jurisdictions that pose a high risk of potential FCPA violations and we may participate in collaborations and
relationships with third parties whose actions could potentially subject us to liability under the FCPA or local anti- corruption
laws. In addition, we cannot predict the nature, scope or effect of future regulatory requirements to which our international
operations might be subject or the manner in which existing laws might be administered or interpreted. We also anticipate
becoming subject to other laws and regulations governing our international operations, including regulations administered in the
U. S. and in the EU, including applicable export control regulations, economic sanctions on countries and persons, customs
requirements and currency exchange regulations (collectively, “ Trade Control Laws ). - 44- There can be no assurance that we



will be completely effective in ensuring our compliance with all applicable anticorruption laws, including the FCPA or other
legal requirements, such as Trade Control Laws. Any investigation of potential violations of the FCPA, other anti- corruption
laws or Trade Control Laws by the United States, the European Union or other authorities could have an adverse impact on our
reputation, our business, results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, should we be found not to be in compliance
with the FCPA, other anti- corruption laws or Trade Control Laws, we may be subject to criminal and civil penalties,
disgorgement and other sanctions and remedial measures, as well as the accompanying legal expenses, any of which could have
a material adverse effect on our reputation and liquidity, as well as on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
—43—Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law make it more difficult for a third party to
acquire us and make a takeover more difficult to complete, even if such a transaction were in the stockholders’ interest. Our
certificate of incorporation, bylaws and certain provisions of Delaware law could have the effect of making it more difficult or
more expensive for a third party to acquire, or discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire, control of our company,
even when these attempts may be in the best interests of our stockholders. For example, we are governed by Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law. In general, Section 203 prohibits a public Delaware corporation from engaging in a *
business combination ” with an “ interested stockholder ” for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the
person became an interested stockholder, unless the business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. A “ business
combination ” includes mergers, asset sales or other transactions resulting in a financial benefit to the stockholder. An *
interested stockholder  is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years did own, 15 % or
more of the corporation’ s outstanding voting stock. These provisions may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a
change in control of our company. Failure to build our finance infrastructure and improve our accounting systems and controls
could impair our ability to comply with the financial reporting and internal controls requirements for publicly traded companies.
As a public company, we operate in an increasingly demanding regulatory environment, which requires us to comply with the
Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes- Oxley Act, the regulations of The Nasdaq Capital Market, the rules and
regulations of the SEC, expanded disclosure requirements, accelerated reporting requirements and more complex accounting
rules. Company responsibilities required by the Sarbanes- Oxley Act include establishing corporate oversight and adequate
internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. Effective internal controls are necessary for us
to produce reliable financial reports and are important to help prevent financial fraud. We must perform system and process
evaluation and testing of our internal controls over financial reporting to allow management to report on the effectiveness of our
internal controls over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act. We anticipate that the process
of building our accounting and financial functions and infrastructure will require significant additional professional fees, internal
costs and management efforts. We expect that we will need to implement a new internal system to combine and streamline the
management of our financial, accounting, human resources and other functions. However, such a system would likely require us
to complete many processes and procedures for the effective use of the system or to run our business using the system, which
may result in substantial costs. Any disruptions or difficulties in implementing or using such a system could adversely affect our
controls and harm our business. Moreover, such disruption or difficulties could result in unanticipated costs and diversion of
management attention. In addition, we may discover weaknesses in our system of internal financial and accounting controls and
procedures that could result in a material misstatement of our financial statements. Our internal control over financial reporting
will not prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’ s objectives will be met. Because of the inherent limitations in all
control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur
or that all control issues and instances of fraud will be detected. If we are not able to comply with the requirements of Section
404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act in a timely manner, or if we are unable to maintain proper and effective internal controls, we
may not be able to produce timely and accurate financial statements. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent
fraud, our business and results of operations could be harmed, investors could lose confidence in our reported financial
information and we could be subject to sanctions or investigations by The Nasdaq Capital Market, the SEC or other regulatory
authorities. If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they publish negative evaluations of
our stock, the price of our common stock could decline. The trading market for our common stock will rely in part on the
research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us or our business. We do not currently have and may never
obtain research coverage by industry or financial analysts. If no or few analysts commence coverage of us, the trading price of
our common stock could decrease. Even if we do obtain analyst coverage, if one or more of the analysts covering our business
downgrade their evaluations of our stock, the price of our common stock could decline. If one or more of these analysts cease to
cover our stock, we could lose visibility in the market for our common stock, which in turn could cause our stock price to
decline.- 44-45 - We are an “ emerging growth company, ” and the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging
growth companies may make our common stock less attractive to investors. We are an “ emerging growth company, ” as defined
in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act. For so long as we remain an emerging growth company,
we are permitted and plan to rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements that are applicable to other public
companies that are not emerging growth companies. These exemptions include not being required to comply with the auditor
attestation requirements of SOX Section 404, not being required to comply with any requirement that may be adopted by the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor’ s report
providing additional information about the audit and the financial statements, reduced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive
compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. As a result, the information
we provide stockholders will be different than the information that is available with respect to other public companies. In this
Annual Report, we have not included all of the executive compensation- related information that would be required if we were



not an emerging growth company. We cannot predict whether investors will find our common stock less attractive if we rely on
these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market
for our common stock, and our stock price may be more volatile. We will incur increased costs as a result of operating as a
public company, and our management will be required to devote substantial time to new compliance initiatives and corporate
governance practices. As a public company, and particularly after we are no longer an emerging growth company (or, to a lesser
extent, a smaller reporting company), we will incur significant legal, accounting, and other expenses that we did not incur as a
private company. Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, the Dodd- Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, the listing
requirements of The Nasdaq Capital Market, and other applicable securities rules and regulations impose various requirements
on public companies, including establishment and maintenance of effective disclosure and financial controls and corporate
governance practices. We expect that we will need to hire additional accounting, finance, and other personnel in connection with
our becoming, and our efforts to comply with the requirements of being, a public company, and our management and other
personnel will need to devote a substantial amount of time towards maintaining compliance with these requirements. These
requirements will increase our legal and financial compliance costs and will make some activities more time- consuming and
costly. For example, we expect that the rules and regulations applicable to us as a public company may make it more difficult
and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, which could make it more difficult for us to attract
and retain qualified members of our Board efBireetors-. We are currently evaluating these rules and regulations and cannot
predict or estimate the amount of additional costs we may incur or the timing of such costs. These rules and regulations are often
subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may
evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty
regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. Our
charter provides for limitations of director liability and indemnification of directors and officers and employees. Our certificate
of incorporation limits the liability of directors to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware law. Delaware law provides that
directors of a corporation will not be personally liable for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties as directors,
except for liability for any: * breach of their duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders; ¢ act or omission not in good faith or that
involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; ¢ unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases
or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law; or ¢ transaction from which the directors
derived an improper personal benefit. These limitations of liability do not apply to liabilities arising under the federal or state
securities laws and do not affect the availability of equitable remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission. Our bylaws provide
that we will indemnify our directors, officers and employees to the fullest extent permitted by law. Our bylaws also provide that
we are obligated to advance expenses incurred by a director or officer in advance of the final disposition of any action or
proceeding. We believe that these provisions are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and officers. The
limitation of liability in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against
directors for breach of their fiduciary duties. They may also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors and
officers, even though an action, if successful, might provide a benefit to us and our stockholders. Our results of operations and
financial condition may be harmed to the extent we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers
pursuant to these indemnification provisions.- 45-46 - We could be subject to securities class action litigation. In the past,
securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following a decline in the market price of its
securities. This risk is especially relevant for us because biopharmaceutical companies have experienced significant stock price
volatility in recent years. If we face such litigation, it could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management’ s attention
and resources, which could harm our business. ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS None. ITEM 1C.
CYBERSECURITY Information Security Program The mission of our information security program is to design,
implement, and maintain a comprehensive information security program that protects our systems, services, and data
against unauthorized access, disclosure, modification, damage, and loss. Our information security program is comprised
of internal and external security and technology professionals who work collaboratively to identify, assess, manage, and
mitigate cybersecurity risks and threats across the Company and third- party contractors. We recognize the importance
of effectively managing material risks associated with cybersecurity threats, as defined in Item 106 (a) of Regulation S-
K. Our risk management program integrates the monitoring and management of these risks and threats and is informed
by applicable laws, regulations, industry standards, and best practices. We continue to invest in information security
resources to mature, expand, and adapt our capabilities to address emerging cybersecurity risks and threats. Our
information security organization is committed to maintaining a robust and resilient security posture that enables us to
protect our assets, maintain our stakeholders' trust, and support our business' s overall success. Cybersecurity Risk
Management and Strategy Our cybersecurity risk management and strategy are integral components of our
comprehensive information security program. They guide our continuous efforts to evaluate and improve the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our critical systems, data, and operations. We have adopted an Information
Security Policy (the “ Info- Sec Policy ) and an Incident Response Plan (the “ Response Plan ) that establish
administrative, physical, and technical controls and procedures to protect sensitive data throughout the Company. These
policies also outline processes to assess, identify, manage, and report cybersecurity risks and incidents. The Info- Sec
Policy applies to all persons working for the Company and any third parties working with us in any capacity. Our
approach to controls and risk management is informed by applicable laws and regulations, as well as industry standards
and best practices. These serve as a guide to help us identify, assess, and manage cybersecurity controls and risks
relevant to our business. Our cybersecurity risk management program includes: 1. Identifying cybersecurity risks that
could impact our facilities, third- party vendors / partners, operations, critical systems, information, and broader
enterprise information technology environment. Risks are informed by threat intelligence, current and historical



adversarial activity, and industry- specific threats; 2. Performing cybersecurity risk assessments to evaluate our
readiness if the risks were to materialize; 3. Ensuring risk is addressed and tracking any necessary remediation through
an action plan; 4. Analyzing all third- party vendors for compliance with our internal Info- Sec Policy to assess potential
risks associated with their security controls. We generally require third parties to maintain security controls, notify us
promptly of any data breach or cybersecurity incident that may impact our data, and provide written assurance of
corrective actions; and 5. Engaging and utilizing a comprehensive suite of security solutions, including enterprise
mobility management, endpoint protection, secure file transfer, and security information and event management to
monitor and actively respond to cybersecurity threats. These solutions work together to secure our endpoints, protect
against malware, ensure the safe transfer of files, and provide our cybersecurity team with the functionality to build
alerts on specific use cases that are important and unique to our business.- 47- Cybersecurity Governance Our Board
oversees cybersecurity risk as part of its overall risk oversight function. We utilize resources from AULT to act as our
information technology department (the “ IT Department ), which functions as our Information Security Advisory
Team. The IT Department is responsible for managing our information security program and implementing
cybersecurity risk management practices. The I'T Department collaborates with various stakeholders across the
organization to identify, assess, and mitigate cybersecurity risks. They regularly monitor and adapt our information
security program to address the evolving threat landscape. In the event of a cybersecurity incident, the IT Department
promptly reports the matter to the Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for assessing the
severity and potential impact of the incident and determining the appropriate course of action. The Chief Financial
Officer keeps the Board informed of significant cybersecurity incidents and provides updates on the overall status of our
cybersecurity program as needed. This governance structure ensures that cybersecurity risks are effectively managed by
the IT Department, with oversight from the Chief Financial Officer and the Board. It maintains clear lines of
communication and accountability, enabling timely decision- making and response to cybersecurity matters. During
fiscal 2024, we did not identify any cybersecurity threats that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to
materially affect our business strategy, results of operations or financial condition. However, despite our efforts, we may
not successfully eliminate all risks from cybersecurity threats and can provide no assurance that undetected
cybersecurity incidents have not occurred. ITEM 2. PROPERTIES Our executive office is currently located at 3480
Peachtree Road NE, Second Floor, Suite 103, Atlanta, GA 30326, where we utilize shared labs and extensive research resources.
Our accounting and finance office is located in Orange County, California utilizing approximately 200 square feet of shared
office space within the offices of AULT, a related party. Our legal office is located in New York, NY utilizing shared office
space within the offices of AULT. We currently do not pay rent for our Orange County, California or New York, NY office
spaces. We believe our present space is adequate for our current operations. [ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS We are subject
to various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of our business. Any such litigation could be very costly and
could distract our management from focusing on operating our business. The existence of any such litigation could harm our
business, results of operations and financial condition. Results of actual and potential litigation are inherently uncertain. An
unfavorable result in a legal proceeding could adversely affect our reputation, financial condition and operating results. There
are no legal proceedings or arbitration proceedings currently pending against our company. ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY
DISCLOSURES Not applicable.- 46-48 - PART II ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY,
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES Market Information Our
common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “ ALZN . Effective July 16, 2024, we effected a
one- for- ten reverse stock split of our common stock Holders of Record As of July 24-29 | 2623-2024 . there were
approximately H9-67 stockholders of record of our common stock. The actual number of stockholders is greater than this
number of record holders and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners but whose shares are held in street name by
brokers and other nominees. This number of holders of record also does not include stockholders whose shares may be held in
trust or by other entities. Dividend Policy We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock, and we do
not currently intend to pay any cash dividends on our capital stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain all
available funds and any future earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and development of our business. Any
future determination to pay dividends will be made at the discretion of our Board efBireeters-subject to applicable laws and will
depend upon, among other factors, our results of operations, financial condition, contractual restrictions and capital
requirements. Our future ability to pay cash dividends on our capital stock may be limited by any future debt instruments or
preferred securities. Equity Compensation Information The information required by this item regarding equity compensation
plans is incorporated by reference to the information set forth in Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Recent Sales of
Unregistered Securities Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers ITEM 6. [ RESERVED ]- 4749 -
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations
together with our financial statements and the notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report. This discussion contains
forward- looking statements reflecting our current expectations, whose actual outcomes involve risks and uncertainties. Actual
results and the timing of events may differ materially from those stated in or implied by these forward- looking statements due
to a number of factors, including those discussed in the sections entitled *“ Risk Factors ” and ““ Special Note Regarding
Forward- Looking Statements, ”” and elsewhere in this Annual Report. Overview We were incorporated on February 26, 2016, as
Alzamend Neuro, Inc. under the laws of the State of Delaware. We were formed to acquire and commercialize patented
intellectual property and know- how to prevent, treat and potentially cure the crippling and deadly Alzheimer’ s. With our two
product candidates, we aim to bring treatment or cures not only for Alzheimer’ s, but also, bipolar disorder (“ BD ’), major
depressive disorder (“ MDD ”) and post- traumatic stress disorder (“ PTSD ”). Existing Alzheimer’ s treatments only temporarily



relieve symptoms but do not, to our knowledge, slow or halt the underlying worsening of the disease. We have developed a
novel approach to combat Alzheimer’ s through immunotherapy. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates Research and
Development Expenses. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development costs consist of
scientific consulting fees and lab supplies, as well as fees paid to other entities that conduct certain research and development
activities on behalf of our company. We have acquired and may continue to acquire the rights to develop and commercialize
new product candidates from third parties. The upfront payments to acquire license, product or rights, as well as any future
milestone payments, are immediately recognized as research and development expense provided that there is no alternative
future use of the rights in other research and development projects. Stock- Based Compensation. We maintain a stock- based
compensation plan as a long- term incentive for employees, non- employee directors and consultants. The plan allows for the
issuance of incentive stock options, non- qualified stock options, restricted stock units, and other forms of equity awards. We
recognize stock- based compensation expense for stock options on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period and
account for forfeitures as they occur. Our stock- based compensation costs are based upon the grant date fair value of options
estimated using the Black- Scholes option pricing model. To the extent any stock option grants are made subject to the
achievement of a performance- based milestone, management evaluates when the achievement of any such performance- based
milestone is probable based on the relative satisfaction of the performance conditions as of the reporting date. The Black-
Scholes option pricing model utrhzeq 1nput§ which are highly %ubjectlve as%umptronq and generally requrre qrgnrﬁcant Judgment
These assumptions include: - Fa ; 6
Risk- Free Interest Rate. The risk- free interest rate is ba%ed on the U. S. Treasury zero coupon issues in effect at the time of
grant for periods corresponding with the expected term of the option; - Expected Volatility. Because we do not have an
extensive trading history for our common stock, the expected volatility was estimated based on the average volatility for
comparable publicly traded life sciences companies over a period equal to the expected term of the stock option grants.
Comparable companies were chosen based on the similar size, stage in life cycle or area of specialty. We will continue to apply
this process until a sufficient amount of historical information regarding the volatility of our own stock price becomes available;
- Expected Term. The expected term represents the period that the stock- based awards are expected to be outstanding and is
determined using the simplified method (based on the mid- point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term),
as we do not have sufficient historical data to use any other method to estimate expected term; and - Expected Dividend Yield.
We have never paid dividends on our common stock and have no plans to pay dividends on our common stock. Therefore, we
used an expected dividend yield of zero.- 48-50 - Certain of such assumptions involve inherent uncertainties and the application
of significant judgment. As a result, if factors or expected outcomes change and we use significantly different assumptions or
estimates, our stock- based compensatron could be materially different. Commen-Stoek-Valnattons—Priorto-ourHPO-inJune

seﬁﬂees—aﬂd—biefeelﬁe-}egy—md-usﬁﬂyhseefefs—lncorne Taxei We recognrze deferred income taxes for the future tax consequence%

attribute-attributed to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to the
extent management concludes it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the fiscal years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. In accordance with Internal Revenue Code § 382 (“ IRC § 382 ), the future
deductibility of our net operating losses (“ NOLs ) may be subject to an annual limitation in the event of a change in control as
defined by applicable regulations. We have yet to complete a formal study to confirm NOLs are not limited in utilization per
IRC § 382 and may reduce applicable deferred tax assets upon completion of such a study, in future periods. The impact of an
uncertain income tax position on the income tax return must be recognized at the largest amount that is more likely than not to
be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax position will not be recognized if it has less
than a 50 % likelihood of being sustained. We had no uncertain tax positions as of April 30, 2623-2024 . Reeent-Preferred
Stock Classification. We analyze the terms of our preferred stock using Accounting Pronetuneements-See-Note-3-Standards
Codification (“ ASC ”) 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, to determine whether our preferred stock should be
classified as a liability eur— or finanetal-statements-ineluded-elsewhereinthisreportequity, and if classified as equity,
permanent for—- or additionaHnformation-temporary. Common criteria we consider are redemption provisions,
conversion options, cumulative of mandatory fixed dividends, discretionary dividends based on earning, voting rights
and collateral requirements . Emerging Growth Company Status We are an emerging growth company, as defined in the
Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “ JOBS Act ). Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can delay
adopting new or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act, until such time as those
standards apply to private companies. We have elected to use this extended transition period for complying with new or revised



accounting standards that have different effective dates for public and private companies until the earlier of the date that it (i) is
no longer an emerging growth company or (ii) affirmatively and irrevocably opts out of the extended transition period provided
in the JOBS Act. As a result, these financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with the new or
revised accounting pronouncements as of public company effective dates. —49—Plan of Operations We intend to develop and
commercialize therapeutics that are better than existing treatments and have the potential to significantly improve the lives of
individuals afflicted by Alzheimer’ s, BD, MDD and PTSD. To achieve these goals, we are pursuing the following key business
strategies: - Advance clinical development of AL0O1 for Alzheimer’ s, BD, MDD and PTSD treatment; - Advance clinical
development of ALZNO002 for Alzheimer’ s treatment; - Expand our pipeline of pharmaceuticals to include additional
indications for ALOO1 and delivery methods; - Focus on translational and functional endpoints to efficiently develop product
candidates; and - Optimize the value of ALOO1 and ALZNO002 in major markets. Our pipeline consists of two novel therapeutic
drug candidates: - AL0O0O1- A patented ionic cocrystal technology delivering a therapeutic combination of lithium, salicylate and
proline through three royalty- bearing exclusive worldwide licenses from the University of South Florida Research Foundation,
Inc., as licensor (the “ Licensor ”’); and - ALZN002- A patented method using a mutant peptide sensitized cell as a cell- based
therapeutic vaccine that seeks to restore the ability of a patient’ s immunological system to combat Alzheimer’ s through a
royalty- bearing exclusive worldwide license from the Licensor. = 51- Our most advanced product candidate (lead product)
licensed and in clinical development in humans is AL001, an ionic cocrystal of lithium for the treatment of Alzheimer’ s, BD,
MDD and PTSD. Based on our preclinical data involving mice models, AL0O01 treatment prevented cognitive deficits,
depression and irritability and is superior in improving associative learning and memory and irritability compared with lithium
carbonate treatments, supporting the potential of this lithium formulation for the treatment of Alzheimer’ s, BD, MDD and
PTSD in humans. Lithium has been marketed for more than 35 years and human toxicology regarding lithium use has been well
characterized, potentially mitigating the regulatory burden for safety data. On May 5, 2022, we initiated a multiple- dose,
steady- state, double- blind, ascending dose safety, tolerability, pharmacokinetic clinical trial of AL0O1 in patients with mild to
moderate Alzheimer’ s and healthy subjects. We completed the Phase IIA clinical trial in March 2023 and announced positive
topline data in June 2023. We announced that we successfully identified a maximum tolerated dose (“ MTD ) for development
of ALOO1 from a multiple- ascending dose study as assessed by an independent safety review committee. This dose, providing
lithium at a lithium carbonate equivalent dose of 240 mg 3- times daily (“ TID ”), is designed to be unlikely to require lithium
therapeutic drug monitoring (“ TDM ”). Also, this MTD is risk mitigated for the purpose of treating fragile populations, such as
Alzheimer’ s patients. Lithium is a commonly prescribed drug for manic episodes in BP type 1 as well as maintenance therapy
of BP in patients with a history of manic episodes. Lithium is also prescribed off- label for MDD, BP and treatment of PTSD,
among other disorders. Lithium was the first mood stabilizer approved by the FDA and is still a first- line treatment option
(considered the “ gold standard ) but is underutilized perhaps because of the need for TDM. Lithium was the first drug that
required TDM by regulatory authorities in product labelling because the effective and safe range of therapeutic drug blood
concentrations is narrow and well defined for treatment of BP when using lithium salts. Excursions above this range can be
toxic, and below can impair effectiveness. Based on the results from our Phase I[IA MAD study, we plan to initiate two safety
and efficacy clinical trials in subjects with mild to moderate dementia of the Alzheimer’ s type. Additionally, we are intend-to
trvestigate-investigating the potential of ALOOI for patients suffering from BD, MDD and PTSD by-submitting-, and
submitted IND applications to the FDA for these indieatten-indications by-the-end-of. The IND for BD was submitted in
August 2023 —After-and we received a “ study may proceed ” letter from the FDA permissionto-in September 2023. The
IND for MDD was submitted in October 2023 and we received a “ study may procced on-” letter from the FDA in
November 2023. The BNDs—- IND -for PTSD was submitted in November 2023 and we received a “ study may proceed ”
from the FDA in December 2023. We intend to initiate clinical trials in 2025 at this MTD to determine relative increased
lithium levels in the brain compared to a marketed lithium salt for Alzheimer’ s, BD, MDD and PTSD, based on published
mouse studies that predict that lithium can be given at lower doses for equivalent therapeutic benefit when treating with AL0O1.
For example, the goal is to replace a 300 mg TID lithium carbonate dose for treatment of BD with a 240 mg TID AL001 lithium
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eﬁm-b-ined—P—hase—I—/—H—sfudy—On Septernber 28, 2022 we subrnrtted an IND apphcatlon to the F DA for ALZN002 and recelved a
“study may proceed  letter on October 31, 2022. The product candidate is an immunotherapy vaccine designed to treat mild to
moderate dementia of the Alzheimer’ s type. ALZNOO02 is a proprietary “ active ” immunotherapy product, which means it is
produced by each patient’ s immune system. It consists of autologous DCs that are activated white blood cells taken from each
individual patient so that they can be engineered outside of the body to attack Alzheimer’ s- related amyloid- beta proteins.
These DCs are pulsed with a novel amyloid- beta peptide (E22W) designed to bolster the ability of the patient’ s immune
system to combat Alzheimer’ s; the goal being to foster tolerance to treatment for safety purposes while stimulating the immune
system to reduce the brain’ s beta- amyloid protein burden, resulting in reduced Alzheimer’ s signs and symptoms. Compared to
passive immunization treatment approaches that use foreign blood products (such as monoclonal antibodies), active
immunization with ALZNO002 is anticipated to offer a more robust and long- lasting effect on the clearance of amyloid. This
could provide a safer approach due to its reliance on autologous immune components, using each individual patient’ s own
white blood cells rather than foreign cells and / or blood products. On April 3, 2023, we announced the initiation of a Phase I/
ITA clinical trial for ALZNO02 to treat mild to moderate dementia of the Alzheimer’ s type. The purpose of this trial is to assess
the safety, tolerability, and efficacy of multiple ascending doses of ALZN002 compared with that of a placebo in 20- 30 subjects
with mild to moderate morbidity. The primary goal of this clinical trial is to determine an appropriate dose of ALZN002 for



treatment of patlent% Wlth Alzheimer’ sin a lal ger Pha§e HB efﬁcacy and %afety chnlcal trial . On February 13 . 2024, we
received notice whieh A pee 0 ng-data-from the tn&r&l—tﬂa-l-company we
engaged as our contract research orgamzatlon (“ CRO ”), B10ras1, LLC (* Bloras1 ) that Biorasi was terminating our
contract with them. We are currently pursuing the engagement of a replacement CRO . The continuation of our current
plan of operations with respect to completing our IND applications and conducting the series of human clinical trials for each of
our therapeutics requires us to raise additional capital to fund our operations. Because our working capital requirements depend
upon numerous factors, including the progress of our preclinical and clinical testing, timing and cost of obtaining regulatory
approvals, changes in levels of resources that we devote to the development of manufacturing and marketing capabilities,
competitive and technological advances, status of competitors, and our ability to establish collaborative arrangements with other
organizations, we will require additional financing to fund future operations. - 52- Results of Operations for the Year Ended
April 30, 2623-2024 Compared to Year Ended April 30, 2022-2023 The following table summarizes the results of our operations
for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-: For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 2023 2022-$ Change % Change
OPERATING EXPENSES Research and development $ 6,455,107 $ 7, 445, 857 $ 5-(990 , 750)- 13 264, 314-$2,244-54343
% General and administrative 3, 482, 538 7, 424, 609 +3 , H8-942 , 071)- 53 2243663884 Total operating expenses 9,
937, 645 14, 870, 466 +2-(4 , 349-932 . 5352,-556;:-93+24-821 )- 33 % Loss from operations ( 9, 937, 645) ( 14, 870, 466) 4 42
, 349932 | 535+2;-556;93124-821 - 33 % OTHER INEOMEAEXPENSE ¥, NET Interest expense ( 10, 101) (7, 701) (46-2 ,
5%4—400 ) 31 38;-823-83-% Gainreonextinguishment-of-debt—4;-000-(4;-0001%-Total other ineome-expense, net ( expense-10,
101 ) ynet<(7, 701) (422, 524400 ) 31 34;:-823-82-% NET LOSS § (9, 947, 746) $ ( 14, 878, 167) $ 4 42, 362-930 , 421- 33
B5N-$2-516;1088320-% Basic and diluted net loss per common share $ (8-14 . 4570 ) $ (822 . +4-89 ) $ 8 (6-. 19 9—19—* Basic
and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 97676 , 5+9-565 650 , 126 6+6-89;-695;274-* —51+—* Not
meaningful We currently have only two product candidates, ALO0O1 and ALZNO002. These products are in the clinical stage of
development and will require extensive clinical study, review and evaluation, regulatory review and approval, significant
marketing efforts and substantial investment before either or both of them, and any respective successors, will provide us with
any revenue. We did not generate any revenues during the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, and we do not
anticipate that we will generate revenue for the foreseeable future. Research and Development Expenses Research and
development expenses for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-were $ 6. 5 million and § 7. 4 millienand $5-2
million, respectively. As reflected in the table below, research and development expenses primarily consisted of professional
fees, clinical trial fees, Heenses-and-fees-stock- based compensation expense . as well as stoek-eompensatiorr-other research
and development expense-expenses : For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 2023 2622-$ Change % Change Professional fees §$ 2,
898, 402 $ 4,617,816 $€~—(1 669—719 414) 37 009-$-948,-86726-% Clinical trial fees 3,246,578 2, 465, 437 206-781 , 141
3 66 66 % Stock - based compensation expense 213, 905
(42, 589) 42—3—256 494 602 -1-67—6465—756)——1—1—9—00 Other reqearch and development expenses 355-96, 222 405 . 193 +94-(308 ,
971)- 76 H51+61-0678-83-9% Total research and development expenses $ 6,455,107 $ 7, 445, 857 $ 5-(990 , 750)- 13 265314-$
2524454343~ Professional Fees During the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 a-nd%@%%— we incurred professional fees of
$ 2.9 million and $ 4. 6 million ard-$3—Fmithen, respectively, which were prinetpatty-primarily comprised of professional
fees attributed to various types of scientific services, including FDA consulting services. The #terease-decrease relates to lower
professional fees incurred related to the preparation for the clinical trial for ALZN002 during the year ended April 30,
2024, compared to professional fees incurred for the Phase I1A study-clinical trial for ALOO] for-dementiarelated-to
Alzheimer’s-during the year ended April 30, 2023 . - 53- Clinical Trial Fees During the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023
and2022- we incurred clinical trial fees of $ 3. 2 million and $ 2. 5 million and-$-0-2-millien-, respectively, whiehwere
pﬂnerpa-l-lyeeeﬁapr-tsed—ef—ehmea-l-Cllnlcal tnal fees &&rbufed—te—etu&Phas&&nd—Phase—HA—ehmeal—ma{s—tm AI:GG—I—I:leeﬁses

-Sﬁbheeﬁsrng—Tefms—Btrfmg—the year ended Apnl 30, %92—3—2024 we-inentrred-consisted of $ 5(-)—(-)(-)(-)—1ﬂ—heense—fees—felafed-te
the-IND-filing-1. 9 million for our Phase IIA clinical trial for AL001 and $ 1. 3 million for our Phase ITA clinical trial for
ALZNO002. Puring-Clinical trial fees for the year ended April 30, 20222023 were for our —weineurred-$7145,-000-intieense
feesrelated-to-theeompletion-ofthe-Phase | study-clinical trial for AL0O0O| fer-dementiarelated-to-Alzheimer>s-. Stock - Based
Compensation Expense During the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, we incurred $ 214, 000 and $ (43, 000) and
$-423,-660-, reqpecnvely, in research and development Stock based compenqatlon expenie related to Stock optlon grant% to

hares-instea g o h-payments: The gain-increase in re%eﬂrch and development stock - based
compensation expense for the year ended Aprd 30 %92—3—2024 was a result of forfettures-the vesting of performance stock
options grants previeustyexpensed-. Other Research and Development Expenses During the years ended April 30, 2024 and
2023 and2022-, we incurred other fees of § 96, 000 6—4-mithen-and $ 405, 000 6-2-mithen-, respectively, which were
prinetpatty-primarily comprised of scientific materials required for our clinical trials. =52=General and Administrative
Expenses General and administrative expenses for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-were $ #3 . 4-5 million
and $ 7. +4 million, respectively. As reflected in the table below, general and administrative expenses primarily consisted of the
following expense categories: stock - based compensation expense; salary and benefits; professional fees; marketing fees;
insurance; travel and entertainment; as well as beard-Board efdireeterfces. For the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and
2622-, the remaining general and administrative expenses of $ 3+5-381 , 000 and $ 336-514 , 000, respectively, primarily
consisted of payments for advertising and promotion, transfer agent fees, travel, and other office expenses, none of which is




significant individually. For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 2023 2022-$ Change % Change Salary and benefits $ 836, 046 $ 1,
042, 860 $ (206, 814)- 20 % Stock - based compensation expense $-741, 728 3, 625, 214 $3:985,403-$-( 366-2 , +89-883, 486
)- 9-%-Selary-and-benefits15-042,-860- 80 873;-0431+69,-84719-% Professional fees 735, 915 762, 396 H4-(26 , 836-48-481 )-
3 % Insurance 381 , 3607737 587, 427 (205, 690)- 35 % Marketing fees 247, 334 742, 601 +7-654-724;-9474166%
Insuranee-expense58F~427H4;329-( 126-495 | 962-267 )- 67 +8-%TFravel-and-entertainment194;746175;261+19-485-1H-%
Board efdireeter-fees 158, 333 150, 000 362-8 , 333 6 989-(152,-68956-" Other general and administrative expenses 3+9-381
,365336-446 514 , 436-111 (++132 , 6H-665 )- 5-26 % Total general and administrative expenses $ 3, 482,538 § 7, 424, 609
$ -7’—(3 -1—1-8—942 071) 53 2—2—1—$—396—3-8-8—4—° () Salary and Beneﬁts Durlng the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-,
gen AtStra 0 $ 836, 000 3—-6-mitonand $ 4-1 . 0 million,

respectively, in employee- related fe—s’eeeleepﬁen—grarﬁs—te—e*eet&wes—expenses As of Aprll 30 2024 we had four full- time
and three part- tlme employees and—eensu-lt&nts— Atlepti h : § -

general—&nd—ad:rnrmsfr&t-rve—expenses—ts—salaly and benehts expense was a result of lower bonuses earned during the year
ended April 30, 2024 . Stock- based Compensation Expense During the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, we
incurred general and administrative stock- based compensation expense of $ +-741, 000 and $ 3 . 6-6 million and-$-873;-066
, respectively, remployee—rclated to stock option grants to executives, employees and consultants. The decrease in stock-
based compensation expenses— expense —As-offor the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 ;-we-had-four-ful—time-and-was a
result of fewer stock options vesting during three—- the part—time-employees-period compared to the prior year period .
During the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and%@Q—Z— we fepeﬁed—incurred professional fees of $ 736, 000 and $ 762,
000 and-$FH4-000-, respectively 7w 3 he-foHowing-items—InJune 2047 we-entered-into-s

i e i i Dunng > the year ended Apr1l 30 %92—3—2024 we
1ncurred feeerded—&n—e*pense—e-f—b 187341, 000 ﬁS—a—feS‘H'l't—Of—t'l‘HS-ln audit and tax fees, $ 192, 000 in investor relations, $
104, 000 in legal fees, $ 33, 000 in related party consulting agreement, $ 28, 000 in Sarbanes- Oxley compliance fees and $
38, 000 in other professional fees . —During the year ended April 30, 2023, we incurred $ 189, 000 in eonsutting-fees;mainly
fer-Sarbanes- Oxley compliance fees, $ 187, 000 in connection with a consulting agreement , $ 187, 000 in audit and tax fees,
$ 126, 000 in 1egll fees, $ 50 ()()0 in related party consuluna and $ 22—23 000 in ivestor-relations-expenses—During-the-other
yea d-A and-tax—{ces .- 54- Insurance—$—248—999—m—$part&n

- Expense —-é%-—M&rkeﬁng—Fees—Durmg the years ended Apnl 30 2024 and 2023 we 1ncurred insurance expense of § 382
000 and $ 587, 000, respectively, which was primarily directors and officers insurance. Marketing Fees During the years
ended April 30, 20222024 and 2023 . we incurred marketing fees of $ 247, 000 and $ 743 7-0880-and-$48-, 000, respectively,
Wh1ch was prlmdnly expenses related to the mdlketmg and br"lnd development agreement with AULT l-nstlf&nee—E*peﬂse

ameﬂz&t—ten—e-ﬁdebt—d-tseeﬂnt—Current and Deferred lncome ques As of Apr1l 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, we had deferred
tax assets totaling $ +68-15 . 8 million and $ 10. +8 million, respectively. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the existence, or generation, of taxable income in the periods when those temporary differences and net
operating loss carryovers are deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, taxes paid in
carryover years, projected future taxable income, available tax planning strategies, and other factors in making this assessment.
Based on available evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not
be realized. Accordingly, we have established a 100 % valuation allowance. As a result of the full valuation allowance, we did
not record an income tax benefit for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-. Liquidity and Capital Resources The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. The
Company has incurred recurring net losses and operations have not provided sufficient cash flows. We believe that we will
continue to incur operating and net losses each quarter until at least the time we begin significant deliveries of our products. We
believe our current cash on hand is insufficient to fund our planned operations through one year after the date the financial
statements are issued. These factors create substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for at least one year
after the date that our audited financial statements are issued. Our inability to continue as a going concern could have a negative
impact on our company, including our ability to obtain needed financing. We intend to finance our future development activities
and our working capital needs largely through the sale of equity securities with some additional funding from other sources,
including debt financing, until such time as funds provided by operations are sufficient to fund working capital requirements.
Our financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or the
amounts and classifications of liabilities that might be necessary should we be unable to continue as a going concern. As of
April 30, 2623-2024 , we had cash of § 376, 000 5—-miHien-and an accumulated deficit of $ 44-54 . 4+-0 million. We have
incurred recurring losses and reported losses for the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 totaling $ +4-9 . 9 million. In the past, we
have financed our operations principally through sales of equity securities —n-Mareh-of2024;-we-entered-into-a-seetrities



We will need to obtain substantial additional funding in the future for our clinical development activities and continuing
operations. If we are unable to raise capital when needed or on favorable terms, we would be forced to delay, reduce, or
eliminate our research and development programs or future commercialization efforts . As previously disclosed, we had
anticipated beginning Phase II clinical trials for AL001 additional indications in the first quarter of calendar 2024. Due
to the Company’ s inability to obtain significant additional financing, we have been unable to initiate those clinical trials
and reduce the working capital deficiency . Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including: -
successful enrollment in and completion of clinical trials; —54= our ability to establish agreements with third- party
manufacturers for clinical supply for our clinical trials and, if our product candidates are approved, commercial manufacturing; -
our ability to maintain our current research and development programs and establish new research and development programs; -
addition and retention of key research and development personnel; - our efforts to enhance operational, financial, and
information management systems, and hire additional personnel, including personnel to support development of our product
candidates; - negotiating favorable terms in any collaboration, licensing, or other arrangements into which we may enter and
performing our obligations in such collaborations; - the timing and amount of milestone and other payments we may receive
under our collaboration arrangements; - §5- - our eventual commercialization plans for our product candidates; - the costs
involved in prosecuting, defending, and enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property claims; and - the costs and timing
of regulatory approvals. A change in the outcome of any of these or other variables with respect to the development of any of
our product candidates could significantly change the costs and timing associated with the development of that product
candidate. Furthermore, our operating plans may change in the future, and we may need additional funds to meet operational
needs and capital requirements associated with such operating plans. On September 8, 2023, we entered into an At- the-
Market Issuance Sales Agreement with Ascendiant Capital Markets, LL.C, as sales agent to sell shares of our common
stock, having an aggregate offering price of up to approximately $ 9. 8 million from time to time, through an “ at the
market offering ” (the “ ATM Offering ) as defined in Rule 415 under the Securities Act. On September 8, 2023, we
filed a prospectus supplement with the SEC relating to the offer and sale of up to approximately $ 9. 8 million in shares
of common stock in the ATM Offering. During the year ended April 30, 2024, we sold an aggregate of 107, 682 shares of
common stock pursuant to the ATM Offering for proceeds of $ 1. 3 million. On May 6, 2024, we terminated our ATM
Offering. Series B Preferred Financing On January 31, 2024, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with Ault
Lending (“ AL SPA ) whereby Ault Lending may purchase of up to 6, 000 shares of series B convertible preferred stock
(“ Series B Convertible Preferred Stock ) and warrants to purchase shares up to 600, 000 shares of our common stock.
The AL SPA provides that Ault Lending may purchase up to $ 6 million of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock in one
or more closings. Ault Lending has the right to purchase up to $ 2 million of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, on or
before March 31, 2024, and the right to purchase up to $ 4 million of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock after March
31, 2024, but on or before March 31, 2025 (the “ Termination Date ). The Agreement will automatically terminate if the
final closing has not occurred prior to the Termination Date. On January 31, 2024, we sold 1, 220 shares of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 122, 000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 12.
00, for a total purchase price of $ 1. 22 million. The purchase price was paid by the cancellation of $ 1. 15 million of cash
advances made by Ault Lending to us between November 9, 2023 and January 31, 2024 and a subscription receivable of
$ 70, 000. On March 26, 2024, we sold 780 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 78,
000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 12. 00, for a total purchase price of $ 780, 000. On April 29, 2024,
we sold 100 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 10, 000 shares of common stock
with an exercise price of $ 12. 00, for a total purchase price of $ 100, 000. The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock has a
stated value of $ 1, 000 per share (“ Series B Stated Value ) and does not accrue dividends. Each share of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into a number of shares of common stock determined by dividing the Series B
Stated Value by $ 10. 00 (the “ Series B Conversion Price ). The Series B Conversion Price is subject to adjustment in
the event of an issuance of common stock at a price per share lower than the Series B Conversion Price then in effect, as
well as upon customary stock splits, stock dividends, combinations or similar events. The holders of the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to vote with the common stock as a single class on an as- converted basis,
subject to applicable law provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law and Nasdaq, provided however, that for
purposes of complying with Nasdaq regulations, the conversion price, for purposes of determining the number of votes
the holder of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to cast, shall not be lower than $ 8. 73 (the “ Voting Floor
Price ), which represents the closing sale price of the common stock on the trading day immediately prior to the date of
execution of the AL SPA. The Voting Floor Price shall be adjusted for stock dividends, stock splits, stock combinations
and other similar transactions. The warrants have an exercise price of $ 12. 00 (the “ Series B Exercise Price ) and
become exercisable on the first business day after the six- month anniversary of issuance (the “ Series B Initial Exercise
Date ”) and have a five- year term, expiring on the fifth anniversary of the Series B Initial Exercise Date. The Series B




Exercise Price is subject to adjustment in the event of an issuance of common stock at a price per share lower than the
Series B Exercise Price then in effect, as well as upon customary stock splits, stock dividends, combinations or similar
events. For the period ended January 31, 2024, we recorded the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock as mezzanine
equity and the warrant as a liability. On March 21, 2024, we amended our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Designations for our Series B Convertible Preferred Stock to remove certain change of control language that could be
interpreted to require either debt or equity classification of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. As a result, we
classified both the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant as equity for the period ended April 30, 2024.- 56-
Series A Preferred Financing On May 8, 2024, we and Orchid Finance, LLC (“ Orchid ), entered into a securities
purchase agreement (the “ Orchid SPA ) for the purchase of up to 2, S00 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
(“ Series A Convertible Preferred Stock ) and warrants to purchase shares up to 2, 500, 000 shares of common stock in
several tranche closings. On May 10, 2024, we sold 100 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to
purchase 80, 000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 12. 50, for a total purchase price of $ 1. 0 million.
The purchase price was paid by the surrender and cancellation of a term note issued by us to Orchid of $ 311, 356,
consisting of $ 310, 000 of principal and $ 1, 356 of accrued and unpaid interest, $ 100, 000 discount and net cash of $
588, 644. On June 25, 2024, we sold 150 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 120,
000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 12. 50, for a total purchase price of $ 1. S million. The purchase
price was paid in cash. Pursuant to the Orchid SPA, Orchid has agreed to purchase the remaining 2, 250 Preferred
Shares based on our achievement of the milestones set forth below (the “ Milestones ”): * 250 Preferred Shares, for $ 2,
500, 000, within 30 days of the effectiveness of a resale registration statement (the “ Registration Statement ); * 200
Preferred Shares, for $ 2, 000, 000, within 60 days of the effectiveness of the Registration Statement and the execution of
a partnership agreement with a nationally renowned research facility for a clinical trial (the “ Fourth Tranche ”); and ¢
100 Preferred Shares, for $ 1, 000, 000, on each monthly anniversary of the effectiveness of the Registration Statement
until all remaining 1, 800 Preferred Shares have been sold (each, a “ Final Tranche ). Notwithstanding the foregoing
Milestones, Orchid has the ability to invest any amount in its sole discretion in advance of the dates that the foregoing
Milestones shall have been met. In the event that the average closing price of the common stock during the three trading
days preceding the date of a tranche closing shall not be equal to or greater than $ 2. 50 a share (the “ Floor Price ), then
the applicable closing shall be delayed until such time as the price meets the required threshold. We agreed to pay Ault
Lending an origination fee of five percent (S5 %) of the total gross proceeds we receive from Orchid upon each purchase
of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. We also agreed to pay Orchid a fee of $ 100, 000 upon the first closing, which
occurred on May 10, 2024, the Fourth Tranche and the third, eighth and thirteenth closings constituting parts of the
Final Tranche. The Registration Statement registering for resale the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion
of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and exercise of the warrants was declared effective on July 9, 2024. In
addition, we agreed to use our best efforts to hold a special meeting of our stockholders within 90 days of the execution
date of the Orchid SPA for purposes of seeking stockholder approval of the issuance of all the shares of common stock
issuable upon conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and the exercise of the warrants in excess of the
Nasdaq Limit ”, which is 19. 99 % of our shares of common stock issued and outstanding on the execution date of the
Orchid SPA. We held a special meeting of stockholders on July 8, 2024, at which time, the stockholders approved the
issuance of all the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and the
exercise of the warrants in excess of the “ Nasdaq Limit ”. The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock has a stated value of
$ 10, 000 per share (“ Series A Stated Value ”) and accrues dividends at the rate of 15 % per annum, payable quarterly
in arrears in cash or paid- in- kind shares, in Orchid’ s sole discretion. Each share of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock is convertible into a number of shares of common stock determined by dividing the Series A Stated Value by (y)
the greater of (i) the Floor Price and (ii) the lesser of (A) $ 15. 00 and (B) 80 % of the lowest closing price of our common
stock during the three trading days immediately prior to the date of conversion into conversion shares (the “ Series A
Conversion Price ). The Series A Conversion Price is subject to adjustment in the event of an issuance of common stock
at a price per share lower than the Series A Conversion Price then in effect, as well as upon customary stock splits, stock
dividends, combinations or similar events. The holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to vote
with the common stock as a single class on an as- converted basis, subject to applicable law provisions of the Delaware
General Corporation Law and Nasdaq, provided however, that for purposes of complying with Nasdaq regulations, the
conversion price, for purposes of determining the number of votes the holder of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock is
entitled to cast, shall not be lower than $ 5. 63 (the “ Series A Voting Floor Price ), which represents the closing sale
price of the common stock on the trading day immediately prior to the date of execution of the Orchid SPA. The Series A
Voting Floor Price shall be adjusted for stock dividends, stock splits, stock combinations and other similar transactions.
The warrants have an exercise price of $ 12. 50 (the “ Series A Exercise Price ) and are exercisable upon issuance and
have a five- year term, expiring on the fifth anniversary of issuance. The Series A Exercise Price is subject to adjustment
in the event of an issuance of common stock at a price per share lower than the Series A Exercise Price then in effect, as
well as upon customary stock splits, stock dividends, combinations or similar events. The warrants are exercisable on a
cashless basis in the event that there is not then an effective resale registration statement for the common stock issuable
upon exercise of the warrants.- 57- Cash Flows The following table summarizes our cash flows for the years ended April 30,
2024 and 2023 and2622- For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 2023 2622-Net cash provided by (used in) previded-by-
Operating activities $ (8, 923-269 , +52-993 ) § (68 , 613-923 , 996-152 ) Investing activities — +06-147 , 458243 ) - Financing
activities 3, 652, 425 200 48;-854;989-Net {decrease Hrerease-in cash and cash equivalents $ (4, 764, 811) $ (8, 922, 952) %
121434, 544-Operating Activities During the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 , net cash used in operating activities was $ 8. 3



million. This consisted primarily of a net loss of $ 9. 9 million, partially offset by non- cash charges of $ 956, 000 in stock-
based compensation expense and an increase in our net operating assets and liabilities of $ 671, 000. The increase in our
net operating assets and liabilities was primarily due to an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and a
decrease in prepaid expenses. During the year ended April 30, 2023, net cash used in operating activities was $ 8. ©
million. This consisted primarily of a net loss of $ 14. 9 million, partially offset by non- cash charges of $ 3. 6 million in stock-
based compensation expense and an increase in our net operating assets and liabilities of $ 2. 3 million. The increase in our net
operating assets and liabilities was primarily due to an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and a decrease in
prepard expen@es — related party Investlng Act1v1t1es Durrng the year ended Aprrl 30, %92—2—2024 —net—eash—used—m—epefat-rng

used in 1nve§t1ng actrvrtres was $ +66-147 , 000, from the purchase of equlpment and machrnery

-P-}us—rnstruﬂ&ent—to be u%ed eﬂ—t-he—m our ALZNO002 p

Phase l / 1A chnrcal trral —55-Financing Actrvrtrea Durlng the year
ended April 30, 2024, net cash provided by financing activities was $ 2. 1 million from the sale of convertible preferred
stock to Ault Lending, a related party, $ 1. 3 million from proceeds from the ATM Offering and $ 300, 000 from a
promlssory note. Durrng the year ended Aprll 30, 2023, net Caah provrded by ﬁnancrng actrvrtres was $ 200 from the exercrse

t-he—lssu&ne&ef—eeﬁnﬁeﬁ-steel&aﬂd—wafraﬂts—teﬁ]r Contractual Obhgatron% On July 2, 2018 we entered 1nt0 two Standard
Exclusive License Agreements with Sublicensing Terms for AL0O01 with the Licensor and its affiliate, the University of South
Florida (the “ ALOOI Licenses ™), pursuant to which the Licensor granted us a royalty bearing exclusive worldwide licenses
limited to the field of Alzheimer’ s, under United States Patent Nos. (i) 9, 840, 521, entitled “ Organic Anion Lithium Ionic
Cocrystal Compounds and Compositions ”, filed September 24, 2015 and granted December 12, 2017, and (ii) 9, 603, 869,
entitled “ Lithium Co- Crystals for Treatment of Neuropsychiatric Disorders ”, filed May 21, 2016 and granted March 28, 2017.
On February 1, 2019, we entered into the First Amendments to the ALOO1 Licenses, on March 30, 2021, we entered into the
Second Amendments to the ALOOI Licenses and on June 8, 2023, we entered into the Third Amendments to the AL001
Licenses (collectively, the “ ALOO1 License Agreements 7). The Third Amendments to the AL001 Licenses modified the
timing of the payments for the license fees. The AL001 License Agreements require that we pay combined royalty payments
of 4. 5 % on net sales of products developed from the licensed technology for ALOO1. We have already paid an initial license fee
of $ 200, 000 for ALOO1. As an additional licensing fee for the license of the AL0O1 technologies, the Licensor received 2-14 ,
853 227,923 shares of our common stock. Minimum royalties for ALO01 License Agreements are $ 40, 000 on the first
anniversary of the first commercial sale, $ 80, 000 on the second anniversary of the first commercial sale and $ 100, 000 on the
third anniversary of the first commercial sale and every year thereafter, for the life of the AL001 License Agreements. On May
1, 2016, we entered into a Standard Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms for ALZNO002 with the Licensor
(the “ ALZNO002 License ), pursuant to which the Licensor granted us a royalty bearing exclusive worldwide license limited to
the field of Alzheimer’ s Immunotherapy and Diagnostics, under United States Patent No. 8, 188, 046, entitled “ Amyloid Beta
Peptides and Methods of Use 7, filed April 7, 2009 and granted May 29, 2012. On August 18, 2017, we entered into the First
Amendment to the ALZNO002 License, on May 7, 2018, we entered into the Second Amendment to the ALZNO002 License, on
January 31, 2019, we entered into the Third Amendment to the ALZNO002 License, on January 24, 2020, we entered into the
Fourth Amendment to the ALZNO002 License, on March 30, 2021, we entered into the Fifth Amendment to the ALZN002
License and, on April 17,2023, we entered into the Sixth Amendment to the ALZN002 License and on December 11, 2023,
we entered into the Seventh Amendment to the ALZN002 License (collectively, the “ ALZNO02 License Agreement ). The
Seventh Amendment to the ALZN002 License modified the timing of the payments for the license fees.- 58- The ALZN002
License Agreement requires us to pay royalty payments of 4 % on net sales of products developed from the licensed technology
for ALZNO002. We have already paid an initial license fee of $ 200, 000 for ALZNO002. As an additional licensing fee for the
license of ALZNO002, the Licensor received 3-24 , 012 684-889-shares of our common stock. Minimum royalties for ALZN002
are $ 20, 000 on the first anniversary of the first commercial sale, $ 40, 000 on the second anniversary of the first commercial
sale and $ 50, 000 on the third anniversary of the first commercial sale and every year thereafter, for the life of the ALZN002
License Agreement. On November 19, 2019, we entered into two Standard Exclusive License Agreements with Sublicensing
Terms for two additional indications of AL0O1 with the Licensor (the “ November AL0O01 License ™), pursuant to which the
Licensor granted us a royalty bearing exclusive worldwide licenses limited to the fields of (i) neurodegenerative diseases
excluding Alzheimer’ s and (ii) psychiatric diseases and disorders. On March 30, 2021, we entered into the First Amendments to
the November ALOO1 License and on April 17, 2023, we entered into the Second Amendments to the November AL0O1
License (collectively, the “ November ALOO1 License Agreements ”). The Second Amendments to the November AL001
License modified the timing of the payments for the license fees. The November ALOO1 License Agreements require us to
pay royalty payments of 3 % on net sales of products developed from the licensed technology for AL0O1 in those fields. We
paid an initial license fee of $ 20, 000 for the additional indications. Minimum royalties for November ALOO1 License
Agreements are $ 40, 000 on the first anniversary of the first commercial sale, $ 80, 000 on the second anniversary of the first
commercial sale and $ 100, 000 on the third anniversary of the first commercial sale and every year thereafter, for the life of the
November ALOO1 License Agreements. These license agreements have an indefinite term that continue until the later of the date



no licensed patent under the applicable agreement remains a pending application or enforceable patent, the end date of any
period of market exclusivity granted by a governmental regulatory body, or the date on which the licensee’ s obligations to pay
royalties expire under the applicable license agreement. Under our various license agreements, if we fail to meet a milestone by
its specified date, Licensor may terminate the license agreement. The Licensor was also granted a preemptive right to acquire
such shares or other equity securities that may be issued from time to time by us while the Licensor remains the owner of any
equity securities of our company. —56—Additionally, we are required to pay milestone payments on the due dates to the Licensor
for the license of the AL0O1 technologies and for the ALZN002 technology, as follows: Payment Due Date Event $ 50, 000 *
Completed September 2019 Pre- IND meetlng $ 65, 000 * Completed June 2021 IND application filing $ 190, 000 * Completed
December 2021 Upon first dosing of patient in a cllnlcal trial $ 500, 000 * Completed March 2022 Upon Cemplettorr
completion of first clinical trial § 1, 250, 000 March 2025 24-menthsfromeompletion-of the-first Phase H-elinteal-trial-Upon
first patient treated in a Phase 111 cllnlcal trial $ 10, 000, 000 8 years from the effective date of the agreement Upon FDA NDA
approval Payment Due Date Event$ 50, 000 * Upon IND apphcatlon completed January 2022 filing-UponriiND-applieation
filing-5 50, 000 September2023-Upon first dosing of patient in first Phase I clinical trial $ 500, 000 Upon 24-menthsfrom
completion of first Phase felinteal-trial-Upon-eompletion-of-firstPhase H-1IB clinical trial § 1, 000, 000 +2-menths-frem
eompletion-ofthe-first Phase-H-ehntealtrial-Upon first patient treated in a Phase 111 clinical trlal $ 10, 000, 000 Fearsfromthe
effeetive-date-of the-agreement-Upon FBABEA-appreval-first commercial sale- 59- Payment Due Date Event $ 2, 000, 000
March 2026 36-menths-fromeompletion-ofthe-first Phase- H-elinteal-trial-Upon first patient treated in a Phase I11 clinical trial $
16, 000, 000 August 1, 2029 First commercial sale Recent Accounting Standards For information about recent accounting
pronouncements that may impact our financial statements, please refer to Note 3 of Notes to Financial Statements under the
heading “ Recent Accounting Standards. ” ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK Because we are a smaller reporting company, this section is not applicable. ITEM 8. FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA The financial statements required by this Item 8 are included in this Annual
Report following Item 16 hereof. As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide supplementary financial
information. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE- 5760 - ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and
Procedures We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
in our periodic and current reports that we file with the SEC is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’ s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that
any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
of achieving the desired control objectives. In reaching a reasonable level of assurance, management necessarily was required to
apply its judgment in evaluating the cost- benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. In addition, the design of any
system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no
assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost- effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. As of April 30, 2023-2024 , we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision of, and with the participation of, our
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a- 15 (b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “ Exchange Act ”’). We have established disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to management,
including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, with the assistance of other members
of the Company' s management, have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period
covered by this annual report and has determined that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective due to the
material weaknesses as described herein. —58—Management’ s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our
management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company' s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company' s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Our
management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of April 30, 2623-2024 . In making this



assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control- Integrated 2013 Framework. Our management has concluded that, as of April 30, 2623-2024 ,
our internal control over financial reporting was not effective. A material weakness is a control deficiency (within the meaning
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Auditing Standard No. 2) or combination of control
deficiencies that result in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected. Management has identified the following material weaknesses: 1. We do not have
sufficient resources in our accounting department, which restricts our ability to perform sufficient reviews and approval of
manual journal entries posted to the general ledger and to consistently execute review procedures over general ledger account
reconciliations, financial statement preparation and accounting for non- routine transactions; and - 61- 2. Our primary user
access controls (i. e., provisioning, de- provisioning, privileged access and user access reviews) to ensure appropriate
authorization and segregation of duties that would adequately restrict user and privileged access to the financially relevant
systems and data to appropriate personnel were not designed and / or implemented effectively. We did not design and / or
implement sufficient controls for program change management to certain financially relevant systems affecting our processes.
Planned Remediation We are implementing measures designed to improve our internal control over financial reporting to
remediate material weaknesses, including the following: - Fermatizing-Continue to formalize our internal control
documentation and strengthening supervisory reviews by our management; and - Adding-Developing plans to add additional
qualified accounting personnel and segregating-segregate dutics amongst accounting personnel. Management continues to work
to improve its controls related to our material weaknesses, specifically relating to user access and change management
surrounding our information technology systems and applications. Management will continue to implement measures to
remediate material weaknesses, such that these controls are designed, implemented, and operating effectively. The remediation
actions include: (i) enhancing design and documentation related to both user access and change management processes and
control activities; and (ii) developing and communicating additional policies and procedures to govern the area of information
technology change management. In order to achieve the timely implementation of the above, management has commenced the
following actions and will continue to assess additional opportunities for remediation on an ongoing basis: - Engaging a third-
party specialist to assist management with improving the Company’ s overall control environment, focusing on change
management and access controls; and - Implementing new applications and systems that are aligned with management’ s focus
on creating strong internal controls. —59-We are currently working to improve and simplify our internal processes and
implement enhanced controls, as discussed above, to address the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting and to remedy the ineffectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. These material weaknesses will not be
considered to be remediated until the applicable remediated controls are operating for a sufficient period of time and
management has concluded, through testing, that these controls are operating effectively. Despite the existence of these material
weaknesses, we believe that the financial statements included in the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10- K fairly
present, in all material respects, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in
conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting During
the fourth fiscal quarter of 2623-2024 , there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting which were
identified in connection with management’ s evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rules 13a- 15 and 15d- 15 under the
Exchange Act, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting. ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION Trading Plans During the three months ended April 30, 2024, no director
or Section 16 officer of the Company adopted or terminated a “ Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement ” or “ non- Rule
10b5- 1 trading arrangement, ” as each term is defined in Item 408 (a) of Regulation S- K. I[TEM 9C. DISCLOSURE
REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS Not applicable. - 66-62 - PART III ITEM 10.
Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance The following table sets forth the names and ages of our executive
officers, directors and director nominees, and their positions with us, as of the date of this Annual Report: Name Age Position
Stephan Jackman Chief Executive Officer and Director David J. Katzoff Chief Financial Officer Henry Nisser Executive Vice
President, General Counsel and Director Kenneth S. Cragun Senior Vice President of Finance William B. Horne Chairman of
the Board Milton C. Ault III Vice Chairman of the Board Mark Gustafson Director Lynne Fahey McGrath, M. P. H., Ph. D.
Director Jeffrey Oram Director Andrew H. Woo, M. D., Ph. D. Director The following information provides a brief description
of the business experience of each executive officer and director. Stephan Jackman joined our company as Chief Executive
Officer in November 2018. Mr. Jackman was elected as a director in September 2020. He has played an intricate role in the
development of therapeutic treatments, products and programs from the research stage to market and commercialization. Mr.
Jackman has demonstrated a dedicated dual focus of creating value for internal and external stakeholders while developing
strategic alliances and cross- function teams to meet and exceed goals. Prior to joining our company, from October 2017 to
November 2018, Mr. Jackman was the Chief Operating Officer of Ennaid Therapeutics, an emerging biopharmaceutical
company focusing on cures for mosquito borne infectious diseases such as Zika and Dengue viruses. From October 2015 to
October 2017, Mr. Jackman was Chief Operating Officer of Exit 9 Technologies, a technology startup with a digital platform
that connects retailers, publishers and customers. Additionally, from August 2014 to October 2015, he was an independent
project and management consultant assisting startups, Fortune 500 companies and non- profits with major strategic initiatives.
He has also held positions of increasing responsibility at Novartis Pharmaceuticals Corporation, L” Oréal USA, SBM
Management Services and Family Intervention Services. Mr. Jackman holds a Master of Science in Management and a Bachelor
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candidatesmake-him as-a-membe - Dav1d J. Katzoffjomed our company on a part tlrne ba51s in
November 2019, serving as our Senior Vice President of Operatlons from November 2019 to December 2020, as our Chief




Operating Officer from December 2020 until August 2022 and currently serves as our Chief Financial Officer since August
2022. Mr. Katzoffhas ierved as Senror Vice Pre%rdent of Flnance ofAULT since January 2019 —Sinee-Deeember20245-Mr-

3 d y . Since February 2021,
Mr Katzoffhas ierved as the Vice Pre%rdent of Flnance ofAult Dreruptrve Technologre% Corporatlon a publicly traded special
purpose acquisition company (“ Ault Disruptive ). From December 2021 to September 2023, Mr. Katzoff served as the
Chief Financial Officer of TurnOnGreen, Inc. (formerly, Imperalis Holding Corp.) (“ TurnOnGreen ), an OTCQB
quoted company. From 2015 to 2018, Mr. Katzoff served as Chief Financial Officer of Lumina Media, LLC, a privately- held
media company and publisher of life- style publications. From 2003 to 2017, Mr. Katzoff served a Vice President of Finance of
Local Corporation, a publicly- held local search company. Mr. Katzoff received a B. S. degree in Business Management from
the University of California at Davis. Henry C. W. Nisser has served as our Executive Vice President and General Counsel on a
part- time basis since May 2019. Mr. Nisser was appointed as a director in September 2020. Since May 2019, Mr. Nisser has
served as the Executive Vice President and General Counsel of AULT and as one of its directors since September 2020; he
became AULT’ s President on January 12, 2021. Since Febraary-March 2024-2023 , Mr. Nisser has served as the President,
General Counsel and a-director of AuttDisraptive-RiskOn International, Inc . , an OTCPK quoted company (“ ROI »).
Since February 2021, Mr. Nisser has served en-as the beard-ofPresident, General Counsel and a direetors— director of Ault
Disruptive. Since April 2023, Mr. Nisser has served as a director of The Singing Machine Company, Inc. , an issuer listed
on Nasdaq (“SME-MICS ”) . Mr. Nisser is the Executive Vlce Pres1dent and General Counsel of Avalanche Internatlonal
Corp. , a Nasdagtisted-publicly traded Nevada company thatis 0 &0 s
Apri-2023-categorized as a “ voluntary filer ” (not required to file perlodlc reports) (“ Avalanche ») . Mr. Nisser ha@
qerved as the-a President, General Coun@el and a en—t-he—beard—ef—d-rreefer& director of Ault & Co BitNte-Metaverse;Ine-. ;a

m-since May 2019 Mareh2023—Mr—Nisseris-the

E*eeuﬂve—Vtee—PresrdeﬂPaﬁd—Geﬁer&keeﬂﬁsel-ef—Avahﬂeh& From October 2011 through April 2019, Mr. Nisser was an
associate and subsequently a partner with Sichenzia Ross Ference LLP, a law firm in New York. While with this law firm, his
practice was concentrated on national and international corporate law, with a particular focus on U. S. securities compliance,
pubhc as well as prrvate M&A, equlty and debt ﬁnanerngi and corporate governance Mr. Nriqerd-ra-fted—aﬂd-negefhﬁed-&
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joined our company on a part- trme basis in December 2018. Since February 2021 Mr. Cragun has served as the Chief Frnanc1al
Officer of Ault Disruptive. Since August 2020, Mr. Cragun has served as the Chref Financial Officer of AULT Awlt-Adianee
and between October 2018 and August 2020, served as its Chief Accounting Officer. Since September 2018, Mr. Cragun has
served on the board of directors and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Verb Technology Company, Inc. Since July 2022, Mr.
Cragun has served on the board of directors of SME-MICS . He served as a CFO Partner at Hardesty, LLC, a national executive
services firm between October 2016 and October 2018. His assignments at Hardesty included serving as Chief Financial Officer
of CorVel Corporation, a publicly traded company and a nationwide leader in technology driven, healthcare- related, risk
management programs, and of RISA Tech, Inc., a private structural design and optimization software company. Mr. Cragun was
also Chief Financial Officer of two Nasdaq- traded companies, Local Corporation, from April 2009 to September 2016, which
operated Local. com, a U. S. top 100 website, and Modtech Holdings, Inc., from June 2006 to March 2009, a supplier of
modular buildings. Prior thereto, he had financial leadership roles with increasing responsibilities at MIVA, Inc., ImproveNet,
Inc., NetCharge Inc., C- Cube Microsystems, Inc, and 3- Com Corporation. Mr. Cragun began his professional career at
Deloitte. Mr. Cragun holds a Bachelor of Science degree in accounting from Colorado State University- Pueblo. William B.
Horne has served as a director of our company since June 2016 and upon the effectiveness of our initial public offering in June
2021, Mr. Horne become our Chairman of the Board. Mr. Horne served as our Chief Financial Officer from June 2016 through
December 2018. Mr. Horne has been a member of the board of directors of AULT since October 2016. In January 2018, Mr.
Horne was appointed as AULT” s Chief Financial Officer until August 2020, when he resigned as its Chief Financial Officer and
was appointed as its President. On January 12, 2021, Mr. Horne resigned as AULT’ s President and became its Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Horne has served as a director and Chief Executive Officer of Ault Disruptive since its inception in February 2021.
Mr. Horne has served as a director and Chief Financial Officer of Avalanche since June 2016. Mr. Horne has served as a
director and Chief Financial Officer of Ault & Co. since October 2017. He served as the Chief Financial Officer of Targeted
Medical Pharma, Inc. from August 2013 to May 2019. Mr. Horne previously held the position of Chief Financial Officer in
various public and private companies in the healthcare and high- tech field. Mr. Horne has a Bachelor of Arts Magna Cum
Laude in Accounting from Seattle University. We-believe-Milton C. Ault, III has served as a director of our company since
January 2024. Mr. Ault is the Company’ s founder and served as Chairman and a director from inception in 2016 until
the Company’ s initial public offering in June 2021. Since January 2021, Mr. Ault has served as the Executive Chairman
of AULT. Between December 2017 and January 2021, Mr. Ault was the Chief Executive Officer of AULT and between
March 2017 and December 2017, Mr. Ault served as the Executive Chairman of AULT. Mr. Ault has served as the
Chairman of the Board of Ault Disruptive since its incorporation in February 2021. Since January 2024, Mr. Ault has
served as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of ROI. Since April 2023, Mr. Ault has served as the Executive
Chairman of the board of directors of MICS. Mr. Ault has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Ault &
Co. since December 2015, and as Chairman of Avalanche since September 2014. Since January 2011, Mr. Ault has been



the Vice President of Business Development for MCKEA Holdings, LLC, a family office (“ MCKEA ). Mr. Ault is a
seasoned business professional and entrepreneur who has spent more than twenty- seven years identifying value in
various financial markets including equities, fixed income, commodities, and real estate. Throughout his career, Mr.
Ault has consulted for a few publicly traded and privately held companles, prov1d1ng each of them the beneﬁt of hlS
d1vers1ﬁed expenence, that range from development stage Mr—He A

busmesses Se%as-eﬁe-e-f—eu%dﬁeemfs— Mark Gu%tafqon Jomed our Board e-f—Btreeters—and became the Chairman of the Audit
Committee in June 2021. Mr. Gustafson is a Chartered Professional Accountant with over 35 years of corporate, private and
public company experience. Since January-June 2023-2024 . Mr. Gustafson has been the Chief Financial Officer of Orga
Energy Ltd., a private oil and gas production company based in Calgary, Alberta. From January 2023 to June 2024, Mr.
Gustafson was a director and non- executive Chairman of BrainLuxury, Inc., a private U. S. company that is developing and
selling nutrients for the brain. Since April 2021, Mr. Gustafson has been the Chief Financial Officer, and since January 2022, a
director, for PharmaKure Limited, a private London- based biopharmaceutical company dedicated to the treatment of
neurodegenerative diseases. Sinee-Between December 2021 and December 2023 , Mr. Gustafson kas-served as an independent
director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Ault Disruptive. Stree-From June 2020 to March 2024 , Mr. Gustafson has
served-as-was a the-feunder-and-director of Alpha Helium Inc., a private Canadian- based company helium exploration
company. From 2014 to 2020, he was the Chief Executive Officer of Challenger Acquisitions Limited, a London Stock
Exchange listed entertainment company. From 2010 to 2012, Mr. Gustafson was the President and Chief Executive Officer of
Euromax Resources Limited, a Toronto Stock Exchange listed mineral exploration company. From 2005 to 2009, he served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Triangle Energy Corporation, a New York Stock Exchange listed oil and gas
exploration company, from 2004 to 2006, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Torrent Energy Corporation, a
private oil and gas company, and from 2001 to 2002, he served as a financial consultant for Samson Oil & Gas and Peavine
Resources, two private oil and gas companies. From 1997 to 1999, Mr. Gustafson served as President and Chief Executive
Officer of Total Energy Services Ltd., a Toronto Stock Exchange listed oilfield services company, from 1993 to 1995, he served
as the Chief Financial Officer of Q / media Software Corporation, a Toronto Stock Exchange listed software company, and from
1987 to 1993, he served initially as the Chief Financial Officer and then as a Vice President in charge of two operating divisions
at EnServ Corporation, a Toronto Stock Exchange listed oilfield services company. From 1981 to 1987, he served as an audit
manager at Price Waterhouse in Calgary Alberta. Mr. Gustafson received his Bachelor of Business Administration from Wilfrid
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companies in the b10pharmaceutlcal 1ndu%try, 1nc1ud1ng to the executlve team of Nobla% Therapeutlcs Inc., a blotechnology
product development company, between May 2020 and December 2021; a regulatory consultant with F OXKI%GI‘ LLC, a
biotechnology consulting firm, from August 2018 to March 2020; and a regulatory consultant with Catalyst Healthcare
Consulting, a biotechnology consulting firm, from 2020 to 2021. Dr. McGrath was a senior lead and Vice President of
Regulatory Affairs at Regenxbio, Inc., where she headed global strategy for its portfolio of gene therapy products, from April
2015 to July 2018. Previously, she held senior positions at Novartis Corporation including Vice President, Global Head of
Regulatory Affairs at Novartis Consumer Health and U. S. Head of Regulatory Affairs at Novartis Oncology from 2003 to April
2015. Dr. McGrath received a B. S. degree from the University of Connecticut, M. S. in Environmental Science from Rutgers
University and M. P. H. and Ph. D in Pubhc Health from the Unlverslty of Medlcme and Dentistry of N ew Jersey Robert Wood
Johnson Medlcal School we-believ 0

of Direetors-in June 2021. Mr. Oram isa bu%mes% profes%mnal with more than 25 years of corporate, private and institutional
investment experience. Mr. Oram has spent the last 13 years in the institutional real estate capital markets. Since 2016, he has
been a Principal at Godby Realtors, a private real estate investment and brokerage firm. From 2010 to 2018, Mr. Oram served as
an Executive Member of the New Jersey State Investment Council, which oversees the investment of the State of New Jersey’ s
pension fund. From 2011 to 2016, he served as Executive Managing Director at Colliers International, from 2009 to 2011 he
served as Director at Marcus and Millichap, and from 2003 to 2009, served as First Vice President at CB Richard Ellis. Mr.
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Andrew H. Woo M. D, Ph. D Jomed our Board e-f—Bi-feeters—ln June 2021. Dr. Woo is in private practlce at Santa Monlca
Neurological Consultants and serves as an Assistant Clinical Professor of Neurology at the David Geffen School of Medicine at
UCLA and Cedars- Sinai Medical Center. He also serves on the board for the Multiple Sclerosis Association of America and its
Navigating MS International Steering Committee. He has been presented with UCLA clinical faculty teaching awards in 2006,
2012 and 2019 and is listed in America’ s Top Physicians by the Consumer Research Council of America and Castle Connolly
America’ s Top Doctors 2006, 2007, 2010- 2021, Southern California Super Doctors since 2008, and Los Angeles Magazine
Top Doctors. He is an invited speaker at the Muntada International Symposium in Abu Dhabi. Dr. Woo received his B. A. from
Cornell University and completed his M. D. and Ph. D. in Neuroimmunology in the Department of Molecular and Cell Biology
at Brown University. He completed his medicine internship at Weil- Cornell Presbyterian Hospital / Cornell Medical Center in
New York, his neurology residency at UCLA, and his fellowship in neurophysiology at Harbor- UCLA. We-beheve-that D=



Board Leadershrp Structure and Risk Oversrght Our Board is currently charred by Mr Horne. Mr. Horne has been a director
since June 2016 and served as our Chief Financial Officer from June 2016 until December 2018. Given Mr. Horne’ s extensive
history with and knowledge of our company, we believe his role as our Chairman facilitates a regular flow of information
between the Board and management and ensures that they both act with a common purpose. One of the key functions of our
Board is informed oversight of our risk management process. Our Board does not have a standing risk management committee,
but rather administers this oversight function directly through the Board as a whole, as well as through various standing
committees of our Board that address risks inherent in their respective areas of oversight. In particular, our Board is responsible
for monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure, including a determination of the nature and level of risk appropriate for us.
Our Audit Committee has the responsibility to consider and discuss our major financial risk exposures and the steps our
management has taken to monitor and control these exposures, including guidelines and policies to govern the process by which
risk assessment and management is undertaken. The Audit Committee also monitors compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, in addition to oversight of the performance of our internal audit function. Our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee monitors the effectiveness of our corporate governance guidelines, including whether they are
successful in preventing illegal or improper liability- creating conduct. Our Compensation Committee assesses and monitors
whether any of our compensation policies and programs has the potential to encourage excessive risk- taking. —63—Board
Committees Our Board efBireeters-has an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee (which consists of Mr. Gustafson (Chair), Mr. Oram and
Dr. Woo) include recommending to the Board efBireetors-the independent registered public accounting firm efindependent
aeeountants-to be retained by our company, reviewing with our independent registered public aceountants-accounting firm the
scope and results of their audits, and reviewing with the independent registered public aceountants-accounting firm and
management our accounting and reporting principles, policies and practices, as well as our accounting, financial and operating
controls and staff. The Compensation Committee (which consist of Dr. McGrath (Chair), Mr. Gustafson and Mr. Oram) has
responsibility for establishing and reviewing employee compensation. The Compensation Committee also has responsibility for
administering and interpreting the Alzamend Neuro, Inc. 2021 Stock Incentive Plan, and determining the recipients, amounts
and other terms (subject to the requirements of the Plan) of stock options and other equity- based awards which may be granted
under the 2021 Stock Incentive Plan from time to time. The purpose of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
(which consist of Mr. Oram (Chair), Dr. McGrath and Dr. Woo) is to select, or recommend for our entire Board’ s selection, the
individuals to stand for election as directors at the annual meeting of stockholders, as well as to consider the adequacy of our
corporate governance and oversee and approve management continuity planning processes. - 65- Certain Board Arrangements
In May 2021, the Board efDireetorsofoureompany-and Mr. Ault, our Founder and Chairman Emeritus, agreed to certain
arrangements with regard to our Board composition and other matters. Contemporaneously with the effeetiveness
consummation of the initial public offering, and in consideration for (i) the conversion of 750 shares of our series A convertible
preferred stock beneficially owned by Mr. Ault through ALSI into 100 +5;-666-, 000 shares of er-common stock, (ii) the
extension of the maturity date of the promissory note in the original principal amount of $ 15, 000, 000 (the “ ALSF Note *)
issued to us by ALSF to December 31, 2023, and (iii) the retirementby-resignation of Mr. Ault as a director and executive
officer of our company, the Board agreed that William B. Horne will-beeeme-be named our Chairman of the Board and remain
in that position for so long as Mr. Ault beneficially owns no less than 5 % of the outstanding shares of est-common stock (for
which Mr. Horne will be paid $ 50, 000 per year for his services), and Mr. Nisser willremainremains a member of our Board
of Pireetors-for so long as Mr. Ault beneficially owns no less than 5 % of the outstanding shares of e#r-common stock (for no
additional remuneration). Additionally, Mr. Ault will hold the position of Founder and Chairman Emeritus and, as such, have
the right to nominate an observer to our Board efBireetors-for a period of five years after the closing date of the initial public
offering. Immediately FeHowing-following the closing of the initial public offering in June 2021 , we entered into a five- year
consulting agreement with Mr. Ault under which he will provide strategic advisory and consulting services to us in consideration
for annual fees of $ 50, 000. Upon Mr. Ault’ s reappointment to the Board in January 2024, the consulting agreement was
terminated. Term of Office Directors serve until the next annual meeting of our stockholders and until their successors are
elected and qualified. Officers are appointed to serve at the discretion of our Board efBireetors-. Family Relationships There are
no family relationships among any of our executive officers and directors. Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings Except as
set forth below, to the best of our knowledge, during the past 10 years, none of the following occurred with respect to a present
or former director, executive officer or employee: ¢ been convicted in a criminal proceeding or been subject to a pending
criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses); * had any bankruptcy petition filed by or against the
business or property of the person, or of any partnership, corporation or business association of which he was a general partner
or executive officer, either at the time of the bankruptcy filing or within two years prior to that time; * « been subject to any
order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction or federal or
state authority, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting, his involvement in any type of
business, securities, futures, commodities, investment, banking, savings and loan, or insurance activities, or to be associated with
persons engaged in any such activity; « been found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action or by the SEC or the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has
not been reversed, suspended, or vacated; * * « been the subject of, or a party to, any federal or state judicial or administrative
order, judgment, decree, or finding, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated (not including any settlement of a civil
proceeding among private litigants), relating to an alleged violation of any federal or state securities or commodities law or
regulation, any law or regulation respecting financial institutions or insurance companies including, but not limited to, a
temporary or permanent injunction, order of disgorgement or restitution, civil money penalty or temporary or permanent cease-



and- desist order, or removal or prohibition order, or any law or regulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud or fraud in connection
with any business entity; and —64— or been the subject of, or a party to, any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed,
suspended or vacated, of any self- regulatory organization (as defined in Section 3 (a) (26) of the Exchange Act), any registered
entity (as defined in Section 1 (a) (29) of the Commodity Exchange Act), or any equivalent exchange, association, entity or
organization that has disciplinary authority over its members or persons associated with a member. * Mr. Cragun served as
Chief Financial Officer of Local Corporation (April 2009 to September 2016), whieh-formerly based in Irvine, California, and
,in June 2015, Local Corporation filed a voluntary petition in the United States B—S—Bankruptcy Court for the Central
District of California seeking relief under the provisions of Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Code. * * Please see the
press release issued by AULT on August 15, 2023.- 66- Except as disclosed in “ Certain Relationships and Related Party
Transactions, ”” none of our directors or executive officers has been involved in any transactions with us or any of our directors,
executive officers, affiliates or associates which are required to be disclosed pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC.
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Our Board has adopted a written code of business conduct and ethics, revised effective
May 25, 2021, that applies to our directors, officers and employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer and principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions (the “ Code of Conduct and Ethics
). In addition, on May 25, 2021, we adopted Code of Ethics for our Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Financial Officers
(the “ Code of Ethics ). We have posted on our website a current copy of both codes and all disclosures that are required by law
in regard to any amendments to, or waivers from, any provision of the Code of Conduct and Ethics. ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATION Summary Compensation Table The following table sets forth summary compensation information for the
following persons: (i) all persons serving as our principal executive officer during the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and
2022-, and (ii) up to our two other most highly compensated executive officers who received compensation during the years
ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, who were executive officers on the last day of our fiscal year. We refer to these
persons as our “ named executive officers ” in this Annual Report. The following table includes all compensation earned by the
named executive officers for the respective period, regardless of whether such amounts were actually paid during the period:
Name and principal position Year Salary (§) Bonus ($) Stock award ($) Option Awards 619—( 1) ($) All Other Compensation (2)
($) Total ($) Stephan S. Jackman 2024 350, 000 75, 000 — — 18, 617 443, 617 Chief Executive Officer 2023 300, 000 120,
000 — 1, 789, 375 14, 236 2, 223, 6+2-Chief Exeeutive-Offteer363;125176-611 David J. Katzoff (3) 2024 150, 000 — — —
47-3—— 150 . , 000 Chlef Flnanclal Ofﬁcer 2023 -1—2§—Baﬂd—J—Katze-ff—(-3)—l 16, 667 — — ——116, 667 Ehief Finaneiat Offieer
1) The values reported in the “
Optlon Awards ” column represents the aégregate grant date fair value, computed n accoulance with Aeeounting-Standards
Ceodiffeation(~ASC 2718 , Share Based Payments, of grants of stock options to each of our named executive officers and
directors. (2) The amounts included in “ All Other Compensation * consist of health insurance benefits. (3) Mr. Katzoff was
appointed our Chief Fmdncml Ol‘hcer on August 5 2022. Prior thereto that he was our Chief Operating Officer. ¢43vs-
stied-as A —Employment Agreements Stephan-CEO Pay Ratio As
required by Sectlon 953 (b) of the Dodd- Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, we are providing
d1sclosure regardlng the ratlo of annual total compensatlon of Mr. ackmdn —eﬁ—}uﬁe—l—7— 2024 we-entered-nte-an
v o€ pve-as-our Chief Executive Officer through
J-nly— to that of our median employee Our medlan employee earned $ 130 000 in total compensation for our fiscal year
ended April 30, 2024. Based upon the total fiscal year 2024 compensation reported for Mr. Jackman of $ 443, 617 as
reported under “ Total ” in the Summary Compensation Table, our ratio of PEO to median employee pay was 3: | .
Calculation Methodology To identify our median employee, we identified our total employee population worldwide as of
April 30 , 2024 —Pursuant-to-the-Agreement-, Mr-excluding our Chief Executive Officer, in accordance with SEC rules .
Jaekman-On April 30, 2024, all of our employee population was paid-a-located in the U. S. We collected full- year fiscal
year 2024 actual gross earnings data for the April 30, 2024 employee population, including cash- base-based satery-of$
3606-compensation and equity- based compensation that was realized in fiscal year 2024 , 866-per-annum-relying on our
internal payroll records. Compensation was annualized on a straight- line basis for non- temporary new hire employees
who did not work with our company for the full calendar year.- 67- Once we determined the median employee , we
calculated total compensation for the median employee in the same manner in which we determine was-iereased-by-the
compensation shown for our named executive officers in the Summary Compensation Table Committeeto-$-350-, 600
ef-feet—we—May—ln accordance with SEC rules Pohcles on Ownershlp, Insider Trading, 10bS- | Plans ;-2623(the~Base
A4 g earn-aeashand ~Hedging We do not have formal stock ownership
guldellnes or-for our employees equtty—beﬂﬁs—as—etuh or dlrectors, because the Board efis satisfied that stock and option
holdings among our employees or DPireetors-directors are sufficient at this (the~Beard--may-determine;from-time to

prov1de motivation tﬂﬁe—based—efrmeeﬁﬁg—peffefmanee—ebjeetwes—dnd beﬁﬁs-eﬂteﬂa—to allgn this group be-identified-by-the
. ard-" s sole-diseretion-interests

with those of our stockholders We have estabhshed an 1ns1der tradlng pohcy that provides guidelines to , and imposes
restrictions on, officers, directors and employees with respect to transactions in our securities. Our insider trading policy
prohibits certain actions by such individuals relating to buying and selling our common stock , and discourages certain
other actions in other situations. Such individuals are authorized to enter into trading plans established according to
Section 10b5- 1 of the Exchange Act with an independent broker- dealer. Under these plans, the individual must not
exercise any influence over the amount of the securities to be traded, the price at which they are to be traded or the date
of the trade . The determinationrofplan must whether—- either swe-specify the amount, pricing and timing of transactions in
advance or delegate discretion on these matters to an 1ndependent third party. Such plans provide a defense from insider
trading liability. We have not adopted aeh ; ve-irany hedging policies yearfor-the




table provides 1nformat10n on outqtandlng equity awards as of Apr11 30, 2623-2024 awarded to our named executive officers:
OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT APRIL 30, 2023-2024 Option Awards Name Number of Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable Equity Incentive
Plan Awards: Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Unearned Options (#) Option Exercise Price ($) Option Expiration
Date Stephan Jackman 3-20, 000 7666--+150 . 00 11/ 15/2028-2-13 , 333 13, 333 225. 660-- 00 ;-606-2,-606,-660+-56-11 /
18/2029-2-13 ., 666-333 13 , 333 660-2-606;,-6001+17175 .50 11 /29 /2032 David J. Katzoff 466-2 , 666-666 - +150 . 00 1 /
21/2029 726-4 , 840 826 628423972 +225 . 56-00 11 / 1 /2029 243528364721 ,424 243-225 . 56-00 11 /26 /2029-+
6,666 6, 666 225. 660-- 00 -6061-0600,0001-50-11/ 18 /2029 —66=—Incentive Compensatlon Plans 2016 Stock Incentive Plan
In April 2016, our stockholders approved our company’ s 2016 Stock Incentive Plan (the “ 2016 Plan ™). The 2016 Plan provides
for the issuance of a maximum of +2-83 , 333 500;-000-shares of our common stock to be offered to our directors, officers,
employees and consultants. On March 1, 2019, our stockholders approved an additional 586-- 50 , 000 shares to be available
for issuance under the 2016 Plan. Options granted under the 2016 Plan have an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair
value of the underlying common stock at the date of grant and become exercisable based on a vesting schedule determined at
the date of grant. The options expire between five and 10 years from the date of grant. Restricted stock awards granted under the
2016 Plan are subject to a vesting period determined at the date of grant. In February 2021, our Board efBireetors-adopted, and
our stockholders approved, the Alzamend Neuro, Inc. 2021 Stock Incentive Plan (the “ 2021 Plan ). The 2021 Plan authorizes
the grant to eligible individuals of (1) stock options (incentive and non- statutory), (2) restricted stock, (3) stock appreciation
rights, or SARs, (4) restricted stock units, and (5) other stock- based compensation. - 68- Stock Subject to the 2021 Plan. The
maximum number of shares of our common stock that may be issued under the 2021 Plan is +8-66 , 666 660,-006-shares, which
number will be increased to the extent that compensation granted under the 2021 Plan is forfeited, expires or is settled for cash
(except as otherwise provided in the 2021 Plan). Substitute awards (awards made or shares issued by us in assumption of, or in
substitution or exchange for, awards previously granted, or the right or obligation to make future awards, in each case by a
company that we acquire or any subsidiary of ours or with which we or any subsidiary combines) will not reduce the shares
authorized for grant under the 2021 Plan, nor will shares subject to a substitute award be added to the shares available for
issuance or transfer under the 2021 Plan. No Liberal Share Recycling. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, any and all
stock that is (i) withheld or tendered in payment of an option exercise price; (ii) withheld by us or tendered by the grantee to
satisfy any tax withholding obligation with respect to any award, (iii) covered by a SAR that it is settled in stock, without regard
to the number of shares of stock that are actually issued to the grantee upon exercise; or (iv) reacquired by us on the open market
or otherwise using cash proceeds from the exercise of options, will not be added to the maximum number of shares of stock that
may be issued under the 2021 Plan. Eligibility. Employees of, and consultants to, our company or our affiliates and members of
our Board efDireetors-are eligible to receive equity awards under the 2021 Plan. Only our employees, and employees of our
parent and subsidiary corporations, if any, are eligible to receive incentive stock options. Employees, directors (including non-
employee directors) and consultants of or for our company and our affiliates are eligible to receive non- statutory stock options,
restricted stock, purchase rights and any other form of award the 2021 Plan authorizes. Purpose. The purpose of the 2021 Plan is
to promote the interests of our company and our stockholders by providing executive officers, employees, non- employee



directors, and key advisors of our company and our subsidiaries with appropriate incentives and rewards to encourage them to
enter into and remain in their positions with us and to acquire a proprietary interest in our long- term success, as well as to
reward the performance of these individuals in fulfilling their personal responsibilities for long- range and annual achievements.
Administration. Unless otherwise determined by the Board ef Bireeters-, the Compensation Committee administers the 2021
Plan. The Compensation Committee is composed solely of “ non- employee directors ” within the meaning of Rule 16b- 3 under
the Exchange Act, “ outside directors ” within the meaning of Section 162 (m) of the Internal Revenue Code, and *“ independent
directors ” within the meaning of the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules. The Compensation Committee has the power, in its discretion,
to grant awards under the 2021 Plan, to select the individuals to whom awards are granted, to determine the terms of the grants,
to interpret the provisions of the 2021 Plan and to otherwise administer the 2021 Plan. Except as prohibited by applicable law or
any rule promulgated by a national securities exchange to which our company may in the future be subject, the Compensation
Committee may delegate all or any of its responsibilities and powers under the 2021 Plan to one or more of its members,
including, without limitation, the power to designate participants and determine the amount, timing and term of awards under
the 2021 Plan. In no event, however, will the Compensation Committee have the power to accelerate the payment or vesting of
any award, other than in the event of death, disability, retirement or a change of control of our company. The 2021 Plan provides
that members of the Compensation Committee will be indemnified and held harmless by us from any loss or expense resulting
from claims and litigation arising from actions related to the 2021 Plan. Term. The 2021 Plan was effective as of February 17,
2021, and awards may be granted through February 16, 2031. No awards may be granted under the 2021 Plan subsequent to that
date. The Board ef Bireetors-may suspend or terminate the 2021 Plan without stockholder approval or ratification at any time or
from time to time. —6#—Amendments. Subject to the terms of the 2021 Plan, the Compensation Committee, as administrator, has
the sole discretion to interpret the provisions of the 2021 Plan and outstanding awards. Our Board efBireeters-generally may
amend or terminate the 2021 Plan at any time and for any reason, except that no amendment, suspension or termination may
impair the rights of any participant without his or her consent, and except that approval of our stockholders is required for any
amendment which, among provisions, increases the number of shares of common stock subject to the 2021 Plan, decreases the
price at which grants may be granted and reprices existing options. Repricing Prohibition. Other than in connection with certain
corporate events, the Compensation Committee will not, without the approval of our stockholders, (a) lower the option price per
share of an option or SAR after it is granted, (b) cancel an option or SAR when the exercise price per share exceeds the fair
market value of one share in exchange for cash or another award (other than in connection with a change of control), or (c) take
any other action with respect to an option or SAR that would be treated as a repricing under the rules and regulations of the
principal U. S. national securities exchange on which our shares are then listed. Minimum Vesting Requirement. Grantees of
full- value awards (i. e., awards other than options and SARs), will be required to continue to provide services to us or an
affiliated company) for not less than one- year following the date of grant in order for any such full- value awards to fully or
partially vest (other than in case of death, disability or a Change of Control). Notwithstanding the foregoing, up to 5 % of the
available shares of stock authorized for issuance under the 2021 Plan may provide for vesting of full- value awards, partially or
in full, in less than one year. - 69- Adjustments upon Changes in Capitalization. In the event of any merger, reorganization,
consolidation, recapitalization, dividend or distribution (whether in cash, shares or other property, other than a regular cash
dividend), stock split, reverse stock split, spin- off or similar transaction or other change in our corporate structure affecting our
common stock or the value thereof, appropriate adjustments to the 2021 Plan and awards will be made as the Board ef Direetors
determines to be equitable or appropriate, including adjustments in the number and class of shares of stock available for issuance
under the 2021 Plan, the number, class and exercise or grant price of shares subject to awards outstanding under the 2021 Plan,
and the limits on the number of awards that any person may receive. Change of Control. Agreements evidencing awards under
the 2021 Plan may provide that upon a Change of Control (as defined in the 2021 Plan), unless otherwise provided in the
agreement evidencing an award), outstanding awards may be cancelled and terminated without payment if the consideration
payable with respect to one share of stock in connection with the Change of Control is less than the exercise price or grant price
applicable to such award, as applicable. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the 2021 Plan to the contrary, the vesting,
payment, purchase or distribution of an award may not be accelerated by reason of a Change of Control for any participant
unless the Grantee’ s employment is involuntarily terminated as a result of the Change of Control as provided in the Award
agreement or in any other written agreement, including an employment agreement, between us and the participant. If the Change
of Control results in the involuntary termination of participant’ s employment, outstanding awards will immediately vest,
become fully exercisable and may thereafter be exercised. Generally, under the 2021 Plan, a Change of Control occurs upon (i)
the consummation of a reorganization, merger or consolidation of our company with or into another entity, pursuant to which our
stockholders immediately prior to the transaction do not own more than 50 % of the total combined voting power after the
transaction, (ii) the consummation of the sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets, (iii) certain
changes in the majority of our Board ef Bireetors-from those in office on the effective date of the 2021 Plan, (iv) the acquisition
of more than 50 % of the total combined voting power in our outstanding securities by any person, or (v) we are dissolved or
liquidated. Types of Awards Stock Options. Incentive stock options and non- statutory stock options are granted pursuant to
award agreements adopted by our Compensation Committee. Our Compensation Committee determines the exercise price for a
stock option, within the terms and conditions of the 2021 Plan; provided, that the exercise price of an incentive stock option
cannot be less than 100 % of the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Options granted under the 2021
Plan vest at the rate specified by our Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee determines the term of stock
options granted under the 2021 Plan, up to a maximum of 10 years, except in the case of certain Incentive Stock Options, as
described below. The Compensation Committee will also determine the length of period during which an optionee may exercise
their options if an optionee’ s relationship with us, or any of our affiliates, ceases for any reason; for incentive stock options, this
period is limited by applicable law. The Compensation Committee may extend the exercise period in the event that exercise of



the option following termination of service is prohibited by applicable securities laws. In no event, however, may an option be
exercised beyond the expiration of its term unless the term is extended in accordance with applicable law. —68—Acceptable
consideration for the purchase of common stock issued upon the exercise of a stock option will be determined by the
Compensation Committee and may include (a) cash or its equivalent, (b) delivering a properly executed notice of exercise of the
option to us and a broker, with irrevocable instructions to the broker promptly to deliver to us the amount necessary to pay the
exercise price of the option, (c) any other form of legal consideration that may be acceptable to the Compensation Committee or
(d) any combination of (a), (b) or (c). Unless the Compensation Committee provides otherwise, options are generally
transferable in accordance with applicable law, provided that any transferee of such options agrees to become bound by the
terms of the 2021 Plan. An optionee may also designate a beneficiary who may exercise the option following the optionee’ s
death. Incentive or Non- statutory Stock Options. Incentive stock options may be granted only to our employees, and the
employees of our parent or subsidiary corporations, if any. The Compensation Committee may grant awards of incentive or non-
statutory stock options that are fully vested on the date made, to any of our employees, directors or consultants. Option awards
are granted pursuant to award agreements adopted by our Compensation Committee. To the extent required by applicable law,
the aggregate fair market value, determined at the time of grant, of shares of our common stock with respect to incentive stock
options that are exercisable for the first time by an optionee during any calendar year may not exceed $ 100, 000. To the extent
required by applicable law, no incentive stock option may be granted to any person who, at the time of the grant, owns or is
deemed to own stock possessing more than 10 % of our total combined voting power or that of any of our affiliates unless (a)
the option exercise price is at least 110 % of the fair market value of the stock subject to the option on the date of grant and (b)
the term of the incentive stock option does not exceed five years from the date of grant. - 70- Stock Appreciation Rights. An
SAR is the right to receive stock, cash, or other property equal in value to the difference between the grant price of the SAR and
the market price of our common stock on the exercise date. SARs may be granted independently or in tandem with an option at
the time of grant of the related option. An SAR granted in tandem with an option will be exercisable only to the extent the
underlying option is exercisable. An SAR confers on the grantee a right to receive an amount with respect to each share of
common stock subject thereto, upon exercise thereof, equal to the excess of (A) the fair market value of one share of common
stock on the date of exercise over (B) the grant price of the SAR (which in the case of an SAR granted in tandem with an option
will be equal to the exercise price of the underlying option, and which in the case of any other SAR will be such price as the
Compensation Committee may determine but in no event will be less than the fair market value of a share of common stock on
the date of grant of such SAR). Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock is common stock that we grant
subject to transfer restrictions and vesting criteria. A restricted stock unit is a right to receive stock or cash equal to the value of a
share of stock at the end of a specified period that we grant subject to transfer restrictions and vesting criteria. The grant of these
awards under the 2021 Plan are subject to such terms, conditions and restrictions as the Compensation Committee determines
consistent with the terms of the 2021 Plan. At the time of grant, the Compensation Committee may place restrictions on
restricted stock and restricted stock units that will lapse, in whole or in part, only upon the attainment of performance goals;
provided that such performance goals will relate to periods of performance of at least one fiscal year, and if the award is granted
to a 162 (m) officer, the grant of the award and the establishment of the performance goals will be made during the period
required under Internal Revenue Code Section 162 (m). Except to the extent restricted under the award agreement relating to the
restricted stock, a grantee granted restricted stock will have all of the rights of a stockholder, including the right to vote restricted
stock and the right to receive dividends. Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement, upon the vesting of a restricted stock
unit, there will be delivered to the grantee, within 30 days of the date on which such award (or any portion thereof) vests, the
number of shares of common stock equal to the number of restricted stock units becoming so vested. Other Stock- Based
Awards. The 2021 Plan also allows the Compensation Committee to grant *“ Other Stock- Based Awards, ” which means a right
or other interest that may be denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on, or
related to, common stock. Subject to the limitations contained in the 2021 Plan, this includes, without limitation, (i) unrestricted
stock awarded as a bonus or upon the attainment of performance goals or otherwise as permitted under the 2021 Plan, and (ii) a
right to acquire stock from us containing terms and conditions prescribed by the Compensation Committee. At the time of the
grant of other stock- based awards, the Compensation Committee may place restrictions on the payout or vesting of other stock-
based awards that will lapse, in whole or in part, only upon the attainment of performance goals; provided that such Performance
Goals will relate to periods of performance of at least one fiscal year, and if the award is granted to a 162 (m) Officer, the grant
of the Award and the establishment of the performance goals will be made during the period required under Internal Revenue
Code Section 162 (m). Other Stock- Based Awards may not be granted with the right to receive dividend equivalent payments.
Performance Awards. Performance awards provide participants with the opportunity to receive shares of our common stock,
cash or other property based on performance and other vesting conditions. Performance awards may be granted from time to
time as determined at the discretion of the Board, or the Compensation Committee (as applicable). Subject to the share limit and
maximum dollar value set forth above under “ Limits per Participant, ” the Board, or the Compensation Committee (as
applicable), has the discretion to determine (i) the number of shares of common stock under, or the dollar value of, a
performance award and (ii) the conditions that must be satisfied for grant or for vesting, which typically will be based
principally or solely on achievement of performance goals. —69-Performance Criteria. With respect to awards intended to
qualify as performance- based compensation under Code Section 162 (m), a committee of “ outside directors ” (as defined in
Code Section 162 (m)) with authority delegated by our Board will determine the terms and conditions of such awards, including
the performance criteria. The performance goals for restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, performance awards or other
stock- based awards will be based on the attainment of specified levels of, among other metrics, the attainment of certain target
levels of, or a specified percentage increase in, revenues, earnings, income before taxes and extraordinary items, net income,
operating income, earnings before or after deduction for all or any portion of income tax, earnings before interest, taxes,



depreciation and amortization or a combination of any or all of the foregoing. The performance goals may be based solely by
reference to our performance or the performance of one or more of our subsidiaries, parents, divisions, business segments or
business units, or based upon the relative performance of other companies or upon comparisons of any of the indicators of
performance relative to other companies. The authorized committee of outside directors may also exclude under the terms of the
performance awards, the impact of an event or occurrence that the committee determines should appropriately be excluded,
including restructurings, discontinued operations, extraordinary items, and other unusual or non- recurring charges, or changes
in generally accepted accounting principles or practices. = 71- Director Compensation The Company pays each independent
director an annual base amount of § 25, 000. Additionally, our Board makes recommendations for adjustments to an
independent director’ s compensation when the level of services provided are significantly above what was anticipated. The
table below sets forth, for each non- employee director, the total amount of compensation related to his or her service during the
year ended April 30, 2623-2024 : Name Fees earned or paid in cash ($) Stock awards ($) Options awards ($) All other
compensation ($) Total ($) William B. Horne 50, 000--- 50, 000 Milton C. Ault III 8, 333--- 8, 333 Mark Gustafson 25, 000---
25, 000 Lynne Fahey McGrath 25, 000--- 25, 000 Andy H. Woo 25, 000--- 25, 000 Jeffrey Oram 25, 000--- 25, 000 ITEM 12.
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS The following table shows the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of July 24-29 , 2623
2024 , held by (i) each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5 % of our outstanding common stock, (ii)
each of our directors and director nominees, (iii) each of our executive officers, and (iv) all of our directors, director nominees
and executive officers as a group. As of July 24-29 , 2023-2024 , there were 96-841 . 240 946;424-shares of our common stock
issued and outstanding. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, and generally includes
voting power and / or investment power with respect to the securities held. Shares of our common stock subject to options and
warrants currently exercisable or which may become exercisable within 60 days of the date of this Annual Report, are deemed
outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding such options or warrants for purposes of computing the number of
shares and percentage beneficially owned by such person but are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the
percentage beneficially owned by any other person. Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, the persons or entities
named have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our common stock shown as beneficially owned by
them. Unless otherwise noted in the footnotes to the following table, and subject to applicable community property laws, the
persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to their beneficially owned common stock.
Unless otherwise indicated, the principal address of each of the persons below is ¢ / 0 Alzamend Neuro, Inc., 3480 Peachtree
Road NE, Second Floor, Suite 103, Atlanta, GA 30326.- 70-72 - Greater than 5 % Beneficial Owners: Number of shares of
Common Stock Beneficially Owned Percentage of Shares Beneficially Owned Ault Life Sciences, Inc. (1) 99, 619 11. 84 %
Ault Lending, LLC (2) 780, 922 50. 55 % Ault Alliance, Inc. (3) 781, 033 50 55 % Directors and Executive Officers
Mllton C Ault, TI1 (1) (2) (3) (4)43-897 , 887 58 992—652—43— 8611 % Ine- 5 5

efﬁeefs—Stephan Jackman (5)320, 303 2 945%99—3— 85-36 % DaVld J. Katzoff (6) 10, 599 1 —485—95-8—1— 5—1—24 % Henry C.
W. Nisser (7) +8 . 333 * 256,-600-+-—27%Kenneth S. Cragun (8) 10 5560, 000 1. 5217 % William B. Horne (9) 18,333 2 5
F50:-6062-. 79-15 % Mark Gustafson (10) 366-2 , 866-400 * Lynne Fahey McGrath, M. P. H., Ph. D. (11)385-2 , 666-500 *
Jeffrey Oram (12) 460-2 , 886-666 * Andrew H. Woo, M. D., Ph. D. (12) 486-2 , 886-666 * All dircctors and named executive
officers as a group (9-10 persons) H-975 , 566;-688 60. 458-- 45 +6-86-7 * Less than 1 % of outstanding shares. (1) Milton C.
(Todd) Ault, III, our Founder and Viece Chairman Emeritas-, has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares
held of record by ALSI. (2) Represents16-Mr. Ault has voting and investment power with respect to the securities held by
Ault Lending. Consists of (i) 77 , 169 666;-680-shares of esr-common stock and 5-(ii) 703 , 753 660;-806-shares of eur
common stock issuable upon conversion the-exereise-of Series B Preferred Stock. Excludes (A) 210, 000 shares of common
stock underlying warrants that are not currently exercisable and (B) 22, 222 shares of common stock underlying
currently exercisable warrants due to a beneficial ownership blocker limitation provision contained therein .
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Ault Lending is only permitted to cast a vote representing 240, 549 shares of common
stock, instead of the 703, 753 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock, in
accordance with the terms of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation of the Rights and Preferences of the
Series B Preferred Stock. (3) Mr. Ault has sete-voting and investment power with respect to the securities held efreeerd-by
AESF-AULT . Ault Lending is a wholly owned subsidiary of AULT. Consists of ( 3-i ) Mr—Aulthas-voting-andinvestment
power-with-respeet-to-the-seeurities-111 shares of common stock underlying currently exercisable warrants, (ii) 99, 619
shares of common stock held by A&-ALSI and (iii) 703, 753 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Series B
Preferred Stock held by Ault Lending . Excludes 3-(A) 210 , 000 333;333-shares of eur-common stock underlying
warrants held by Ault Lending that are not currently exercisable and (B) 22, 222 shares of common stock underlying
currently exercisable warrants held by Ad=-Ault Lending due to a beneficial ownership blocker limitation provision contained
therein. (4) Jnelades-Consists of (1) 2-16 , 686 560,-000-shares of our common stock held by Mr. Ault, (i1) 383-77 , 966-169
shares of ear-common stock held by Ault Lending AdphatP-, and-(iii) +6-703 , 667-753 shares of common stock issuable upon
the-conversion of Series B Preferred Stock held by Ault Lending, (iv) 99, 619 shares of common stock held by ALSI, (v)
549 shares of common stock held by Ault Life Sciences Fund, LLC (“ ALSF ”) and (vi) 111 shares of common stock
underlying currently exereise-exercisable ef—warranti held by AU-I:T—M-FAult Alliance. Excludes ﬂ—ﬂ&e—N{&fmgefeﬁ%t&t
A}pha,‘GP_EIZG(A_I*B'I{_G‘P_“ ”)210 Jataesmen danagemen —AtGP-and Managemen

, 000 fespeefwe}y—ﬁs-sueh—M-h%&Hs—deemed—M%ﬂeﬁemHy
evm—the—qhaleq of common stock underlymg warrants held by Ault AdphatP-Lending that are not currently exercisable

and (B) 22, 222 shares of common stock underlying currently exercisable warrants held by Ault Lending due to a




beneficial ownership blocker limitation provision contained therein. Mr. Ault has sole voting and investment power with
respect to the securities held of record by ALSF . (5) Consist of 45:-566-(i) 303 shares of our common stock and 3;-660-(ii) 20
, 000 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within
60 days. (6) Consists of (i) 540 28;-688-shares of our common stock, (ii) 60 3;-8686-shares of our common stock issuable upon
the exercise of warrants and (iii) +9 , 999 448;-358-shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that
are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days. (7) Represents shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of
stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days. Mr. Nisser’ s address is +00-RarkcAventue-122 East
42nd Street, 50th Floor , Suite +658-5000 , New York, New York +86+710168 . - 73- (8) Represents shares of our common
stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days. (9) Consists of
+(i) 6 , 666 966;-660-shares of our common stock and 4-(ii) 11 , 666 #568;-800-shares of our common stock issuable upon the
exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days. (10) Consists of 66;-866-(i) 400 shares of
our common stock and 386-(ii) 2 , 000 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that are currently
exercisable or exercisable Wlthln 60 days -—7—1—-—(1 1) Consists 0f(1) 500 —7’5—999—%hare% of our common qtock owned by Dr.
McGrath s-and (i) 2 i v € SP d
and-i1)-366-, 000 9hare€ of our common stock issuable upon the exercrqe of qtock optrong owned by Dr McGrath that are
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days. N e o d
speuse—(12) Consists of +86;-0080-(i) 666 shares of our common itock and %99—(11) 2, OOO qhale% of our common qtock issuable
upon the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days. Equity Compensation
Information The following table summarizes information about our equity compensation plans as of April 30, 2623-2024 :
Number of securities Number of securities Weighted- remaining available for to be issued average future issuance under upon
exercise exercise price equity compensation plans of outstanding of outstanding (excluding securities options, warrants and
rights options, warrants and rights reflected in column (a)) Plan Category (a) (b) (c) Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders +4-98 . 000 189 868,329+ 22-9-60 62 ., 000 +H5-6H-Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders 4
32 ,856-333 230. 60- Total 130, 333 199. 60 62 . 000 +—-54—Fetal+9;-658;329+24-9494;-6H-ITEM 13. CERTAIN
RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE Certain Relationships
Our-eompany-is-eontrolted-by-Milton C. (Todd) Ault, I1I, our Founder and earrent-Vice Chairman Emerttus-, has significant
influence over our Company , directly and through his controlling interests in A&-AULT , Ault Lending and ALSI and-ALSE
. Mr. Ault is also the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and single largest beneficial stockholder (through Ault AdphatP-&
Co. ) of AULT. The Board efBireetors-and executive officers of our company and the board of directors and executive officers
of AULT contain some of the same individuals. William B. Horne, the Chairman of the Board of our company, is the Chief
Executive Officer and a director of AULT, Henry Nisser, our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and a director of our
company, is the President, General Counsel and a director of AULT, and Kenneth S. Cragun, our Senior Vice President of
Finance is the Chief Financial Officer of AULT. Transactions with Related Persons To the best of our knowledge, during our
most recent fiscal year end on April 30, 2623-2024 , other than as set forth below, there were no material transactions, or series
of similar transactions, or any currently proposed transactions, or series of similar transactions, to which we were or are to be a
party, in which the amount involved exceeds $ +86-32 , 366-736 , or 1 % of the average total assets at year- end for the last two
completed fiscal years, and in which any director or executive officer, or any security holder who is known by us to own of
record or beneficially more than 5 % of any class of our common stock, or any member of the immediate family of any of the
foregoing persons, has an interest (other than compensation to our officers and directors in the ordinary course of business). On
April 30,2019, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with ALSF for the sale of +$8-66 , 666 888,-060-sharcs of enr
common stock, plus 533 , 333 800,-009-warrants with a five- year term and an exercise price of $ 3450 . 00 per share and
vesting upon issuance (the “ ALSF Warrants ). The total purchase price of $ 15, 000, 000 was in the form of the a-nrete-from
ALSF Note . The ALSF nete-Note balance as of April 30, 2020 was reduced by $ 16, 800 reflecting payments made during the
year ended April 30, 2020. The ALSF nete-Note balance as of April 30, 2021 was reduced by $ 99, 905 reflecting payments
made during the year ended April 30, 2021. As of April 30, 2023, the ALSF nete-Note balance was $ 14, 883, 295. The ALSF
nete-Note 1s-was due December 31, 2023. The control person of ALSF is Mr. Ault —etuLFeuﬁde%aﬁd-Gh&rfman—E-meﬁfus—
ALSF is wholly owned by ALSI. ALSI is almost entirely Wholly owned by Ault & Co €empanytne-., of which MCKEA
He}dmgs—I:I:G(—M-GKEA—)— of which Mr. Ault’ s spouse is the managing member, is the majority owner. As such, MCKEA
is indirectly the majority owner of ALSF. The ALSF note-Note ts-was sccured by a Steek-stock Pledge-pledge Agreement
agreement dated June 11, 2019 (—While-the seeutities-purehase-*“ Pledge Agreement ”).- 74- On January 19, 2024, we

entered into a settlement agreement with previdesfor-ALSE 2s-ability-to-pledge-the-seeurities-aequired-thereby-, pursuant
gwen—t-h&t—t-he—pttrehased—seet&rﬁes—&fe—w-bjeet—to Whlch fhe—seetn%&es—ptﬁe%rase—agfeemeﬂt—we—&ﬂd-ALSF returned 66 agfee&

t-f&nsaeﬁeﬁs— wﬂ&e&xe%er—ne%regrsfered*m&eﬁhe%ewﬁreﬁet—re&ﬂ%mg—m full settlement gross-proeceds-to-us-of notess-than
$25-the ALSF Note and the Pledge Agreement , 996,-900-as well as disputes and claims between the parties . [n May

2021, the Board ef Bireetors-ofoureompany-and Mr. Ault ;ourFounderand-ChairmanEmeritus-, agreed to certain



arrangements with regard to our Board composition and other matters. Contemporaneously with the consummation of the initial
public offering, and in consideration for (i) the conversion of 750 shares of our series A convertible preferred stock beneficially
owned by Mr. Ault through ALSI into 100 -15—999— 000 qhare% of ear-common stock, (ii) the extension of the maturity date of
rote—n e vALSF Note to December 31, 2023, and (iii) the
resignation of Mr. Ault as a director and executlve offlcer of our company, the Board agreed that erham B. Horne be named
our Chairman of the Board and remain in that position for so long as Mr. Ault beneficially owns no less than 5 % of the
outstanding shares of etr-common stock (for which Mr. Horne will be paid $ 50, 000 per year for his services), and Mr. Nisser
remains a member of our Board efBireeters-for so long as Mr. Ault beneficially owns no less than 5 % of the outstanding shares
of ear-common stock (for no additional remuneration). Additionally, Mr. Ault will hold the position of Founder and Chairman
Emeritus and, as such, have the right to nominate an observer to our Board efBireetors-for a period of five years after the
closing date of the initial public offering. Immediately following the closing of the initial public offering in June 2021, we
entered into a five- year consulting agreement with Mr. Ault under which he will provide strategic advisory and consulting
services to us in consideration for annual fees of $ 50, 000. Upon Mr. Ault’ s reappointment to the Board in January 2024,
the consulting agreement was terminated. In November 2022, we entered into a marketing and brand development agreement
with AULT, effective August 1, 2022, whereby AULT will-previde-provided various marketing services over twelve months
valued at $ 1. 4 million. We had the right to pay the fee in cash or shares of #s-common stock with a value of $ +225 . 58-00 per
share. On November 11, 2022, we elected to pay the fee with 933-6 , 334-222 shares of egr-common stock . On the January 31,
2024, we entered into the SPA with Ault Lending, pursuant to which we agreed to sell to Ault Lending up to 6, 000 shares
of Series B Preferred Stock and Series B Warrants to purchase up to 600, 000 shares of common stock in one or more
closings. On the Execution Date, we sold 1, 220 shares of Series B Preferred Stock and Series B Warrants to purchase
122, 000 shares of common stock to Ault Lending, for a total purchase price of $ 1. 22 million, which was paid by the
cancellation of $ 1. 22 million of cash advances made by Ault Lending to us between November 9, 2023 and the Execution
Date. Each share of Series B Preferred Stock is convertible into such number of Conversion Shares determined by
dividing the Stated Value by the Conversion Price. The Series B Preferred Stock votes with the common stock, on an “
as- converted ” basis, subject to certain limitations as set forth in the Series B Certificate of Designations. The Series B
Warrants grant Ault Lending the right to purchase Warrant Shares at the Exercise Price of $ 12. 00 for a period of five
years from the Initial Exercise Date. On March 26, 2024, we sold 780 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and
Series B Warrants to purchase 78, 000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 12. 00, for a total purchase
price of $ 780, 000. On April 29, 2024, we sold 100 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Warrants
to purchase 10, 000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $ 12. 00, for a total purchase price of $ 100, 000 .
Our accountlng and ﬁnance department use qhared offlce Space W1th1n the Costa Mesa ofﬁces of AULT. M-l-l-teﬁ—%u-}t—H-I—ettf

e-f—eu-reeempaﬁ-y—F uture Tran%actronq Our Board e-f—B-r-reeters—ha% adopted a pohcy Whereby any future transactions between our
company and any of our subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors, principal stockholders or any affiliates of the foregoing will
be on terms no less favorable to us than could reasonably be obtained in *“ arm’ s length ” transactions with independent third
parties, and any such transactions will also be approved by a majority of our disinterested and independent outside directors.
Director Independence Independent Audit Committee Nominating and Governance Committee Compensation Committee
Director Stephan Jackman No William B. Horne Yes Milton C. Ault No Henry Nisser No Mark Gustafson Yes C X Lynne
Fahey McGrath Yes X C Jeffrey Oram Yes X C X Andrew H. Woo Yes X X C — Chairman of committee X —
Member of committee- #3-75 - ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES Baker Tilly US, LLP (*
Baker Tilly ”) served as our independent registered public accounting firm for the years— year ended April 30, 2023 and-. On
May 6, 2622-2024 , our audit committee dismissed Baker Tilly and appointed Haskell & White LLP as our independent
registered public accounting firm for the year ended April 30,2024 . Fees and Services The following table shows the
aggregate fees bited-paid to us for professional services by Baker Tilly BS-HEP-for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023
and2022-: 2024 2023 Audit Services $ 263,160 $ 140, 779 $3+65-400-Audit Related Services —48, 600 — Tax Services — 6,
811 48;606-All Other Services — — Total $ 311,760 $ 147, 590 $484;-060-Audit Fee. This category includes the aggregate
fees bilted-paid for professional services rendered for the audits of our financial statements fer-during the years ended April 30,
2024 and 2023 and2022-, for the reviews of the interim financial statements during the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023
and2022-, and for other services that are normally provided by the independent auditors in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements for the relevant years. We have not paid Haskell & White LLP for any audit services as
they were not engaged prior to April 30, 2024. Audit- Related Fees. This category includes the aggregate fees biHed-paid in
each of the last two years for assurance and related services by the independent auditors that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audits or reviews of the financial statements and are not reported above under “ Audit Fees, ”” and generally
consist of fees for other engagements under professional auditing standards, accounting and reporting consultations, internal
control- related matters, and audits of employee benefit plans. Tax Fees. This category includes the aggregate fees biHed-paid in
each of the last two years for professional services rendered by the independent auditors for tax compliance, tax planning and
tax advice. All Other Fees. This category includes the aggregate fees bilted-paid in each of the last two years for products and
services provided by the independent auditors that are not reported above under ““ Audit Fees, ” “ Audit- Related Fees, ” or “ Tax
Fees. ” The Audit Committee’ s policy is to pre- approve all services provided by our independent auditers-registered public
accounting firm . These services may include audit services, audit- related services, tax services and other services. The Audit
Committee may also pre- approve particular services on a case- by- case basis. Our independent auditors are required to report
periodically to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services they provide in accordance with such pre- approval.- 74-76
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Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2. 1 of Form DOS filed with the SEC on August 19, 2016). 3
Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation, filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on June 10, 2016
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC on December 15,
2023). 3. 3 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation, filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on
December 22, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 3 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC
on December 15, 2023). 3. 4 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation, filed with the Delaware
Secretary of State on October 27, 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K
filed with the SEC on October 30, 2023). 3. S Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights
and Limitations of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on March 1, 2024
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on March 7, 2024). 3. 6
Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and
Limitations of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on March 21, 2024
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on March 22, 2024). 3.
7 Certificate of Designations of Preferences and Rights of Series A Preferred Stock, as filed with the Delaware Secretary
of State on May 9, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the amended Current Report on Form 8- K/ A filed
with the SEC on May 10, 2024). 3. 8 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 of the
registration statement on Form S- | filed with the SEC on May 10, 2021). 3-4 . 3-Certifteate-1 Form of Designation-of
A-}z&meﬁd—Neﬂfe-Warrant 1ssued to Ault Lendlng LLC {ﬁe—Seﬂehﬁ—Geﬂveﬁrb}e—Pfefeiﬁd—Sfeeled&ted—May—}H%

formerly Reerpora

the Current Report on Fo1m -1—8 H—K f1led w 1th the SE( on M&feh—l—Z—February 2 ,262+2024 ). 4.3 Form of Warrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K ﬁled with the SEC on May 9, 2024). 4. 4 *
Description of Capital Stock . 10. 1 Standard Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms with the University of
South Florida Research Foundation, Inc., dated May 1, 2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6. 1 of Form DOS / A filed
with the SEC on September 29, 2016). 10. 2 Standard Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms Number
LIC18110 with the University of South Florida Research Foundation, Inc., dated July 2, 2018 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 6. 3 of Form 1- K filed with the SEC on February 21, 2019). 10. 3 Standard Exclusive License Agreement with
Sublicensing Terms Number LIC18111 with the University of South Florida Research Foundation, Inc., dated July 2, 2018
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6. 4 of Form 1- K filed with the SEC on February 21, 2019). 10. 4 Standard Exclusive
License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms Number LIC19050 with the University of South Florida Research Foundation,
Inc., dated June 10, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6. 6 of Form 1- K filed with the SEC on August 28, 2020). 10. 5
Standard Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms Number LIC19051 with the University of South Florida
Reseauh Foundatlon Inc., dated June 10, 2020 (111(:01p01ated by reference to Exhibit 6. 7 of Form - K filed with the SEC on

%ﬁﬂe@%&%ﬂ@%ﬁfﬂ%dﬂr&ﬁh%&k%&% 01 6 Amended and Restated Stock
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 1 of Form S- 8 filed with the SEC on July 13, 2021). —5-10. +2-7 2021
Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 2 of Form S- 8 filed with the SEC on July 3,2021). 10. 843%
Form of Amendment to Standard Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms with the University of South Florida
Research Foundation, Inc., dated April 16, 2023 —(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. +4-*-13 of annual report on
Form 10- K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2023). 10. 9 Form of Amendment to Standard Exclusive License Agreement with
Sublicensing Terms Number LIC19050 with the University of South Florida Research Foundation, Inc., dated April 16, 2023 <
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. +5*-14 of annual report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2023).
10. 10 Form of Amendment to Standard Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms Number LIC19051 with the
University of South Florida Research Foundation, Inc., dated April 16, 2023 —(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. +6-*
15 of annual report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2023).- 77- 10. 11 Form of Amendment to Standard
Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms Number LIC18110 with the University of South Florida Research
Foundation, Inc., dated June 8, 2023 —(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. +7%-16 of annual report on Form 10- K
filed with the SEC on July 27, 2023). 10. 12 Form of Amendment to Standard Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing
Terms Number LIC18111 with the University of South Florida Research Foundation, Inc., dated June 8, 2023 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 17 of annual report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2023). 10. 13 Securities
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Purchase Agreement, dated January 31, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form
8- K filed with the SEC on February 2, 2024). 10. 14 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 9, 2024). 10. 15 Form of Registration
Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
May 9, 2024). 21. 1 List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21. 1 of the registration statement on Form
S- 1 filed with the SEC on June 3, 2024) . 23. | * Consent of Haskell & White LLP, Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm. 23. 2 * Consent of Baker Tilly US, LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 24. 1 * Power of
Attorney. Reference is made to the signature page hereto. 31. 1 * Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-
14 (a) or Rule 15d- 14 (a). 31. 2 * Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a- 14 (a) or Rule 15d- 14 (a). 32. 1
* * Certification of Chief Executive and Financial Officer required by Rule 13a- 14 (b) or Rule 15d- 14 (b) and Section 1350 of
Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code . 97. 1 * Alzamend Neuro, Inc., Clawback Policy . 101. INS * Inline XBRL
Instance Document. The instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded
within the Inline XBRL document. 101. SCH * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. 101. CAL * Inline
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. 101. DEF * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase Document. 101. LAB * Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document. 101. PRE * Inline XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document. Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and
contained in Exhibit 101). * Filed herewith. * * This certification will not be deemed “ filed ” for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ), or otherwise subject to the liability of that section. Such
certification will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or
the Exchange Act, except to the extent specifically incorporated by reference into such filing. Indicates management contract or
compensatory plan. ITEM 16. FORM 10 — K SUMMARY- #6-78 - SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13
or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized. ALZAMEND NEURO, INC. Date: July 2730 , 2623-2024 By: / s / Stephan Jackman
Stephan Jackman Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) Date: July 2730 , 2623-2024 By: / s / David J. Katzoff
David J. Katzoff Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and accounting officer) POWER OF ATTORNEY KNOW ALL
BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Stephan Jackman and David
J. Katzoff, and each of them, as his or her true and lawful attorneys- in- fact and agents, each with the full power of substitution,
for him or her and in his or her name, place or stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual
Report on Form 10- K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys- in- fact and agents, and each of them, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully
to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys- in-
fact and agents, or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. Pursuant to the
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on in the
capacities and on the dates indicated. Name Title Date By: / s / Stephan Jackman Stephan Jackman Chief Executive Officer and
Director (principal executive officer) July 2730 , 2023-2024 By: / s / David J. Katzoff David J. Katzoff Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer) July 2730 , 2623-2024 By: / s / William B. Horne William B. Horne Chairman of
the Board July 2730 , 2623-2024 By: / s / Henry €-W=Nisser Henry €-W-—Nisser Executive Vice President, General Counsel
and Director July 2730 , 2623-2024 By: / s / Mark Gustafson Mark Gustafson Director July 27430 , 2623-2024 By: / s / Lynne
Fahey McGrath, M. P. H., Ph. D. Lynne Fahey McGrath, M. P. H., Ph. D. Director July 2730 , 2623-2024 By: / s / Andrew H.
Woo, M. D., Ph. D. Andrew H. Woo, M. D., Ph. D Director July 2730 , 2623-2024 By: / s / Jeffrey Oram Jeffrey Oram Director
July 27-30 , 2623-2024 - 7779 - INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID 200) F- 2 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID 23) F-2-3
Balance Sheets as of April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-F- 3-4 Statements of Operations for the years ended April 30, 2024 and
2023 and2022-F- 4-5 Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-F -
5-6 Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-F- 6-7 Notes to Financial Statements F- 78
— F-48-20- F- 1- REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Board of Directors
and Stockholders ef-Alzamend Neuro, Inc. Opinion on the Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying balance
sheets— sheet of Alzamend Neuro, Inc. (the & Company £ ) as of April 30, 2623-2024 and2622-, and the related statements
of operations, changes in stockholders &> equity, and cash flows ;-for eaeh-ofthe two-years— year iirthe-then period-ended Aprit
36;-2623-, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the £ financial statements ). In our opinion, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of April 30, 2623
2024 and-2622-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for eaeh-efthe two-years— year irthe-then period-ended
Apri36;-2623-, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Going Concern
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company hae-has recurring losses from operations, negative cash flow
from operations of$-5—-millien-and is dependent on additional financing to fund current and future operations. These
conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’ s plans in
regard to these matters are also described in Note 2 to the financial statements. The financial statements do not include
any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and
classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Basis for Opinion These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an aceunmutated-defieit
of$44-opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on our audit . +illien-We are a public accounting firm



registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“ PCAOB ”) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial
reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. HASKELL & WHITE LLP We have served as the Company’
s auditor since 2024.- F- 2- REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the
Board of Directors and Stockholders of Alzamend Neuro, Inc. We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of
Alzamend Neuro, Inc. (the" Company') as of April 30, 2023 —Fer, the related statements of operations, stockholders'
equity, and cash flows, for the year ended April 30, 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the" financial
statements'). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company alse-tneurred-as of April 30, 2023, and the results of its operating-operations and its cash flows for the year ended
April 30, 2023, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has recurring losses from operations, of$+4—9-millien-and
had-negative cash flews— flow from operations ef$-89-millierrand is dependent on additional financing to fund current
and future operations . This raises substantial doubt about the Company' s ability to continue as a going concern. Management'
s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Basts-for-Opinton-These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’
s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company' s financial statements based on our audits. We are a
public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (" PCAOB") and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with
the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company' s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our
audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. /s / BAKER TILLY US, LLP We have-served
as the Company +* s auditor sitee-from 2019 —to 2024 San Diego, California July 27, 2023, except for the effects of the
reverse stock splits described in Note 1, as to which the date is July 30, 2024- F- 3- April 30, 2623-2024 April 30, 2622-2023
ASSETS CURRENT ASSETS Cash $ 376, 048 $ 5, 140, 859 $44;-863:-8H-Prepaid expenses and other current assets 79, 194
447, 589 349923-Prepaid expenses- related party - 247, 334 =TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 455, 242 5, 835, 782 +4;443;534
Property, plant and equipment, net 176, 346 79, 843 +62;9809-TOTAL ASSETS $ 631,588 $ 5, 915, 625 $+4;516:443
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities $ 2, 925, 059 $ 2, 870, 122 Note $+3162;-850Relatedparty-payable 300 —2-, 714- 682-FOFAL-CURRENT
HABHHHES 2,870, 122-1164;932-TOTAL LIABILITIES , ALL CURRENT 3, 225, 773 2, 870, 122 ;164,932
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY Geﬁvefﬁb{e—Pfefe&ed-s’feeH—G—GGG-l-
par-valte—10,-000-000-shares-autherized;-Series A-B Convertible Preferred Stock, $ 0. 0001 stated value per share, 6 +;366-,
000 shares-designated; 2, 100 and nil 0 issued and outstanding as of April 30, 2024 and April 30, 2023 and-2622-, respectively
-- Common stock, $ 0. 0001 par value: 300, 000, 000 shares authorized; 96-687 , 999 940,424-and 95-646 , 267 48+,790-shares
issued and outstanding as of April 30, 2024 and April 30, 2023 and2022-, respectively 95694 69 65 9-548-Additional paid- in
capital 6451 , 99+426 , 76657154 62 , 4+9-001 , 753-395 Note receivable for common stock — related party - 44883295
(14, 883, 7()5) Accumulated deficit (44-54 , 9—7’—2—020 , 662-408 ) (29-44 ., 194-072 , 495662 ) TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’
(DEFICIT) EQUITY (2,594, 185) 3, 045, 503 -1-3,—35H+1—TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT)
EQUITY $ 631,588 $ 5, 915, 625 $44;:-536,443-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. - F-
4- For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 2023 2022-OPERATING EXPENSES Research and development $ 6, 455, 107 $ 7, 445,
857 $5;204;344-General and administrative 3, 482, 538 7, 424, 609 F5348;224-Total operating expenses 9, 937, 645 14, 870,
466 4253149535 oss from operations (+4-9 , 870-937 ., 466-645 ) (4214 , 349-870 . 535-466 ) OTHER INCOME

(EXPENSE), NET Interest expense ( 10, 101) ( 7, 701){46%%4)—Gam—eﬂ—e*fmgmshfﬂeﬁt—e-ﬁdebfﬁl—%9—Total other income
(expense), net (710, 764101 ) (427 , 524701 ) NET LOSS § (449 , 878947 ., 167746 ) $ (4214 , 362878 , 859-167 ) Basic



and diluted net loss per common share $ (6-14 . 45-70 ) $ (622 . +4-89 ) Basic and diluted weighted average common shares
outstanding 97-676 ., 519-565 650 , 6+6-89,-695;274-126- F- 5- Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity (Deficit) For the
Years Ended April 30, 2623-2024 and April 30, 2622-2023 Series A-B Convertible Additional Note Receivable for Preferred
Stock Common Stock Paid- In Common Stock- Accumulated Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Related Party Deficit
Total BALANCES, April 30, 20242022 - 756,-000-$ 75-67-- 636, 545 $ 64 $ 57 , 429, 237 525-$-6;743-$33;724;-866-5 (14,
883,295) 5 (4629 , 832194 . 436-495 ) $ 213 , 42-351 , 947511 Issuance of common stock for restricted stock awards-- 167-
425—999—42—(42—)———— Stock- based compensatlon to employees and consultants---- 4-3 , 498—582 569-625 -- 43, 498—582 , 625

S 3 S - 200 2,—875—999—21‘5-8—1—2—9-1—1—1-6-8-—1—2—9-1—17456—Issuance of
s-h&fes—of common stock for eeﬁvefsteﬁ—e-f—debt—related party payable -- 252-6 , 26525378222 1 989 , 373-378-333-- 989 ., 398
Conversion-of SeriesA—eonvertible-stoek-334 Net loss---—-—- (#56-14 , 666-878, 167 ) (14 75515, 999—878 167 999—1%99—61—
425)—Netdoss———12362-059-(12,362,-059-) BALANCES, April 30, 26222023 - $ - 646, 267 $ 65 $ 62, 001, 95395 $ 5
4847909548 5F419,753-(14, 883, 295) § (29-44 , 494072 , 495-662 ) +3-$ 3 , 354045 , 503 Issuance of common stock
for cash-- 107, 682 5+H— 11 1, 252, 414-- 1, 252, 425 [ssuance of common stock for restricted stock awards-- 25-167=——
Issuance of preferred stock for cash 2 100-—- 2 100 000 3—-- 2, 100 000 Subscription receivable payment received---- ( 3
7,002 )7 ; ; , 002 582,-625--- Return 3;-582,-625-Proceeds-from
ﬁwmfmm common stock for subscription receivable
933:334-93-589, 244589334 Nettoss—-- ( 1+4-66 , 878;1+67117) (7 ) (14, 878-876 , +67-286) 14, 876, 293-- Stock- based
compensation to employees and consultants---- 955, 633-- 955, 633 Net loss------ (9, 947, 746) (9, 947, 746 ) BALANCES,
April 30,2023-2024 -2, 100 $- 96-687 , 999 946;124-5 9694 69 $ 6151 , 994426 ., 766-154 $- § (+4-54 , 883-020 , 295408 )
S (442, 072594 . 662-185 ) - F- 6- $3;:045,503-For the Year Ended ApIII 30, 2024 2023 2622-Cash flows from operating
activities: Net loss § (449 , 878947 | 167746 ) § (42-14 , 362878 , 859-167 ) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities: Depreciation expense 50, 740 23, 066 3;-549-Interest expense- debt discount 714 - 42;-F76-Gainon
extinguishment-ofdebt—4;-600)-Stock- based compensation to employees and consultants 955, 633 3, 582, 625 4;408;-569
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Prepaid expenses and other current assets 368, 395 (97, 866) 633;:-597Prepaid
expenses —related party 247, 334 739, 918 —Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 54, 937 1, 707, 272 693;-584-Net cash used
in operating activities (8, 923-269 , +52-993 ) ( 6-8 , 613-923 , 996-152 ) Cash flows from investing activities: Purchase of
equipment machinery—( +06-147 , 458-243 ) - Net cash used in investing activities — +66-147 , 458-243 ) - Cash flows from
financing activities: Proceeds from the issuance of common stock and-warrants—related-party-, net 1 —6-, 666-252 , 666-425-
Proceeds from stock option exercise - 200 2;-206-Payments-Proceeds from the issuance of note payable 300, 000- Proceeds
from the 1ssuance of preferred stock- reldted pdl ty 2 pay&b-Ie——éS— 100 66HProececeds-frominitialpublie-offering-, 000 net-of
: sts— +2;-9+H5456-Net cash provided by financing activities 3, 652, 425
200 -1-8—854—9-89—Net (—deerease )—mefease—m cash ( 4,764, 811) ( 8, 922, 952) +2;434;-54+Cash at beginning of period 5, 140,
859 14, 063, 811 4,929;276-Cash at end of period $ 376, 048 $ 5, 140, 859 $44:-063;-8H-Supplemental disclosures of cash
flow information: Non- cash financing activities: Return of common stock for cancellation of subscription receivable $ (14,
883, 295) $- Debt discount from issuance of note payable $ 10, 000 $- Fair value of warrants issued in connection with
preferred stock M&reh—%@%l—seettrmes—pﬂfel‘taseﬁgreeﬂ&eﬁt—related party ‘I> -1 902 140 S 5—344%99—€eﬁvefsteﬂ—0%8eﬂes—ﬁc

-$—- F- 7- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1. DES( RIPTION OF BUSINESS Alzamend Neuro, Inc. (the Company
“ Alzamend ”), is a clinical- stage biopharmaceutical company focused on developing novel products for the treatment of
Alzheimer’ s disease (“ Alzheimer’ s ), bipolar disorder (“ BD ”’), major depressive disorder (¢ MDD ) and post- traumatic
stress disorder (“ PTSD ) . With two current product candidates, Alzamend aims to bring treatments or cures to market at a
reasonable cost as quickly as possible. The Company’ s current pipeline consists of two novel therapeutic drug candidates: (i) a
patented ionic cocrystal technology delivering a therapeutic combination of lithium, proline and salicylate, known as AL0O1,
through two royalty- bearing exclusive worldwide licenses from the University of South Florida Research Foundation, Inc., as
licensor (the ““ Licensor ”); and (ii) a patented method using a mutant peptide sensitized cell as a cell- based therapeutic vaccine
that seeks to restore the ability of a patient’ s immunological system to combat Alzheimer’ s, known as ALZN002, through a
royalty- bearing exclusive worldwide license from the same Licensor. The Company is devoting substantially all its efforts
towards research and development of its two product candidates and raising capital. The Company has not generated any
product revenue to date. The Company has financed its operations to date primarily through debt financings and through the
sale of its common stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share (“ Common Stock ) and its preferred stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per
share . The Company expects to continue to incur net losses in the foreseeable future . Reverse Stock Splits On October 27,
2023, pursuant to the authorization provided by the Company’ s stockholders at a special meeting of stockholders, the
Company filed an amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation to effectuate a reverse stock split of the Company’ s
issued and outstanding Common Stock by a ratio of one- for- fifteen (the “ First Reverse Split ”). The First Reverse Split
did not affect the number of authorized shares of Common Stock, preferred stock or their respective par value per share.
As a result of the First Reverse Split, each fifteen shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding prior to the First
Reverse Split were converted into one share of Common Stock. The First Reverse Split became effective in the State of
Delaware on October 31, 2023. All share amounts in these financial statements have been updated for all periods
presented to reflect the First Reverse Split. On July 10, 2024, pursuant to the authorization provided by the Company’ s
stockholders at its annual meeting of stockholders, the Company filed an amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation



to effectuate a reverse stock split of the Company’ s issued and outstanding Common Stock by a ratio of one- for- ten
(the “ Second Reverse Split ). The Second Reverse Split did not affect the number of authorized shares of Common
Stock, preferred stock or their respective par value per share. As a result of the Second Reverse Split, each ten shares of
Common Stock issued and outstanding prior to the Second Reverse Split were converted into one share of Common
Stock. The Second Reverse Split became effective in the State of Delaware on July 16, 2024. All share amounts in these
financial statements have been updated for all periods presented to reflect the Second Reverse Split . 2. LIQUIDITY,
GOING CONCERN AND MANAGEMENT’ S PLANS The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the
basis that the Company will continue as a going concern. As of April 30, 2023-2024 , the Company had cash of $ 376, 000 5+
mithen-and an accumulated deficit of $ 44-54 . +0 million. For the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 , the Company had a net
loss of $ 449 . 9 million and cash used in operating activities of $ 8. 9-3 million. The Company had cash as of for-the-yearended
April 30, 2622-2023 , totaling $ +4-5 . 1 million and accumulated deficit of § 29-44 . 2-1 million. In the past, the Company has
financed its operations principally through issuances of premissery-netes-and-cquity seeurtttes-and debt instruments . frMareh
ofOn January 31, 2624-2024 , the Company and Ault Lending, LLC (“ Ault Lending ), entered into a securities purchase
agreement (the “ AL SPA ) with-for the purchase of up to 6, 000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and
warrants to purchase shares up to 600, 000 shares of Common Stock. The AL SPA provides that Ault Lending 76
formetly Digital- Power-may purchase up to $ 6 million of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock in one or more closings.
Ault Lending has the right to purchase up to $ 2 million of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, on or before March 31,
2024, and the right to purchase up to $ 4 million of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock after March 31, 2024, but on or
before March 31, 2025 (the “ Termination Date ). The Agreement will automatically terminate if the final closing has
not occurred prior to the Termination Date. On January 31, 2024, the Company sold 1, 220 shares of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 122, 000 shares of Common Stock with an exercise price of $ 12.
00, for a total purchase price of $ 1. 22 million. The purchase price was paid by the cancellation of $ 1. 15 million of cash
advances made by Ault Lending to the Company between November 9, 2023 and January 31, 2024 and a subscription
receivable of $ 70, 000.- F- 8- On March 26, 2024, the Company sold 780 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
and warrants to purchase 78, 000 shares of Common Stock with an exercise price of $ 12. 00, for a total purchase price of
$ 780, 000. On April 29, 2024, the Company sold 100 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to
purchase 10, 000 shares of Common Stock with an exercise price of $ 12. 00, for a total purchase price of $ 100, 000. On
May 8, 2024, the Company and Orchid Finance , LLC (“ A&-Orchid ) and-a-whely-owned-subsidiary-of AultAthanee-, fne-
entered into a securities purchase agreement ( the “ AUEF-Orchid SPA ) for the purchase of up

to wwhieh-2, 500 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase shares up to 2, 500, 000 shares
of Common Stock in several tranche closings. On May 10, 2024, the C ompdn\ ) d 100 arwggreg&te—e-ﬁé—ééé—éé?—shmcs of

aggreg&te—o%?v— 000 3—3—3—3—3—3—& hares of eemfneﬂ—Common steeleStock at—w1th an exercise price of $ 3—12 50 99—per—s-hare—
Finally-, for a total purchase price of $ 1. 0 million. The purchase price was paid by the surrender and cancellation of a
term note issued by the Company agreed-that-to Orchid of $ 311, 356, consisting of $ 310, 000 of principal and $ 1, 356 of
accrued and unpaid interest, $ 100, 000 discount and net cash of $ 588, 644. On June 25, 2024, the Company sold 150
shares of Serles A Convertlble Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase 120 000 shares of Common Stock w1th an

dditie ras-was paid in
cash e-Pt-he—date—e—Pt-hts%m&ua—l—Repeﬁ— T he Company beheves—rts—euﬁent—eas-h—eﬁ—expects to contlnue to incur losses for the
foreseeable future hand-- and needs to raise additional capital until it is not-able to generate revenues from operations

sufficient to fund its planned-development and commercial operations through-one-year-after-the-date-the-finanetal-statements

are—tssued— These factors create substantial doubt about our ablhty to contlnue asa gomg concern. However, based on the

Company’ s current business plan, management believes ability
da-te—lhdt t-hese——— the aud-rted—ﬁﬁarmal—st&terneﬂts—&re—tsstted—?he—( ompany’ s cash and cash equlvalents at Aprll 30 tnabrl-rty

, ineluding-our-ability-2024, together with the

antlclpated recelpt of funds from its Serles A and Serles B Convertlble Preferred Stock securities purchase agreements,
will be sufficient to meet the obtainrneeded-finaneing—Fhe-Company’ s anticipated cash requirements during the twelve-
month perlod subsequent to the issuance of the manual statements &o—not—rne}uée-mcluded in thls Annual Report any

SI(J\JIFl( ANT A( ( ()UNTING P()Ll( IES Basis o[ Plcscnlduon Thc [mdlllel sldlcmcms hd\L been prepared in accordance
with accoummu principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“ U. S. GAAP ”) and pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ Commission ). Accounting Estimates The preparation of
financial statements, in conformity with U. S. GAAP, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements



and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company’ s critical accounting policies
that involve significant judgment and estimates include research and development, stock- based compensation, warrant
valuation, and valuation of deferred income taxes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents. As of April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the Company had no cash equivalents. Fair Value of Financial
Instruments Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ) Accounting Standards Codification (“ ASC ) 820, Fair Value
Measurement, defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is based on three levels of inputs that may be used
to measure fair value, of which the first two are considered observable and the last is considered unobservable: Level 1: Quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2: Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or
indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that
are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. - F- 9-
Level 3 assumptions: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair
value of the assets or liabilities including liabilities resulting from imbedded derivatives associated with certain warrants to
purchase common stock. The fair values of warrants issued in connection with equity or debt issuance are determined using the
Black- Scholes valuation model, a “ Level 3 ” fair value measurement, based on the estimated fair value of the underlying
common stock, volatility based on the historical volatility data of similar companies, considering the industry, products and
market capitalization of such other entities, the expected life based on the remaining contractual term of the conversion option
and warrants and the risk free interest rate based on the implied yield available on U. S. Treasury securities with a maturity
equivalent to the warrants’ contractual life. The Company determines its income taxes under the asset and liability method.
Under the asset and liability approach, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are calculated and recorded based upon the
future tax consequences of temporary differences by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future periods for
differences between the financial statements carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. Generally,
deferred income taxes are classified as current or non- current in accordance with the classification of the related asset or
liability. Those not related to an asset or a liability are classified as current or non- current depending on the periods in which the
temporary differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are provided for significant deferred income tax assets
when it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. As of April 30, 2623-2024 , the
Company had fully reserved the net deferred income tax assets by taking a full valuation allowance against these assets. The
Company recognizes tax liabilities by prescribing a minimum probability threshold that a tax position must meet before a
financial statement benefit is recognized and also provides guidance on de- recognition, measurement, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The minimum threshold is defined as a tax position that is
more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the
largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 % likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. To the extent that the final
tax outcome of these matters is different than the amount recorded, such differences impact income tax expense in the period in
which such determination is made. Interest and penalties, if any, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are
included in income tax expense. U. S. GAAP also requires management to evaluate tax positions taken by the Company and
recognize a liability if the Company has taken uncertain tax positions that more likely than not would not be sustained upon
examination by applicable taxing authorities. Management of the Company has evaluated tax positions taken by the Company
and has concluded that as of April 30, 2023-2024 , there were no uncertain tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, that
would require recognition of a liability that would require disclosure in the financial statements. F=8-Research and development
costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development costs consist of scientific consulting fees and lab supplies, as well as
fees paid to clinical research organizations that conduct certain research and development activities on behalf of the Company.
The Company has acquired and may continue to acquire the rights to develop and commercialize new product candidates from
third parties. The upfront payments to acquire licenses, products or rights, as well as any future milestone payments, are
immediately recognized as research and development expense provided that there is no alternative future use of the rights in
other research and development projects. The Company recognizes stock- based compensation expense for stock options on a
straight- line basis over the requisite service period and accounts for forfeitures as they occur. The Company’ s stock- based
compensation costs are based upon the grant date fair value of options estimated using the Black- Scholes option pricing model.
To the extent any stock option grants are made subject to the achievement of a performance- based milestone, management
evaluates when the achievement of any such performance- based milestone is probable based on the satisfaction of the
performance conditions as of the reporting date. The Company recognizes stock- based compensation expense for restricted
stock on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period and accounts for forfeitures as they occur. The Company’ s stock-
based compensation for restricted stock is based upon the estimated fair value of the Company—s-eommoen-Common stoek
Stock on the date of grant. The Black- Scholes option pricing model utilizes inputs which are highly subjective assumptions and
generally requires significant judgment. Certain of such assumptions involve inherent uncertainties and the application of
significant judgment. As a result, if factors or expected outcomes change and the Company uses significantly different
assumptions or estimates, the Company’ s stock- based compensation could be materially different. - F- 10- The Company
accounts for stock warrants as either equity instruments, derivative liabilities, or liabilities in accordance with ASC 480,
Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (“ ASC 480 ) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (“ ASC 815 ™), depending on the
specific terms of the warrant agreement. During the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 , based on the terms of the Company’ s



warrant agreements, the Company accounted for the warrants as equity instruments as the warrants were indexed to the
eommoen-Common steek-Stock , required settlement in shares and would be classified as equity under ASC 815. Loss per
Common Share The Company utilizes FASB ASC Topic No. 260, Earnings per Share. Basic loss per share is computed by
dividing loss available to common stockholders by the weighted- average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted loss
per share is computed similarly to basic loss per share except that the denominator is increased to include the number of
additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the additional common shares had been issued and if such
common shares were dilutive. Diluted loss per common share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if options, restricted
stock units and warrants were to be exercised or converted or otherwise resulted in the issuance of eemmen-Common steek
Stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity. Since the effects of outstanding options, restricted stock units and warrants
are anti- dilutive in the periods presented, shares of eemmen-Common steek-Stock underlying these instruments have been
excluded from the computation of loss per common share. The following sets forth the number of shares of eemmen-Common
steel=Stock underlying outstanding options and warrants that have been excluded from the computation of loss per common
share: Schedule of antidilutive securities excluded from computation of earnings per share For the Year Ended April 30, 2024
2023 2022-Stock options (1) 48-120 , +58-333 121 , 055 32948;-600;:-000-Restricted stock units 167 333 56;-600-75;-066
Warrants +6-240 , +49-449 67 , 788106-665 360 , +49-949 189 , 053 78828, 358728824 788F-9-(1) The Company has
excluded 10 H@G—G@G—aﬁd&—%@— 000 stock options for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively,
with an exercise price of $ 0. 888406 , from its anti- dilutive securities as these shares have been included in our determination
of basic loss per share as they represent shares issuable for little or no cash consideration upon the satisfaction of certain
conditions pursuant to ASC 260- 10- 45- 14. The Company analyzes the terms of its preferred stock using ASC Topic No.
480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, to determine whether the Company’ s preferred stock should be classified as
a liability or equity, and if classified as equity, permanent or temporary. Common criteria the Company considers are
redemption provisions, conversion options, cumulative of mandatory fixed dividends, discretionary dividends based on
earning, voting rights and collateral requirements. 4. NOTE RECEIVABLE, RELATED PARTY, NET On April 30, 2019,
the Company and Ault Life Science Fund, LLC (“ ALSF ), a related party, entered into a securities purchase agreement for the
purchase of $8-66 , 667 906,000-sharcs of the-Cempany s-eemmon-Common steek-Stock for a total purchase price of § 15,
000, 000, or $ 4225 . 568-00 per share with 5-33 | 333 806;,000-warrants with a 5- year life and an exercise price of $ 3-450 . 00
per share and vesting upon issuance (the “ ALSF Warrants >) . The total purchase price of $ 15, 000, 000 was in the form of a
non- interest - bearing note receivable with a 12- month term from ALSF. In November 2019, the term of the note receivable
was extended to December 31, 2021, and in May 2021, the term of the note receivable was extended to December 31, 2023. The
note +s-was secured by a pledge of the purchased shares. As the note receivable from ALSF is-was related to the issuance of
eommerrCommon stoek-Stock , it is recorded as an offset to additional paid- in capital. AtApr#-36-ALSF is wholly owned by
Ault Life Sciences , Inc. (“ ALSI ”). ALSI is majority owned by Ault & Company, Inc. (“ Ault & Co. ). Messrs. Ault,
Horne and Nisser, directors of the Company, are also directors of Ault & Co. On January 19, 2623-2024 and-2622-, the
Company and ALSF entered into a settlement agreement and release of claims whereby ALSF returned to the Company
66, 117 shares of Common Stock and the ALSF Warrants for settlement of the outstanding balance of the note receivable
wvas-in the amount of § 14, 883-876 , 295293 . - F- 11- 5. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Prepaid
expenses and other current assets are-were as follows: Schedule of prepaid expenses and other current assets April 30, 2623
2024 April 30, 2822-2023 Prepaid clinical trial fees $ = $ 352, 635 $—Prepaid insurance 60, 522 92, 154 355:-880-Other prepaid

expenses 18 6722, 800 7—1—7-6—P-fepa1€l—eeﬂs&1-t—mg—fees——h‘}6—667—Total prepald expenqeq and other current assets $ 79 194 $

14, %92—2—2023 the Company purcha%ed dlrectors and ofﬁcerq ’ (‘—‘B—&—G—)—lnsurance for 12 months in the amount of $ 492
337, 000. Prepaid insurance at April 30, 2023-2024 represented the unamortized portion of the-anntal-directors’ and officers’
insurance premiarr-. 6. INCOME TAXES The following is a geographical breakdown of the Company’ s loss before the
provision for income taxes: Schedule of Income before income tax, domestic and foreign April 30, 2823-2024 April 30, 2022
2023 Pre- tax loss: Federal § (44-9 , 878947 . 167746 ) S (4214 , 362-878 ., 859-167 ) Foretga—Total pre- tax loss $ (449,
878947 . +67746 ) 5 (1214 , 362878 . 859-167 ) Significant components of the Company” s deferred tax assets were as
follows: Schedule of deferred tax assets and liabilities April 30, 2623-2024 April 30, 2022-2023 Deferred income tax asset:
Accruals $ - $ 241, 500 $—Capitalized research expenditures 2, 321, 972 1, 426, 779 —Net operating loss carryover 10, 838, 412
6, 885, 428 8;376;:-539-Stock - based compensation 2, 638, 820 2, 276, 109 4,722,-803-Total deferred tax asset 15,799, 204 10,
829, 816 +6;098;-542-Fixed assets (+6-32 , 767400 ) (2416 , 61767 ) Valuation allowance (+6-15 , 843-766 , 649-804 ) (10,
076-813 , 931049 ) Deferred income tax asset, net of allowance $- $- F—8-A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax
rate to the Company’ s effective income tax rate for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, is as follows: Schedule
of effective income tax rate reconciliation 2024 2023 2022-Tax benefit at U. S. Federal statutory tax rate 21. 0 % 21. 0 % State
income tax, net of federal benefit 28. 9 % - 18 —3-%42-. 3 % Increase (decrease) in tax rate resulting from: Change in valuation
allowance- 449 . 8 %- 46-4. 8 % Stock- based compensatlon- 0.1 % 0 . 3 % Other Stoekeempensatton0 —3-%143- 0 %
Other2 —6-%0-. 0 % Effective tax rate 0. 0 % 0. 0 % In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, management considers
whether it is more likely than not the Company’ s deferred tax assets will be realized. Management considers the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax assets, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making such assessments. Given
historical generation of and expected future taxable losses, management the-Company-determined it is more likely than not that
some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Therefore, a full valuation allowance was maintained, as of the years
ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, of $ 15, 766, 804 and $ 10, 813, 049 and-$+6;-676;93+, respectively. At April 30,
2623-2024 , the Company maintained U. S. Federal and state net operating loss (“ NOL ”) carryovers of approximately $ 32-38 ,



87716 . 753-141 and $ H-190 , 419-584 | 279-088 respectively. Federal and state NOLs begin to expire in various years
depending on relevant jurisdiction. In accordance with Internal Revenue Code § 382 (“ IRC § 382 ), the future deductibility of
the Company’ s NOL’ s may be subject to an annual limitation in the event of a change in control as defined by applicable
regulations. The Company has yet to complete a formal study to confirm NOL’ s are not limited in utilization per IRC § 382 and
may reduce applicable deferred tax assets upon completion of such a study, in future periods. - F- 12- The impact of an
uncertain income tax position on the income tax return must be recognized at the largest amount that is more likely than not to
be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax position will not be recognized if it has less
than a 50 % likelihood of being sustained. The Company had no uncertain tax positions as of April 30, 2623-2024 . The
Company’ s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in the provision for income taxes. As of
April 30, 2623-2024 , no interest or penalties have been recorded pertaining to uncertain tax positions. The Company is subject
to taxation in the United States and various U. S. state jurisdictions. All tax years remain open to examination by the Internal
Revenue Service and relevant state authorities. On December 27, 2020, the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (“ CAA
2021 ), which included a number of provisions including, but not limited to, the extension of numerous employment tax credits,
the extension of the Section 179D deduction, enhanced business meals deductions, and the deductibility of expenses paid with
Paycheck Protection Program loan funds that are forgiven, was signed into law. Accordingly, the effects of the CAA 2021 have
been incorporated into the income tax provision for the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 . These provisions did not have a
material impact on the income tax provision. 7. STOCK- BASED COMPENSATION On April 30, 2016, the Company’ s
stockholders approved the Company’ s 2016 Stock Incentive Plan (the ““ Plan ”). The Plan provides for the issuance of a
maximum of 4+2-83 , 333 $86;-068-shares of common stock to be offered to the Company’ s directors, officers, employees, and
consultants. On March 1, 2019, the Company’ s stockholders approved an additional -588-- 50 , 000 shares to be available for
issuance under the Plan. Options granted under the Plan have an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the
underlying common stock at the date of grant and become exercisable based on a vesting schedule determined at the date of
grant. The options expire between five and 10 years from the date of grant. Restricted stock awards granted under the Plan are
subject to a vesting period determined at the date of grant. In February 2021, the Company’ s board of directors (the “ Board ™)
adopted, and the stockholders approved, the Alzamend Neuro, Inc. 2021 Stock Incentive Plan (the “ 2021 Plan ). The 2021
Plan authorizes the grant to eligible individuals of (1) stock options (incentive and non- statutory), (2) restricted stock, (3) stock
appreciation rights, or SARs, (4) restricted stock units, and (5) other stock- based compensation. Stock Subject to the 2021 Plan.
The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the 2021 Plan is +8-66 , 667 689;-806-shares, which
number will be increased to the extent that compensation granted under the 2021 Plan is forfeited, expires or is settled for cash
(except as otherwise provided in the 2021 Plan). Substitute awards (awards made or shares issued by the Company in
assumption of, or in substitution or exchange for, awards previously granted, or the right or obligation to make future awards, in
each case by a company that the Company acquires or any subsidiary of the Company or with which the Company or any
subsidiary combines) will not reduce the shares authorized for grant under the 2021 Plan, nor will shares subject to a substitute
award be added to the shares available for issuance or transfer under the 2021 Plan. F—H-Restricted Stock. In May 2021, the
Company issued restricted stock awards pursuant to the 2021 Plan to one employee and four independent Board members. The
restricted stock awards vest over 48 months for the employee and 12 months for the independent Board members. The awards
require continued service to the Company during the vesting period. The vesting provisions of individual awards may vary as
approved by the Board. Compensation expense for restricted stock is generally recorded based on its market value on the date of
grant and recognized ratably over the associated service and performance period. Stock Options. All options that the Company
grants are granted at the per share fair value on the grant date. Vesting of options differs based on the terms of each option. The
Company has valued the options at their date of grant utilizing the Black Scholes option pricing model. As of the date of
issuance of these options, there was not an active public market for the Company’ s shares. Accordingly, the fair value of the
underlying options was determined based on the historical volatility data of similar companies, considering the industry,
products and market capitalization of such other entities. The risk- free interest rate used in the calculations is based on the
implied yield available on U. S. Treasury issues with an equivalent term approximating the expected life of the options as
calculated using the simplified method. The expected life of the options used was based on the contractual life of the option
granted. Stock- based compensation is a non- cash expense because the Company settles these obligations by issuing shares of
common stock from its authorized shares instead of settling such obligations with cash payments. - F- 13- A summary of stock
option activity for the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 , is presented below: Schedule of share- based payment arrangement,
option, activity Outstanding Options Shares Available for Grant Number of Shares Weighted Average Exercise Price Weighted
Average Remaining Contractual Life (years) Aggregate Intrinsic Value Balance at April 30, 2622-2023 8-61 , $66-278 98 , 722
066-15-760,-000-5 +182 . 2454-31 6. +6-18 § 2819 , 900 249,-706-Options granted -- (—2—999—999)%—999—999—53 +1766-9-58
Options exercised- - £586;000)-5 - 8-0004-Options cancelled / forfeited 722 2;3945-6H-( 722 239467 $ +750 . 344500
Balance at April 30, 2623-2024 9-62 , 194000 98 , 000 6H1+4;-868;329-5 +-2454-6138-178 . 12 5. 22 $ 819-70 , 966-500
Options vested and expected to vest at April 30, 2623-2024 43-91 , 334 868,329-5 +178 . 2487531 4 . 9398 £ 819-70 , 990
500 Options exercisable at April 30, 2023-2024 43-90 , 208 636;-969-5 +177 . +784-5-51 4 . 8294 $ 995-70 , 466-500 The
aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value (i. e., the difference between the estimated
fair value on the respective date and the exercise price, times the number of shares) that would have been received by the option
holders had all option holders exercised their options. Restricted stock unit activity for the year ended April 30, 2024 is
presented below: Schedule of nonvested restricted stock units activity Shares Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value
Unvested at April 30, 2023 333 $ 375. 00 Granted-- Vested (166) 375. 00 Cancelled-- Unvested at April 30, 2024 167 $ 375.
00 Stock Options Granted to Employees and Consultants The estimated fair value of stock options granted to employees and
consultants during the years— year ended April 30, 2023 and-2622-were calculated using the Black- Scholes option- pricing



model using the following assumptions: Schedule of stock options granted to employees and consultants For the Year Ended
April 30, 2023 Expected term (in years) 6. 25 6=25-Volatility 88—94-%-88. 94 % Risk- free interest rate 3. 89 % 2-26-%
Dividend yield 6-6-%-0. 0 % Expected Term: The expected term represents the period that the options granted are expected to
be outstanding and is determined using the simplified method (based on the mid- point between the vesting date and the end of
the contractual term). Expected Volatility: The Company uses an average historical stock price volatility of comparable public
companies within the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industry that were deemed to be representative of future stock price
trends as the Company only has a limited trading history for its common stock. The Company will continue to apply this process
until a sufficient amount of historical information regarding the volatility of its own stock price becomes available. F42-Risk-
Free Interest Rate: The Company based the risk- free interest rate over the expected term of the options based on the constant
maturity rate of U. S. Treasury securities with similar maturities as of the date of the grant. Expected Dividend: The Company
has not paid and does not anticipate paying any dividends in the near future. Therefore, the expected dividend yield was zero.
There were no stock options granted during the year ended April 30, 2024. For the year ended April 20, 2024 and 2023,
stock- based compensation related to restricted stock grants and stock options were $ 63-956 , 000 and $ 3. 5-6 million,
respectively, for employees and directors. - F- 14- Performance Contingent Stock Options Granted to Employee On November
26,2019, the Board granted 4-28 , 333 256;,-006-performance —and market —contingent awards to certain key employees and a
director. These grants were made outside of the Plan. These awards have an exercise price of $ +225 . 58-00 per share. These
awards have multiple separate market triggers for vesting based upon either (i) the successful achievement of stepped target
closing prices on a national securities exchange for 90 consecutive trading days later than 180 days after the Company’ s initial
public offering (“ IPO ) for its common stock, or (ii) stepped target prices for a change in control transaction. The target prices
ranged from $ 48-1, 500 per share to $ 46-6, 000 per share. In the event any of the stock price milestones are not achieved within
three years, the unvested portion of the performance options will be reduced by 25 %. On November 22, 2022, the
Compensation Committee of the Board modified the performance criteria for these awards. The target price range is now $ 46-1,
500 per share to $ 28-3, 000 per share. Additionally, if the stock price milestones are now not achieved by November 27, 2026,
as opposed to within three years, the unvested portion of the portion of the performance options will be reduced by 25 %. Due to
the significant risks and uncertainties associated with achieving the market- contingent awards, as of April 30, 2623-2024 , the
Company believes that the achievement of the requisite performance conditions is not probable and, as a result, no
compensation cost has been recognized for these awards. On November 29, 2022, the Compensation Committee of the Board
granted 2-13 , 333 6606,-060-performance- based stock option to the Chief Executive Officer at an exercise price of $ 347175 .
50 per share, of which 50 % vest upon the completion and announcement of topline data from the Company’ s Phase II clinical
trial of ALOO1 within three years from grant date and the remaining 50 % vest upon the completion and announcement of
topline data from the Company’ s Phase II clinical trial of ALZN002 within four years from the grant date. As-ofDuring the
year ended April 30, 2023, the Company bekeves-believed that it 1s-was probable that the performance condition of the
completion and announcement of topline data from the Company”’ s Phase II clinical trial of ALO0O1 sw-would be achieved and
has-had recognized the related stock- based compensation. As of April 30, 2623-2024 , the Company bekeves-believed that the
achievement of the second performance condition #s-was not probable and, as a result, no compensation cost has been
recognized related to Phase I/ H-ITA of ALZNO002. Performance Contingent Stock Options Granted to TAMM Net On March
23, 2021, the Company issued performance- based stock options to the certain team members at TAMM Net, Inc. (“ TAMM Net
””) to purchase an aggregate of 458-3 , 000 shares of common stock at a per share exercise price of $ 4225 . 58-00 per share, of
which 50 % vest upon the completion of Phase I of AL0O01 by March 31, 2022, and the remaining 50 % vest upon completion of
Phase | of ALZNO002 by December 31,2022. The performance goal of completmg Phase I of ALOOI was achreved on March 22,
2022 5 y : d ; : :
sewtee—peﬂed—te—eemp-}e’ée—ﬂa-ts—mi-}esteﬁe- On J anuary 19, 2023 the Board modrfred the performance criteria for these awards
The remaining 50 % of the grant witnew-would have vest-vested upon the completion and announcement of topline data of
the ﬁrst cohort from a Phase I/ IIA clrmcal trral of ALZNO002 on / or before March 31 2024 The modlﬁed performance

ane-as-a result, the remalnmg unvested stock optlons were cancelled and no
compensatron cost has been recogmzed for these awards related to ALZNO02. Performance Contingent Stock Options Granted
to Consultants On October 14, 2021, the Company issued performance- based stock options to two consultants to purchase an
aggregate of 260-1 , 666-334 shares of eommerrCommon stoek-Stock with an exercise price of § 2-363 . 42-00 per share, of
which 333 56;-666-vest upon completion of each of the Phase II clinical trials of ALOO1 for a BD indication, AL0O1 for a PTSD
indication, ALOO1 for a-depressterran MDD indication and ALZNO02 for an Alzheimer’ s indication. F¥=+43-On January 19,
2023, the Board modified the performance criteria for these awards. The revised grant will vest 25 % if the Company (a)
completes and announces topline data from a Phase II clinical trial of AL0O01 and ALZNO002, as applicable, that would support a
new drug application for the drug candidate and the indication listed below, and (b) obtained a “ Study May Proceed ™ letter
from the U. S. Food and Drug Administration (“ FDA ”) for the additional Investigational New Drug (“ IND ") on / or before
December 31,2023, as follows: (i) ALOO1 — BD bipetardiserder; (i) ALO01- MDD major-depressive-disorder; (i11) ALOOT —
PTSD pesf-—tra-u-maﬁe—sffess—d-tsefdeﬁ and (iv) ALZNO02 — Alzheimer’ s disease-. As-of-During the year ended April 30,
2024, the Company filed INDs for BD, MDD and PTSD and received a “ Study May Proceed ” letter for BD in October
2023, MDD in November 2023 and PTSD in December 2023. As a result, 75 % of the performance grant vested and the
Company recognized stock- based compensation related to the vesting. As of April 30, 2024, the Company believes
believed that the achievement of the remaining requisite performance eendittorrs— condition ts-was not probable and, as a
result, no compensation cost has been recognized for these awards related to Phase-H-ofAE06+-and-ALZN002 — Alzheimer’ s .



Stoek—- Based-CompensationExpense-F- 15- The Company’ s results of operations include expenses relating to stock- based
compensation for the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023 and-20822-, were comprised as follows: Schedule of stock- based
compensation For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 2023 2622-Rescarch and development § 213,905 $ (42, 589) $423,167
General and administrative 741, 728 3, 625, 214 3;:-985:462-Total $ 955, 633 $ 3, 582, 625 $4:408;569-As of April 30, 2023
2024 , total unamortized stock- based compensation expense related to unvested employee and non- employee awards that are
expected to vest was $ 353, 000 +—=2-miton-. The weighted- average period over which such stock- based compensation
expense will be recognized is approximately 1. 6-3 years. 8. WARRANTS Warrant Issuances During 26222024 During the year
ended April 30, 2622-2024 , the Company issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 210 2;-606-, 000 shares of common stock
at an exercise price of § 3—12 00 per share and-6+-. (i) On January 31 , 256-2024, the Company issued a warrant to
purchase 122, 000 shmes of eemme&Common s’feeleStock at an exercise prlce of ‘{> 6—12 00 2§-pe1esh&re—€1-)—9ﬁ4&ne—l—7—

6—25—pe1esh&re—e-f—eefﬂmeﬁ—sfeelem connection w 1th the -I-Pe—sale of convertlble preferred stock to Ault Lendlng for $ 1, 220,
000 . Based on the terms of the Company’ s warrant agreement, the Company accounted for the warrant as an equity instrument
as the warrant is indexed to the common stock, requires settlement in shares and would be classified as equity under ASC 815.

(11) On J-u-}y%S—March 26 %92—1—2024 the C ompany 1ssued feeewed—freﬂa—t-he—F-DA—q warrant to purchase 78 LSftl'd‘y-M&y

persh&re—(see—Nete—S‘)—m connection w1th the sale of convertlble preferred stock to Ault Lendmg for $ 780, 000 . Based on
the terms of the Company’ s warrant agreement, the Company accounted for the warrant as an equity instrument as the warrant
is indexed to the common stock, requires settlement in shares and would be classified as equity under ASC 815. (iii) On Marek

28-April 29 , 2622-2024 , the Company issued a warrant to purchase 10 reeeived-the-full-datasetfronmrthe Phase Tehinteat

fﬂﬁl—f@h%h@@i—Based-eﬁ—ﬂ&e—&ehieveme&Fef—&ns—ﬂﬂks{eﬁe— 000 on-Apri-28;2622under-the-SPA;-the-Company-sold-an

add-rﬁeﬁal—z—ééé—éé%shmes of ﬁs—eerm‘neﬂ—Common steeleStock at to-Al-for-$-4-million;or-$1-—-50-pershareand-issued-to
an exercise price of $ 3-12 . 00 pershatre-in connection with

the sale of convertible preferred stock to Ault Lending for $ 100, 000 . Based on the terms of the Company’ s warrant
agreement, the Company accounted for the warrant as an equity instrument as the warrant is indexed to the common stock,
requires settlement in shares and would be classified as equity under ASC 815. The following table summarizes information
about common stock warrants eutstanding-at April 30, 2623-2024 : Schedule of common stock warrants outstanding
Outstanding Exercisable Weighted Average Weighted Weighted Remaining Average Average Exercise Number Contractual
Exercise Number Exercise Price Outstanding Life (years) Price Exercisable Price $ 12. 00 210, 000 5. 3 $ 12. 00-- $ 262. 50 1,
076 0.5 $262.501,076 $262.50 $ 450 . 00 566-28 , 666-6-965 1 . 8-9 £ 450. 00 28, 965 $ 450. 00 $ 937. 50 408 2. | $ 937. 50
408 $937.50$12 . 00 - $ 937. 560-- 50 240,449 4.9 $ 67. 45 30, 449 $ 449. 91 Warrant activity for the year ended April
30, 2024 is presented below: Schedule of warrant activity Number Outstanding Weighted Average Exercise Price
Outstanding at April 30, 2023 67, 662 $ 435. 18 Granted 210, 000 $ +12 . 00 Cancelled / Expired (37, 213) $ +423 . 75+6+
13 Outstanding at April 30 , 3424-5-2024 240, 449 $ 167 . 45 F5164342-51-75-$3-00-9427196-1--9-$3-00-9,427196
-$—3—99—$—6—2§—6-1—2§G—3—14$—6—2§—6-1—2§94$—6—2§—$—1—99- $-6-2510,149,788+9-$2-9010, 149, 788-$2-96-F- 14-16- The
estimated fair value of warrants granted during the years ended April 30, 2622-2024 , were calculated using the Black- Scholes
option- pricing model using the following assumptions: Schedule of assumptions used For the year ended April 30, 2022-2024
Expected term (in years) 5. 86-50 Volatility 88-92 . 94-9 % Risk- free interest rate 2-3 . 92-95 — 4. 65 % Dividend yield 0. 0 %
Expected Term: The expected term represents the perted-that-contractual life of the warrants granted are-expeeted-to-be
outstanding-. Risk- Free Interest Rate: The Company based the risk- free interest rate over the expected term of the warrants
based on the constant maturity rate of U. S. Treasury securities with similar mdtuntles as of the ddte of the grant. 9. OTHER




e-of$ are—In November 2022 the Company entered into a
marketrng and brand development agreement Wrth Ault Alllance, Inc. (“ AULT ), effective August 1, 2022, whereby AULT
willprevide-provided various marketing services over twelve months valued at $ 1. 4 million. The Company had the right to
pay the fee in cash or shares of #s-eemmen-Common steek-Stock with a value of § +225 . 58-00 per share. On November 11,
2022, the Company elected to pay the fee with 933-6 , 334-222 shares of #seommoen-Common steek-Stock . The Company
recorded the value of the agreement using the closing price of the Company—s-eommenr-Common steek-Stock on November
11, 2022, and will-amertize-amortizes the expense over twelve months beginning in August 2022. At April 30, 2623-2024 , the
balance of related party prepaid expenses was zero $247,-800-. 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES On July 2,
2018, the Company entered into two Standard Exclusive License Agreements with Sublicensing Terms for AL0O1 with the
Licensor and its affiliate, the University of South Florida (the “ AL0OO1 Licenses ), pursuant to which the Licensor granted the
Company a royalty bearing exclusive worldwide licenses limited to the field of Alzheimer’ s, under United States Patent Nos. (i)
9, 840, 521, entitled *“ Organic Anion Lithium Ionic Cocrystal Compounds and Compositions ”, filed September 24, 2015 and
granted December 12, 2017, and (ii) 9, 603, 869, entitled “ Lithium Co- Crystals for Treatment of Neuropsychiatric Disorders ”,
filed May 21, 2016 and granted March 28, 2017. On February 1, 2019, the Company entered into the First Amendments to the
ALOOI Licenses, on March 30, 2021, the Company entered into the Second Amendments to the ALOO1 Licenses and on June 8,
2023, the Company entered into the Third Amendments to the ALO01 Licenses (collectively, the “ AL0O01 License Agreements
7). ==45-The Third Amendments to the AL001 Licenses modified the timing of the payments for the license fees. The
ALO001 License Agreements require that the Company pay combined royalty payments of 4. 5 % on net sales of products
developed from the licensed technology for ALOO1. The Company has already paid an initial license fee of $ 200, 000 for
ALO001. As an additional licensing fee for the license of the AL001 technologies, the Licensor received 2-14 , 853 227923
shares of the-Company—s-eemmen-Common steek-Stock . Minimum royalties for ALOO1 License Agreements are $ 40, 000 on
the first anniversary of the first commercial sale, $ 80, 000 on the second anniversary of the first commercial sale and $ 100,
000 on the third anniversary of the first commercial sale and every year thereafter, for the life of the AL0OO1 License
Agreements. On May 1, 2016, the Company entered into a Standard Exclusive License Agreement with Sublicensing Terms for
ALZNO002 with the Licensor (the “ ALZN002 License ), pursuant to which the Licensor granted the Company a royalty bearing
exclusive worldwide license limited to the field of Alzheimer’ s Immunotherapy and Diagnostics, under United States Patent No.
8, 188, 046, entitled “ Amyloid Beta Peptides and Methods of Use ”, filed April 7, 2009 and granted May 29, 2012. On August
18, 2017, the Company entered into the First Amendment to the ALZNO02 License, on May 7, 2018, the Company entered into
the Second Amendment to the ALZNO02 License, on January 31, 2019, the Company entered into the Third Amendment to the
ALZNO002 License, on January 24, 2020, the Company entered into the Fourth Amendment to the ALZNO002 License, on March
30, 2021, the Company entered into the Fifth Amendment to the ALZN002 License and-, on April 17, 2023, the Company
entered into the Sixth Amendment to the ALZN002 License and on December 11, 2023, the Company entered into the
Seventh Amendment to the ALZNO02 License (collectively, the “ ALZNO02 License Agreement ”). The Seventh Amendment
to the ALZNO002 License modified the timing of the payments for the license fees.- F- 17- The ALZN002 License
Agreement requires the Company to pay royalty payments of 4 % on net sales of products developed from the licensed
technology for ALZN002. The Company has already paid an initial license fee of $ 200, 000 for ALZN002. As an additional
licensing fee for the license of ALZNO002, the Licensor received 3-24 , 012 6645-869-shares of the-Company—s-eommon
Common steelStock . Minimum royalties for ALZN002 are $ 20, 000 on the first anniversary of the first commercial sale, $
40, 000 on the second anniversary of the first commercial sale and $ 50, 000 on the third anniversary of the first commercial
sale and every year thereafter, for the life of the ALZN002 License Agreement. On November 19, 2019, the Company entered
into two Standard Exclusive License Agreements with Sublicensing Terms for two additional indications of AL0O0O1 with the
Licensor (the “ November AL001 License ), pursuant to which the Licensor granted the Company a royalty bearing exclusive
worldwide licenses limited to the fields of (i) neurodegenerative diseases excluding Alzheimer’ s and (ii) psychiatric diseases
and disorders. On March 30, 2021, the Company entered into the First Amendments to the November AL0O1 License and on
April 17,2023, the Company entered into the Second Amendments to the November AL0OO1 License (collectively, the
November ALOO1 License Agreements ”). The Second Amendments to the November AL001 License modified the timing
of the payments for the license fees. The November ALOO1 License Agreements require the Company to pay royalty payments
of 3 % on net sales of products developed from the licensed technology for AL0O1 in those fields. The Company paid an initial
license fee of § 20, 000 for the additional indications. Minimum royalties for November AL001 License Agreements are $ 40,
000 on the first anniversary of the first commercial sale, $ 80, 000 on the second anniversary of the first commercial sale and $
100, 000 on the third anniversary of the first commercial sale and every year thereafter, for the life of the November AL001
License Agreements. These license agreements have an indefinite term that continue until the later of the date no licensed patent
under the applicable agreement remains a pending application or enforceable patent, the end date of any period of market
exclusivity granted by a governmental regulatory body, or the date on which the Company’ s obligations to pay royalties expire
under the applicable license agreement. Under the various license agreements, if the Company fails to meet a milestone by its
specified date, Licensor may terminate the license agreement. The Licensor was also granted a preemptive right to acquire such
shares or other equity securities that may be issued from time to time by the Company while the Licensor remains the owner of
any equity securities of the Company. Additionally, the Company is required to pay milestone payments on the due dates to the
Licensor for the license of the AL001 technologies and for the ALZNO002 technology, as follows: Schedule of contractual
obligation, fiscal year maturity Payment Due Date Event $ 50, 000 * Completed September 2019 Pre- IND meeting $ 65, 000 *
Completed June 2021 IND application filing $ 190, 000 * Completed December 2021 Upon first dosing of patient in a clinical
trial $ 500, 000 * Completed March 2022 Upon €empletien-completion of first clinical trial $ 1, 250, 000 March 2025 24



menths-fromeompletion-of-first Phase H-ehintealtrtal-Upon first patient treated in a Phase 111 clinical trial $ 10, 000, 000 8 years
from the effective date of the agreement Upon FDA approval F46-Payment Due Date Event-$ 50, 000 * Completed January
2022 YpeniND-apphieation-filing-$ 50, 000 September2623-Upon first dosing of patient in first Phase [ clinical trial $ 500, 000
Upon 24-menthsfrenrcompletion of first Phase elinteattrial- pon-ecompletion-offirst Phase H-IIB clinical trial $ 1, 000, 000
+2-menthsfronreompletion-of the-first Phase H-ehnteat-trial-Upon first patient treated in a Phase 111 clinical trial $ 10, 000, 000
Fyearsfrom-the-effeetive-date-of the-agreement-Upon FDA-BEA-apprevatfirst commercial sale- F- 18- Additional AL001

Licenses: Payment Due Date Event § 2, 000, 000 March 2026 %6—meﬂths—freﬂ+eemp%eﬁeﬂ—&ﬁ&te—ﬁrst—?h&se—&e¥ﬂﬁeal—tﬂa}
Upon first patient treated in a Phase 111 leltdl trial $ 16, 000, 000 August 1, 2029 First commercial sale 11. EQUITY

TRANSACTIONS The Company is authorized to issue 10, 000, 000 shares of preferred-Preferred steel=Stock , $ 0. 0001 par
value. The Boald has dcsmnaled 6 +366-, 000 shares as the-Series A-B Convertible Preferred Stodxﬂo-ne-o-ﬂwh-leh—was—tss-ued
5 . The rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions on the remaining authorized -9 , 646
994 , 000 shares of preferred-Preferred steek-Stock have not been determined. The Board is authorized to create a new series of
preferred shares and determine the number of shares, as well as the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to or
imposed upon any series of preferred shares. On January 31, 2024, the Company and Ault Lending entered into the AL
SPA for the purchase of up to 6, 000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase shares up
to 600, 000 shares of Common Stock. The AL SPA provides that Ault Lending may purchase up to $ 6 million of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock in one or more closings. Ault Lending has the right to purchase up to $ 2 million of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock, on or before March 31, 2024, and the right to purchase up to $ 4 million of Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock after March 31, 2024, but on or before March 31, 2025 (the “ Termination Date ). The
Agreement will automatically terminate if the final closing has not occurred prior to the Termination Date. The Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock has a stated value of $ 1, 000 per share (“ Stated Value ) and does not accrue dividends.
Each share of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into a number of shares of Common Stock determined
by dividing the Stated Value by $ 10. 00 (the “ Conversion Price ). The Conversion Price is subject to adjustment in the
event of an issuance of Common Stock at a price per share lower than the Conversion Price then in effect, as well as upon
customary stock splits, stock dividends, combinations or similar events. The holders of the Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock are entitled to vote with the Common Stock as a single class on an as- converted basis, subject to
applicable law provisions of the Delaware General Company Law and Nasdaq, provided however, that for purposes of
complying with Nasdaq regulations, the conversion price, for purposes of determining the number of votes the holder of
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock is entitled to cast, shall not be lower than $ 8. 73 (the “ Voting Floor Price ), which
represents the closing sale price of the Common Stock on the trading day immediately prior to the Execution Date. The
Voting Floor Price shall be adjusted for stock dividends, stock splits, stock combinations and other similar transactions.
Upon a liquidation event the holders of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock receive a liquidation preference ahead of
Common Stockholders. The warrants have an exercise price of $ 12. 00 (the “ Exercise Price ’) and become exercisable
on the first business day after the six- month anniversary of issuance (the “ Initial Exercise Date ) and have a five- year
term, expiring on the fifth anniversary of the Initial Exercise Date. The Exercise Price is subject to adjustment in the
event of an issuance of Common Stock at a price per share lower than the Exercise Price then in effect, as well as upon
customary stock splits, stock dividends, combinations or similar events. For the period ended January 31, 2024, the
Company recorded the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock as mezzanine equity and the warrant as a liability. On
March 21, 2024, the Company amended its Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations for the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock to remove certain change of control language. As a result, the Company reassessed the
classification of both the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant and reclassified both the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant as permanent equity for the period ended April 30, 2024.- F- 19- ALSF
Investment On April 30, 2019, the Company and ALSF entered into a securities purchase agreement (the “ SPA *) for the
purchase of +6-66 , 667 966;-660-shares of eemmen-Common steek-Stock for a total purchase price of $ 15, 000, 000, or $ +
225 . 56-00 per share with 5-33 |, 333 060;-666-warrants with a 5- year life and an exercise price of $ 3-450 . 00 per share and
vesting upon issuance. The total purchase price of $ 15, 000, 000 was in the form of a non- interest bearing note receivable with
a 12- month term from ALSF, a related party. The note #s-was secured by a pledge of the purchased shares. Pursuant to the SPA
seeurities-purchase-agreement-, ALSF 4s-was entitled to full ratchet anti- dilution protection, most- favored nation status,
denying the Company the right to enter into a variable rate transaction absent its consent, a right to participate in any future
financing the Company may consummate and to have all the shares of eemmen-Common steel=Stock to which it is entitled te
under the SPA registered under the Securities Act within 180 days of the final closing of the [PO. In May 2021, the term of the
note receivable was extended to December 31, 2023. Fhe-On January 19, 2024, the Company and ALSF entered into a
settlement agreement and release of claims whereby ALSF returned to the Company 66, 117 shares of Common Stock
and the ALSF Warrants for settlement of the outstanding balance of the note receivable in '}s—seeﬂ-red-by—a—p-}edge—o-ﬁthc
purehased-shares-amount of $ 14, 876, 293 . In-Marel-At- the- Market Offering On September 8, 26242023 , the Company
entered into an At- the SPA—- Market Issuance Sales Agreement with Alrp&rstt&ﬂt—te—whieh—the—eefﬁp&nyh&gfeed—Ascendlant
Capital Markets, LLC, as sales agent to sell shares of its Common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to
approximately 6;-666;-667shares-of eommetrstoe of & 10-mition;or-$1-—-50-pershare,which-sales-were
ﬂ‘taée—rn—t-raﬁehes—@ﬂ—M&reh—‘) —"LLGQ—l—zArIrpaid—$—4—n‘rﬁ-lioﬂ—}ess—t-he—$—l— 8 million (tn-priet-advanees-and-the surrenderfor
eanteeHationrof-“ Shares ”) from time to time, through the ATM Offering. On September 8, 2023, the Company filed a
prospectus supplement w1th the SEC relatlng to the offer and sale of up to approximately $ 9. 8 million in 56,666
sreg 67-shares of eemmon-Common steek-Stock in —Under
the ATM Offerlng The offer fefms—e-ﬁfhe—s%@-pﬂfeha‘sed-&ﬂ-and sale of the additional4;333;333-shares-Shares was




made pursuant to efcommen-stoekupenapproval by the FPAefthe Company’ s INDfer-its PhaseJA-—ehntealtrialsfor
ALO0for-apurehase-priee-of $-effective « shelf ” registration statement on Form S- 3 and an accompanying base
prospectus contained thereln (Reglstratlon Statement No 333 273610) filed w1th the SEC on August 2 mrl-l-reﬂ—&nd—ﬁ-i-)

0 at-$5+0-mithon-as date-of thisAn 2023 Durmg the year ended
Aprll 30, 2024 the Company sold an ¢ gglcgalc 01107, 682 shares of Common Stock pursuant to the ATM Offering for
proceeds of $ 1. 3 million. The Company terminated its ATM Offering on May 6, 2024. 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS On
May 8, 2024, the Company and Orchid entered into the Orchid SPA for the purchase of up to 2, 75-500 shares of Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase shares up to 2, 500 , 000 shares of Common Stock in several
tranche closings.- F- 20- Exhibit 4. 4 DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK The following is a summary of all material
characteristics of our capital stock as set forth in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws. The summary does not
purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, and to
the provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, as amended. We are authorized to issue 300,
000, 000 shares of common stock, ineluding375-par value $ 0. 0001 per share. As of July 29, 2024, there were 841, 240
shares of our common stock issued and outstanding. The outstanding shares of our common stock are validly issued,

fully paid and nonassessable. We are authorized to issue up to 10, 000 , 000 shares purstantto-the-underwriters-exereise-of
preferred stock -rts—epﬁeﬂ—te-pufehase—&ddﬁ-reﬁal-shares— par value each-at-an-offeringpriee-of-$ 5-0 . 66-0001 per share ;-for

g Of 4—ﬂ‘1-l-l-h0ﬁ—T—he—pfeeeed‘S—f:fem—t-he-these shares offering-to-the-Compaiy;
ﬂet—o[preferred stock 5 MTSSTONS—an ng-expenses, 3 were-$12-9-millien-Alalso

purehased2,-600-, 000 shares are de51gnated as Serles A convertlble preferred stock and 6, 000 shares are designated as
Series B convertible preferred stock. As of July 29, 2024, there were approximately 192. 9884 shares of Series A
convertible preferred stock outstandmg and 2, 100 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock outstanding. Common
Stock Holders of our shares of common stock are entitled to one vote for each $16—6-miltionin-the-initial-publie-offeringat

-$é.—99—peﬁlm1 e —the—sa-me—pﬂee—&nd—on all matters submitted the-same-terms-as-other-investorsin-the-initial- publie-offering;
exeept-tha nderwritingd was-patd mthe—ttnderwrrtefs—feﬁhe—sa-le-a stockholder vote. Holders of our

igh rlghts te—pay— Therefore, holders of a majorlty of lhc fee

fn—e&s-h—e%\ hares of -rts—our common \IOLk Votlng for thh—a—V&lﬁe—e%—lé@—peﬁsh&re—@ereVembeHHG%Z—l e Company
election of directors can eleeted-—- elect all to-pay-the-fee-with-933;334-shares-of its-the directors. Holders of our common

stock representing a majority —Fhe-Companyreeorded-the-vakie-of the voting power agreement-using-the-elosingpriee-of

our capital stock issued, outstanding and entitled to vote, represented in person or by proxy, are necessary to constitute a
quorum at any meeting of stockholders. A vote by the Company—s-holders of a majority of our outstanding shares is
required to effectuate certain fundamental corporate changes such as liquidation, merger or certain amendments to our
certificate of incorporation. Holders of our common stock en-Nevember—--are entitled to share in all dividends that our
Board of Directors , in 2022 -and-is-its amertizing-discretion, declares from legally available funds. In the expense-event of
a liquidation, dissolution or winding up, each outstanding share entitles its holder to participate pro rata in all assets that
remain after payment of liabilities and after providing for each class of stock, if any, having preference over our common

stock twelve-months-beginning-inAugust2022-. Our common stock AtApri-36,2023;-the-balance-of related-party prepaid
WSWH%@Q@%BSEQ%%@&WI]AS no preemptlve, subscrlptlon or convers1on rights

hat-there

d preferred stock may be 1ssued te—as—

in series a—heerrse—&g-reeme&t—rela—ﬁﬂg—te—the—&trl&aﬁeﬂ

follows—Capitalized-terms-in-this-Sixth-Amendment-shall have such votlng powers, full or limited, or no votlng powers, and

such des1gnat10ns, preferences and relatlve partlclpatmg, optlonal or t-he—other s&me—me&mng—speclal rlghts, and




e 0 5 yatty-shall be pa-td—stated and expressed 111ad=v‘&ﬂee
eﬂ—a—qﬂﬁﬁer}y—baﬁs-the resolutlon or resolutlons prov1d1ng or the issuance of such stock adopted from time to time by the

board of directors. The board of directors is expressly vested with the authority to determine and fix in the resolution or
resolutions providing for the issuances of preferred stock the voting powers, designations, preferences and rights, and
the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, of cach year-in-whieh-thisAgreementis-ineffeetsuch series to the full
extent now or hereafter permltted by the laws of the State of Delaware The authorlzed shares of preferred stock

Iy

eredited-against the-earned-royalties-for ﬂﬂr&t—ea-}eﬁéaﬁyeanh}t—lssuance w1thout further actlon by our stockholders unless
such action is understood-thatrequired by apphcable law or the ﬂamﬂﬁuﬂa—reya}&eﬁ%ae—&pphed—te-e&rned—rey&}ﬁes—rules




listed or traded. The Nasdaq Stock Market currently requires stockholder approval asa prerequ1s1te two—- to
eounterparts-listing shares in several circumstances , each-including, in certain circumstances, where the issuance of swhieh
shares could result in an increase in the number of shares of common stock outstanding, or in the amount of voting
securities outstanding, of at least 20 %. Transfer Agent and Registrar The Transfer Agent and Registrar for our
common stock is Computersharefe—be—eeﬂs*defed-&n—eﬂgma-l— 8742 Lucent Blvd aﬂd—takeﬂ—tegeﬂ&efas—eﬁe—aﬂd—ﬂae-s&me

atly-, Suite 225 and-signatures-obtained
nghlands Ranch eaeh—e%t-he—p&mes




Exhibit 23. 1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm We consent to the incorporation by reference in this
the Registration Statements on Form S- 8 (File No. 333- 257873) and on Form S- 3 (File No. 333- 273610) of Alzamend
Neuro, Inc. (the “ Company ”) of our report dated July 30, 2024, relating to the financial statements as of April 30, 2024
and for the year then ended, which includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the uncertainty of the Company’ s
ability to continue as a going concern, which appear in the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2024. Exhibit 23. 2 We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement (No. 333-
257873) on Form S- 8 and Registration Statement (No. 333- 273610) on Form S- 3 of Alzamend Neuro, Inc. (the Company)
of our report, which expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the conditions and
events that raise substantial doubt regarding the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern, relating to the financial
statements of Alzamend Neuro, Inc., appearing in the-this Annual Report on Form 10- K efAdzamend-Nenro;ne—for the year
ended April 30, 2023. /s/BAKER TILLY US, LLP San Diego, CA July 2730 , 2623-2024 EXHIBIT 31. 1 Certification of the
Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to § 240. 13a- 14 or § 240. 15d- 14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 1,
Stephan Jackman, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended April 30, 2623-2024 of
Alzamend Neuro, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and
other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying
officer (s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f)
and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and we have: a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared; b) designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles; ¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over
financial reporting. 5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer (s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of registrant” s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function): a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal controls over financial reporting. Date:
July 30, 2024 By: / s / Stephan Jackman Name: Stephan Jackman Title: Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31. 2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer I, David J. Katzoff, certify that: Date: July 30, 2024 By: / s / David
J. Katzoff Name: David J. Katzoff Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) Exhibit 32. 1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection with the Annual Report of Alzamend Neuro, Inc. (the “ Registrant ) on
Form 10- K for the period ended April 30, 2623-2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the “ Report ), I, Stephan Jackman, Principal Executive Officer, and I, David J. Katzoff, Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer of the Registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge: (1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13
(a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Registrant. Date: July 27-30 , 2623-2024
By: / s / Stephan Jackman Name: Stephan Jackman Title: Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Date: July 2#
30 , 26232024 By: / s/ David J. Katzoff Name: David J. Katzoff Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer) This certification accompanies the Annual Report on Form 10- K to which it relates, is not deemed filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Alzamend Neuro,
Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act (whether made before or after the date of the Form 10-
K), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing. Exhibit 97. 1 DODD- FRANK CLAWBACK
POLICY The Board of Directors (the “ Board ”) of Alzamend Neuro, Inc. (the “ Company ) has adopted this clawback
policy (the “ Policy ”) as a supplement to any other clawback policies in effect now or in the future at the Company to
provide for the recovery of erroneously awarded Incentive- Based Compensation from Executive Officers. This Policy
shall be interpreted to comply with the clawback rules found in 17 C. F. R. § 240. 10D and Listing Rule 5608 (c) of the
Nasdaq Stock Market (the “ Exchange ), and, to the extent this Policy is in any manner deemed inconsistent with such
rules, this Policy shall be treated as retroactively amended to be compliant with such rules. 1. Definitions. 17 C. F. R. §
240. 10D- 1 (d) defines the terms “ Executive Officer, ” “ Financial Reporting Measures, ” “ Incentive- Based
Compensation, ” and “ Received. ” As used herein, these terms shall have the same meaning as in that regulation. 2.
Application of the Policy. This Policy shall only apply in the event that the Company is required to prepare an
accounting restatement due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement
under the securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued
financial statements that is material to the previously issued financial statements, or that would result in a material
misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period. In the event of
such an accounting restatement, the Company will recover reasonably promptly the Erroneously Awarded
Compensation Received in accordance with this Policy. 3. Recovery Period. The Incentive- Based Compensation subject
to clawback is the Incentive- Based Compensation Received by an Executive Officer (1) after beginning service as an
Executive Officer and (2) during the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding the date that the Company is
required to prepare an accounting restatement as described in section 2, provided that the person served as an Executive
Officer at any time during the performance period applicable to the Incentive- Based Compensation in question (whether
or not such person is serving as an Executive Officer at the time the Erroneously Awarded Compensation is required to
be repaid to the Company). The date that the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement shall be
determined pursuant to 17 C. F. R. § 240. 10D- 1 (b) (1) (ii). (a) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Policy shall only
apply if the Incentive- Based Compensation is Received (1) while the Company has a class of securities listed on the
Exchange and (2) on or after October 2, 2023. (b) See 17 C. F. R. § 240. 10D- 1 (b) (1) (i) for certain circumstances under
which the Policy will apply to Incentive- Based Compensation Received during a transition period arising due to a
change in the Company’ s fiscal year. 4. Erroneously Awarded Compensation. The amount of Incentive- Based
Compensation subject to recovery under this Policy with respect to each Executive Officer in connection with an
accounting restatement described in Section 2 (“ Erroneously Awarded Compensation ) is the amount of Incentive-
Based Compensation Received that exceeds the amount of Incentive Based- Compensation that otherwise would have
been Received had it been determined based on the restated amounts and shall be computed without regard to any taxes
paid. For Incentive- Based Compensation based on the Company’ s stock price or total shareholder return, where the
amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not subject to mathematical recalculation directly from the
information in an accounting restatement: (1) the amount shall be based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the
accounting restatement on the Company’ s stock price or total shareholder return upon which the Incentive- Based
Compensation was Received; and (2) the Company must maintain documentation of the determination of that
reasonable estimate and provide such documentation to the Exchange. 5. Recovery of Erroneously Awarded
Compensation. The Company shall recover reasonably promptly any Erroneously Awarded Compensation except to the
extent that the conditions of paragraphs (a), (b), or (c) below apply. The Board shall determine the amount of
Erroneously Awarded Compensation Received by each Executive Officer, shall promptly notify each Executive Officer
of such amount and demand repayment or return of such compensation based on a repayment schedule determined by
the Board in a manner that complies with this “ reasonably promptly ” requirement. Such determination shall be
consistent with any applicable legal guidance, by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ SEC ”), judicial
opinion, or otherwise. The determination of “ reasonably promptly ” may vary from case to case and the Board is
authorized to adopt additional rules to further describe what repayment schedules satisfy this requirement. (a)
Erroneously Awarded Compensation need not be recovered if the direct expense paid to a third party to assist in
enforcing the Policy would exceed the amount to be recovered and the Board has made a determination that recovery
would be impracticable. Before concluding that it would be impracticable to recover any amount of Erroneously



Awarded Compensation based on expense of enforcement, the Company shall make a reasonable attempt to recover such
Erroneously Awarded Compensation, document such reasonable attempt (s) to recover, and provide that documentation
to the Exchange. (b) Erroneously Awarded Compensation need not be recovered if recovery would violate home country
law where that law was adopted prior to November 28, 2022. Before concluding that it would be impracticable to
recover any amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on violation of home country law, the Company shall
obtain an opinion of home country counsel, acceptable to the Exchange, that recovery would result in such a violation
and shall provide such opinion to the Exchange. (c) Erroneously Awarded Compensation need not be recovered if
recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax- qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to
employees of the Company, to fail to meet the requirements of 26 U. S. C. 401 (a) (13) or 26 U. S. C. 411 (a) and
regulations thereunder. 6. Board Decisions. Decisions of the Board with respect to this Policy shall be final, conclusive
and binding on all Executive Officers subject to this Policy, unless determined to be an abuse of discretion. 7. No
Indemnification. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any other policy of the Company or any agreement
between the Company and an Executive Officer, no Executive Officer shall be indemnified by the Company against the
loss of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation or any claims related to the Company’ s enforcement of its rights under
this Policy. 8. Agreement to Policy by Executive Officers. The Board shall take reasonable steps to inform Executive
Officers of this Policy and obtain their agreement to this Policy, which steps may constitute the inclusion of this Policy as
an attachment to any award that is accepted by the Executive Officer. 9. Other Recovery Rights. Any employment
agreement, equity award agreement, compensatory plan or any other agreement or arrangement with an Executive
Officer shall be deemed to include, as a condition to the grant of any benefit thereunder, an agreement by the Executive
Officer to abide by the terms of this Policy. Any right of recovery under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of,
any other remedies or rights of recovery that may be available to the Company under applicable law, regulation or rule
or pursuant to the terms of any policy of the Company or any provision in any employment agreement, equity award
agreement, compensatory plan, agreement or other arrangement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i)
with respect to Executive Officers, if application of the provisions of any section of the Company’ s stock incentive plans,
either currently in place or adopted in the future (the “ Plan Clawback Provisions ) to any Executive Officer provides
that a greater amount of such compensation may be subject to clawback, the Board may, in its sole discretion, elect to
apply the Plan Clawback Provisions; and (ii) with respect to other persons employed by or providing services to the
Company, this Policy does not limit or supersede the provisions of any section of the Company’ s stock incentive plans,
either currently in place or adopted in the future, and the Board may elect to apply the Plan Clawback Provisions in the
Board’ s sole discretion. 10. Disclosure. The Company shall file all disclosures with respect to this Policy required by
applicable SEC filings and rules. 11. Amendments. The Board may amend this Policy from time to time in its discretion
and shall amend this Policy as it deems necessary. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 11 to the contrary, no
amendment or termination of this Policy shall be effective if such amendment or termination would (after taking into
account any actions taken by the Company contemporaneously with such amendment or termination) cause the
Company to violate any federal securities laws, SEC rule or Exchange rule. [ end of policy | EXHIBIT A ALZAMEND
NEURO, INC. DODD- FRANK CLAWBACK POLICY ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM By signing below, the
undersigned acknowledges and confirms that the undersigned has received and reviewed a copy of the Alzamend Neuro,
Inc. (the “ Company ”) Dodd- Frank Clawback Policy (the “ Policy ”). By signing this Acknowledgment Form, the
undersigned acknowledges and agrees that the undersigned is and will continue to be subject to the Policy and that the
Policy will apply both during and after the undersigned’ s employment with the Company. Further, by signing below,
the undersigned agrees to abide by the terms of the Policy, including, without limitation, by returning any Erroneously
Awarded Compensation (as defined in the Policy) to the Company to the extent required by, and in a manner consistent
with, the Policy. Signature Print Name



